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Financial Highlights
MBREE

Revenue was approximately RMB1,329.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 20.6% from

last year.

Gross profit was approximately RMB248.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 15.7% from

last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately RMB70.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 28.9% over last year.

Basic earnings per share amounted to RMB0.08.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share for the year ended 31 December
2019, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting. This represented a total
distribution of RMB25.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (“Suchuang Gas” or
the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present to you the annual results
of Suchuang Gas for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Year”).

MARKET REVIEW AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, there was a difficult economic situation in the
world, with continuous escalation of international trade
frictions, the shift to easy monetary policies in most
economies, the rise in the international oil price followed
by a decline and a continuous fluctuation, and various
geopolitical risks, posing major challenges for the global
economic growth. The year marks the 70th anniversary
of the founding of the People’s Republic of China. Facing
a number of challenges, China’s overall economy “grew
steadily”, due to economic stimulus measures implemented
by the PRC government in due course. On the whole,
facing the complicated international environment and the
arduous tasks of domestic reform, development and stability
maintenance, China has maintained a relatively rapid
economic growth and is still one of the biggest contributors
to the world’s economic growth. 2020 is the final year for
the “13th Five-Year Plan”, as well as the year for achieving
the first centenary goal, when China will usher in a
moderately well-off society, laying a good foundation for
the “14th five-year” development and achievement of the
second centenary goal.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

For Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, where the Group’s
main business is located, major opportunities from the
economic integration of the Yangtze River Delta will be
seized to make future arrangements. With the upgrade of
the economic integration of the Yangtze River Delta to
a national strategy, the Yangtze River Delta region will
become the focus of China’s economic development in
the future, which will support the future development of
Taicang City. Active efforts have been made for Taicang
City, as one of the cities closest to Shanghai, to realize
the goal of “integration into Shanghai”. In 2019, Taicang
City was comprehensively integrated into the economic
integration of the Yangtze River Delta and actively promoted
the connection to Shanghai planning. The completion of
the Shanghai-Nantong Railway (Phase 1) accelerates the
construction of the Shanghai-Nantong Railway (Phase II),
and efforts will be made to extend Shanghai Jiamin Line
northward. In addition, efforts are made to actively align
with Shanghai industrial map, proactively integrate into
Shanghai Honggiao Central Business District, deepen the
construction of the Jiading-Kunshan-Taicang collaborative
innovation rim, and introduce advanced manufacturing
industries including new energy vehicles, large aircraft,
integrated circuit, and actively make arrangements for
financial settlement, exhibition business, leisure tourism
and other modern service industries. Efforts are made
to strengthen the construction of mechanisms including
Shanghai-Taicang joint approval, law enforcement and
people-to-people exchanges.
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CONTINUOUS INCREASE IN DEMANDS FOR
NATURAL GAS

In the natural gas industry in which the Group operates, the
national natural gas consumption accelerated significantly
during the Year, due to the frequent publication of
favorable policies. In May 2019, the Measures for the
Supervision and Administration of Fair Opening of Oil and
Gas Pipeline Network Facilities were officially published,
which promoted the fair opening of oil and gas pipeline
network facilities. The establishment of national pipeline
network companies will be one of the most significant and
fundamental reform measures in the natural gas system
reform in recent years, and will give new impetus to the
whole natural gas industry chain in China, and promote
the establishment of a pricing mechanism in the natural
gas market. Urban gas companies will face the diversified
supplies of pipeline gas, the diversified natural gas resources
and the diversified prices. We believe that with the progress
in the overall reform of the industry, there will be new
growth opportunities for the natural gas market. With the
continuous implementation of domestic “coal-to-gas”
policies, continuous rationalization of all processes in the
natural gas industry and steady macroeconomic growth
of China, the data of NDRC show that in 2019, China’s
apparent consumption of natural gas reached 306.7 billion
cubic meters, representing a year-on-year increase of 9.4%.
The natural gas consumption continued to grow rapidly.

In mid-2019, China’s Natural Gas Development Report
(2019) was jointly published by the Department
of Oil and Natural Gas of the National Energy
Administration (Bl BAMAARA]), the Resource
and Environmental Policy Research Institute of the
Development Research Center of the State Council (Bl
BRI O EIRERIRBEEFUFT), and the Strategic
Research Center of Oil and Gas Resources, MNR. In the
report, it is believed that there are strategic opportunities
for the development of China’s natural gas industry. In
terms of the international trend, natural gas accounts for
23% in the global energy consumption structure, and
thus there will be growth potential in the future. In terms
of the domestic situation, the reform of the oil and gas
systems is being accelerated. Steady economic and social
development will drive the sustained growth of energy
demand, while natural gas plays an important role in
China’s energy revolution.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

In 2019, China’s natural gas imports increased significantly.
In 2019, China’s natural gas imports totaled 96.56 million
tons, representing an increase of 6.9% compared with the
same period of last year, with the import amount reaching
US$41.72 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
8.5%. In 2019, China’s liquefied natural gas (LNG) imports
totaled 60.25 million tons, representing a year-on-year
increase of 12.2%. The construction of China’s natural gas
production, supply, storage and marketing system has paid
off. Efforts have been made to promote key interconnection
projects and arrange the construction of several regional
underground gas storage bases. The gas storage capacity
of the three major oil companies reached 15.36 billion
cubic meters, representing an increase of approximately
1.38 billion cubic meters as compared with last year.
Meanwhile, the arrangements for the construction of LNG
receiving terminals have been further strengthened, with the
implementation of the demonstration project for multi-modal
transportation of tanks and containers, and the accelerated
construction of a diversified import system. In 2020, China
will vigorously promote exploration and development of
oil and gas, comprehensively strengthen the construction
of China’s natural gas production, supply, storage and
marketing system, focus on oil and gas investment, reserves,
production capacity and production, expand the four
major oil and gas production bases in Bohai Bay, Sichuan,
Xinjiang and Ordos, and consolidate the good situation of
storage and production increase. Efforts have been made to
establish a multi-level gas storage system with underground
gas storages and coastal LNG (liquefied natural gas)
receiving terminals as the main part and inland intensive
large-scale LNG storage tanks in key areas as the auxiliary

part, supported by pipeline network interconnection.
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During three years from 2017 to 2019, in Taicang City,
efforts were made to carry out special treatment of
coal-fired boilers of 10 steam tons per hour by stages,
on a region-by-region basis through measures including
phase-out, centralized heating, replacement with clean
energy, improvement in the standards, and reconstruction.
In 2019, in Taicang City, efforts were made to further
promote the fight for pollution prevention and control,
with continuous improvement in the level of environmental
law enforcement and supervision, and the environmental
quality, thus achieving a “win-win” outcome for economic
development and ecological environment protection. In
Taicang City, air pollution prevention and control were
promoted through reducing coal burning, strengthening
monitoring and promoting air treatment projects, thus
achieving remarkable results. In 2019, 18 coal-fired boilers
of 10-35 steam tons per hour were phased out, and 118
gas-fired boilers and 105 industry furnaces were renovated.
It is expected that the natural gas consumption in Taicang
City will increase with the replacement with clean energy.

Taicang Port in Taicang City is located at the junction of the
Yangtze River Economic Zone and the Coastal Economic
Zone, connecting major ports in Jiangsu. Due to its superior
geographical location, it is expected to develop into a large
LNG storage and transportation terminal in the region in the
future. In 2019, Taicang Port Economic and Technological
Development Zone ranked 24th in terms of comprehensive
strength among development zones in Jiangsu, with the total
industrial output value of RMB80.7 billion and the fixed
asset investment of RMB11.9 billion. In 2019, the container
throughput of Taicang Port reached 5.15 million TEUs, with
the total cargo throughput of 216 million tons. With the
total number of shipping routes exceeding 200, it became
the largest container transportation port in the Yangtze
River, and ranked 10th among ports in China and 30th in
the world. The Taicang Port continued to be a major inland
water transport center, which will facilitate the continuous
increase in the demands in the logistics industry for LNG
and compressed natural gas (“CNG”).
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

At present, for the Taicang Port Economic and Technological
Development Zone, more than 2,000 projects are
introduced with a total investment of more than RMB140
billion and include projects of 29 Fortune 500 companies,
such as Exxon Mobil, Procter & Gamble, BP and Reckitt
Benckiser; and projects of 29 central enterprises, such as
CNPC, COSCO, China National Building Material, CNAC;
and projects of 35 American enterprises, such as Honeywell,
Ecolab, TPl and Zippo. For the port area, efforts are made to
consolidate and improve the two 10-billion-level industrial
bases namely the light industry and paper-making base and
the power and energy base, develop six 10-billion-level
industries, namely the green energy industry, functional
material industry, intelligent equipment industry, health
and medicine industry, high-grade lubricating oil industry,
and cleaning and nursing product industry, and construct
four logistics and trade centers, namely port shipping
logistics operation center, spot commodity trading center,
trade settlement center of well-known brands, and building
economy innovation and entrepreneurship center, so as to
accelerate the formation of a modern riverside industrial

system of “eight bases and four centers”.

CLEAR STRATEGY OF DIVERSIFIED
DEVELOPMENT

After 40 years of reform and opening-up, China has
become the world’s second-largest economy. Meanwhile,
it cannot be ignored that the high-energy consumption and
high-emission mode on which high-speed development
relied is no longer sustainable. The Chinese government has
clearly proposed to accelerate the reform of the ecological
civilization system and build a beautiful China. Under
the guidance of the spirit, China’s green and low-carbon
development will certainly promote China’s ecological

environment construction to a new level.
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In order to respond to the call of our country to help
achieve China’s low-emission development strategic goal
in 2050, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest in
Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Dunhua Gas”) in 2017. Dunhua Gas expects to have
profit in 2020. In April 2018, the Group acquired 9.16%
of the enlarged issued share capital of Xinjiang Dunhua
Petroleum Technology Co., Ltd. (¥TiE2E A MM
MBERAF]) (“Dunhua Petroleum”) through Suchuang
Gas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (BREIMR (L8) AR AR
(“Suchuang Shanghai”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, at a total consideration of RMB48 million.
Dunhua Petroleum is mainly engaged in promotion and
provision of relevant petrochemicals technology and
software as well as information technology services, and
relevant businesses of oil and natural gas exploration.
The Group is optimistic about the business prospects and
technical advantages of Dunhua Petroleum, and expects
that it will invest in a number of subsequent projects in
the future, and integrate traditional clean energy business
with innovative technologies to achieve the strategic
target of low emissions.

In addition, in May 2018, the Group injected RMB17.5
million into Beijing Beilun Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
GERIEmEEREHE AR A F]) (“Beijing Beilun”), which is
mainly engaged in natural gas heating services and gas
business. Upon the completion, the Group held 20%
of the shares of Beijing Beilun. The capital injection
represents the process of transforming the Company
into a comprehensive clean energy supplier. The
Group is committed to synergizing and leveraging the
resource advantages of the Company and Beijing Beilun
to achieve strategic development of diversification of
integrated clean energy businesses, enhance the Group'’s
comprehensive strength in the energy industry, and
provide strong support for the development of clean gas
heating projects and distributed energy projects in the
city.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

On 9 September 2019, the Group, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Taicang Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Taicang Natural
Gas”), entered into an acquisition agreement with Shanghai
Jieling Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Jieling”) and Jiangsu
Tengxu Energy Management Co., Ltd. (“Tengxu Energy”)
to acquire the 100% equity interest in Tengxu Energy, at
a total consideration of RMB18.0 million. Tengxu Energy
also became an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Tengxu Energy mainly engages in contract energy
management and development and management distributed
energy systems project, through its own advanced
technologies.

The Group also tries to invest and explore other
businesses. On 8 January 2020, the Group and Shanghai
Fosun Tourism Management Co., Ltd. (/88 2 ik E 12
BPRA7R]) (“Shanghai Fosun Tourism”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Fosun Tourism Group (&£ Xt H)
(“Fosun Tourism”) entered into a non-binding strategic
cooperation framework agreement (the “Strategic
Cooperation Framework Agreement”) for a term of
five years from the date of the Strategic Cooperation
Framework Agreement to establish a cooperative
relationship in relation to, among other things, the
provision of clean energy to the tourism destination
projects of Fosun Tourism and its subsidiaries. The
strategic cooperation between the Company and
Shanghai Fosun Tourism will create synergies for each
other to explore the feasibility and cooperation in the
areas of tourism projects and clean energy investments.

PROSPECTS

At the beginning of 2020, when the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus pneumonia began, the Group put the protection
of the health of its employees first. Although the delay in
work resumption has put pressure on the operation of the
Group, the Group has actively taken measures to minimize
the impact of the outbreak. Meanwhile, the Group donated
10,000 N95 masks in Taicang City to support the fight

against the outbreak.
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At the macro level, the global economy has been affected
by the outbreak, with major economies facing many
challenges including the economic downturn, the slowdown
in corporate profit growth and international political
fluctuations. Global economic growth is expected to slow
down in 2020. However, 2020 is the final year for the “13th
Five-Year Plan”, as well as the year for achieving the first
centenary goal, when China will usher in a moderately
well-off society, and thus it is crucial to maintain stable
economic growth. The keynote of China’s macro policy
for 2020 is basically set for looser fiscal and monetary
policies which focus on stabilizing the overall demand,
so as to handle complex international problems including
trade frictions between China and the United States
more moderately and flexibly. Meanwhile, the structural
reform of China’s one-off energy consumption has been
continuously promoted. With the implementation of policies
and measures including “coal-to-gas”, limitations on the
use of coal and increasingly strict environmental protection
and ecological construction, a long-term, continuous and
steady growth in the natural gas consumption in the future
is expected, thus providing a good growth driver for the
development of the natural gas industry in China.

As China’s economy continues to grow, Taicang City, an
industrial city located in the economic hub of the Yangtze
River Delta and adjacent to Shanghai, will further give
full play to its geographical advantages, so as to promote
the high-quality economic development. With the rapid
development of major transportation infrastructure including
railways, highways and waterways in the region, the
comprehensive transportation system of Taicang City will
be increasingly improved, making Taicang City one of
the few cities in the Yangtze River Delta region with the
comprehensive transportation system with “simultaneous
development of highways, railways and waterways, and
interconnection of rivers and seas”, and further converting
geographical advantages to an economic driving force and
creating enormous growth potential for the energy needs of
local and surrounding cities.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

For Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, major opportunities from
the economic integration of the Yangtze River Delta will
be seized to make future arrangements. With the upgrade
of the economic integration of the Yangtze River Delta to
a national strategy, the Yangtze River Delta region will
become the focus of China’s economic development in
the future, which will support the future development of
Taicang City. Active efforts have been made for Taicang
City, as one of the cities closest to Shanghai, to realize the
goal of “integration into Shanghai”. Driven by the overall
policy of the economic integration of the Yangtze River
Delta, Taicang City keeps up with the industry development
trend and focuses on its development. Taicang has clarified
its effort to accelerate modern industry system construction,
and has located the “1115” industry development target,
namely the annual production value of the high-end
equipment manufacturing industry, the new material
industry and the biopharmaceutical industry respectively
reaching RMB100 billion, RMB100 billion and RMB50
billion, and the annual revenue of the logistics trade and
headquarters economy reaching RMB100 billion.

In 2019, Taicang will launch the “Project Construction
Breakthrough Year” campaign to accelerate the construction
of 100 key projects with a total investment of more than
RMB120 billion, and strived to basically achieve three 100
billion-level targets by 2020. Projects, including Reckitt
Benckiser personal care and health product project, Nike
China Logistics Center (phase Ill), the automobile new
energy field, Wu Zhongxing pharmaceutical harbor, and
aviation industrial park, have been gradually implemented.
Meanwhile, the construction of the scientific education
innovation district, which is centered at Taicang campuses
of Northwestern Polytechnical University and Xi’an
Jiaotong-Liverpool University, will start, and talents and
innovation resources gathered by the two universities
will help provide emerging strategies for future industry
incubation in Taicang.
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In the future, in addition to the arrangements for the Yangtze
River Delta region, the Group will further strategically
develop markets with high growth potential outside East
China. It plans to realize expansion into regions and fields
through acquisition of equity interest or various cooperation
models, so as to expand the business size.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders, customers and partners for
their long-term support for the Group and would also like
to extend my gratitude to the Board, the management and
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the past year. In 2020, let’s work hard together to achieve
further sound business development and generate greater

returns for our investors.

Su Yi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
table sets out certain information about our Directors as at

the date of this annual report:

=S
BPNESERKANL2ESENX  BREN
FRTEF MEBEFATEER=RBUIF
WITES - TRINMBBEARBESETNAF
HERNEOER

Name Age Roles and responsibilities

P Fie BUNEE

Executive Directors

BITES

Ms. Su Yi (Chairman) 47 Overall strategic planning and business direction and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group’s strategy

AL L (EFF) %H#ﬂ&%FﬁWM& B AN B R BE Y
%%ﬁﬂ\

Mr. Du Shaozhou 67 Managing the day-to-day operations of the Group

HARREEE EEAEENAFEE

Ms. Su Wen 44 Assisting the chairman in formulating the overall strategic

planning and business direction of the Group

HELL 168 BN = FE 1 E AN S B B R SR AR 5T 8 M X5 7 R

Mr. Li Jianyi 46 Implementation and monitoring of the Group’s strategic
plans and inter-departmental coordination within
our Group

FR—kE BT RERARENRRE 8 A RE B A%

Non-executive Directors

FUTES

Mr. Xu Lei 51 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

AFEREE FEITIFAITE SRS

Mr. Jin Bo 49 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

DREE [EITIFRITE SRS

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFBITES

Mr. Zhou Qingzu 87 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

FEREE 1T IFNITE B

Mr. Zhu Tong 51 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

PN 2t FETT L IFNITE A B

Mr. Luk Wai Keung 55 Performing roles as an independent non-executive

PEEIRSELE
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Executive Directors

Ms. Su Yi (BRZE), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on 30 June 2016. She was appointed as the
Executive Vice Chairman of the Board on 21 February
2017 and was re-designated as the chairman of the Board
on 19 August 2019. She is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and business direction of the Group and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group's strategy. Ms.
Su has more than 10 years’ experience in computer software
and project management. She worked at the New York City
Housing Authority of the United States of America (the “US”)
from May 2005 to May 2015 and served various positions
including computer specialist (software). She worked on
human resources administration for the City of New York of
the US from November 2002 to May 2005.

Ms. Su obtained a master degree in science from Pace
University in January 2003. She has been certified as a
Project Management Professional (PMP) by the Project
Management Institute since July 2006. She also obtained a
certification for people program at the TOGAF 9 certified
level in December 2015. Ms. Su is the sister of Ms. Su Wen,
an executive Director, and a daughter of Mr. Su Aping
and Ms. Zhu Yaying. Ms. Su is one of the several eligible
beneficiaries of two discretionary trusts of which First
Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited acts as their trustees and
Fung Yu Holdings Limited and Total Honest International
Investment Ltd, each a substantial Shareholder of the
Company, are indirectly wholly owned by it as trustee for

the discretionary trusts.

Mr. Du Shaozhou (#:# /&), aged 67, is the chief executive
officer of the Company and was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. Mr. Du is responsible for
managing the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has
over 45 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
From September 2008 to August 2012, Mr. Du served at
PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited
(FERERAARFABRAF]) as deputy general manager,
deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee,
secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and chairman of
the labour union. From April 1995 to September 2008, Mr.
Du held various senior positions in Shenzhen Petroleum

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EEREREEERE

Industrial Co., Ltd. ORIIEHERBRRRE]) such as deputy
general manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and
chairman of the labour union. From June 1978 to April
1995, he worked at the Ministry of Petroleum Industry of
the PRC (FREIAMIEER) (later known as China National
Petroleum Company and China National Petroleum
Corporation) where he held various positions including
secretary and secretary (deputy division chief level) (BIEZ#
MZE). From December 1975 to June 1978, Mr. Du worked
at the Locomotive Team of Daging Oilfield Construction
Headquarter (KB )M HMZEIEEDHEBAEK). From October
1969 to December 1975, Mr. Du worked at the Liaohe
Oilfield Geophysical Exploration (EJAlHEYRE). Mr.
Du obtained a diploma in Public Administration from Staff
University of Continuing Education of the Party School of
the Central Committee of the CPC (Ff Hrh R BB T ¥ 64K
£ in the PRC in July 1990.

Ms. Su Wen (8 5), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 August 2019. Ms. Su has been the executive
assistant at Argus Holding Corporation, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in the US since January
2019. Ms. Su is responsible for assisting the Chairman in
formulating the business strategies of the Group. Ms. Su has
extensive experience in international trading. She worked as
an export supervisor at Mediterranean Shipping Co. in the
US from June 2005 to December 2008 and an import and
export supervisor at ACT Logistics in the US from January
2009 to October 2009.

Ms. Su obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration, majoring in international business, from
Schiller International University in the US in May 2001.
Ms. Su is the sister of Ms. Su Yi, the chairman of the Board
and an executive Director, and a daughter of Mr. Su Aping
and Ms. Zhu Yaying. Ms. Su is one of the several eligible
beneficiaries of two discretionary trusts, of which First
Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited acts as their trustees, and
Fung Yu Holdings Limited and Total Honest International
Investment Ltd, each a substantial Shareholder of the
Company, are indirectly wholly owned by it as trustee for

the discretionary trusts.
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Mr. Li Jianyi (F#—), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director on 19 August 2019. Mr. Li joined the
Group in November 2013 and has been the investment
controller of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s strategy plans
as well as inter-departmental coordination within the Group.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Li was the chief branch
secretary of the Communist Youth League of Henan Oilfield
and Oil Production First Factory Feiya Company (7 FEfH H
Fm—HREZA A from July 1997 to December 1998. He
worked at Shenzhen Huayou Enterprise Development Co.,
Ltd. (RIIFEREXERERAQTF])

including sales manager, assistant to general manager and

serving several positions

the deputy general manager from December 1998 to June
2006. During June 2006 to March 2010, Mr. Li served as
the deputy general manager of Zhanjiang Shenyang Cage
Techonology Co., Ltd. CEILRFHEER AR AF]) and he
worked at Shenzhen Greenwheel Electric Vehicle Group
Co., Ltd. ORIITEEM A FEEREBEELBABRAF]) from
April 2010 to November 2013 with last position as the
project controller.

Mr. Li graduated with a bachelor degree in management
engineering from Southwest Petroleum University in
July 1997. Mr. Li obtained a master degree of business
administration from Macau University of Science and

Technology in June 2004.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lei (FF&), aged 51, was appointed as a Director on
27 February 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 September 2014. He has over 15 years of
experience in investment and business advisory in the PRC.
Mr. Xu joined Prax Capital Equity Management Co., Ltd.
(BRI EEIR(LB)AMRAT]) in August 2003 and is
currently a managing partner of Prax Capital, responsible for
leading and conducting the fund’s investment activities in
the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
the United States in May 2001 and a Bachelor of Law from
Ningbo University in the PRC in July 1991.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EEREREEERE

Mr. Jin Bo (£38), aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 3 September 2018. Mr. Jin has been the vice
president and secretary of the board of the directors of
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (L
BRZABEREERMHEBRRAF) (“Shanghai Dazhong
Public Utilities”) since May 2017 and February 2017,
respectively. Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities is a
company listed on both the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
stock code 600635 and the Stock Exchange with stock
code 1635 and is a substantial shareholder of the Company
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dazhong (Hong Kong)
International Corporation Limited. Mr. Jin joined Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities in May 2010 as the investment
director and served as a director and the general manager
of Shanghai Dazhong Group Capital Equity Investment Co.,
Ltd. (LBXREEEAREREGRAT),
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities, until September 2015.
From June 2016 to September 2016, Mr. Jin served as the
secretary to the board of directors and assistant to the

a subsidiary of

president of China Grand Automotive Services Co., Ltd. (&
[T B ARG AR 5 A 7)),
Stock Exchange with stock code 600297. Mr. Jin rejoined
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities in October 2016 as the
investment director. Mr. Jin has been an executive director

a company listed on the Shanghai

and the general manager of Shanghai Dazhong Municipal
Development Co., Ltd. (EBRBEHWHRERBR AR since
August 2017. He has also been an executive director and
the general manager of Shanghai Xiangyin Road Tunnel
Construction Development Co., Ltd. (LGB BB E R
RABRAE]) since August 2017.

Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor degree in industrial management
engineering from Shanghai Institute of Building Materials
(EBEEMBITEER) (now known as Tongji University)
in July 1993 and a master of business administration from
China Europe International Business School in September
2008.

Mr. Jin was granted the title of senior economist by Shanghai
Expertise Qualification Review Committee, Economics Series
(Sphere of Urban Construction and Transportation) (/&
REZRI(BHEREABES S REEZRMBBETRERSE
EZEE) in May 2005.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (A1), aged 87, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
He has over 60 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. From October 1996 to October 2000, Mr. Zhou
was a member of the Senior Technical Council of Economic
Advisers (SR ERBMZEE) at China Petroleum and
Petrochemical Engineering Institute (FFEIAAAA(LTHE
9T ®). From July 1994 to July 1997, he was a member of
the Advisory Committee (25X Z% 8 €) of China International
Engineering Consulting Corporation (¥ MRS I/NCID
From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Petroleum Company (Bl HRKARAEDF]) (now known as
China National Petroleum Corporation) as chief economist.
Prior to joining China National Petroleum Corporation,
Mr. Zhou was the head of the planning department of the
Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC from 1979 to
1987. From 1954 to 1979, Mr. Zhou held multiple positions
within Xinjiang Petroleum Administration Bureau (%758
EI2/D), including chief economist and head of the planning
division and deputy head of Xinjiang Petroleum Bureau,
head of the planning division of Karamay Mining Bureau
(A EKIER D), and head of Urumgi Petrochemical Plant
(5BARBAE). From 1952 to 1954, Mr. Zhou worked at
Shaanxi Yanchang Oil Field (BRPEEE K )MEE) as an accounting
clerk and secretary.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Shanghai Institute of Finance and
Economics (now known as Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics) in the PRC in August 1952 and was
awarded professor-level senior economist in September
1989 by China National Petroleum Company.
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EEREREEERE

Mr. Zhu Tong (5:#%), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 13 July 2017. He is currently a
professor and doctoral advisor at the Research Institute of
Thermal and Environmental Engineering (RAEEERIRIR TA2H 5%
FfT), School of Mechanical Engineering (#2585 TF2ZFt) of
Tongji University (EEARZ). Mr. Zhu has co-authored teaching
materials relating to engineering thermodynamics and heat
transfer. His fields of research include distributed energy resources
and high efficiency energy utilization, and he is currently involved
in research projects relating to natural gas, renewable energy
and low emission micro-turbine technology (A &m (K HE
HHRKE). Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor degree, a master degree,
and a doctorate in thermal engineering from Harbin Institute of
Technology (FaERE T3 KZ) in July 1991, March 1994 and July
1997 respectively. Mr. Zhu was also a visiting scholar at Helmut
Schmidt University in Hamburg, Germany, from November
2001 to November 2002. Mr. Zhu currently serves as a council
member of each of the Chinese Society of Power Engineering
(“CSPE") (FEIENHTI2E®) and the China Electronic Energy-
Saving Technology Association (1B FEFRER AT 17 &). Mr. Zhu
is also a member of both the Boiler Professional Committee of
CSPE (TEIB N TIZLSMEFREZEZEE) and the Cogeneration
Professional Committee of the Chinese Society for Electrical
Engineering (FEIBEH T RE2GMEEXLER).

Mr. Luk Wai Keung (FEf#3&), aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2015. Mr. Luk has over 20 years of working experience in
the accounting and held senior positions in a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong. He has been an executive
director of Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 776) from T August 2016. Mr. Luk was the executive
director of Sun International Resources Limited (Stock Code:
8029) from December 2015 to July 2016. From 1996 to
2015, Mr. Luk worked at several companies in accounting

and finance area.
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Mr. Luk graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science in Engineering in Hong Kong in
November 1986 and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Australian Graduate School of
Management of the University of New South Wales in
Australia in May 1994. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2014 and, a Chartered Financial Analyst at the Association
for Investment Management and Research since September
1999.

The Directors’ interests in shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations, if any, within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2019 are disclosed in the “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares and debentures” section of the Report of
the Directors on pages 66 to 71 of this Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The following table sets out certain information about our

senior management personnel as at the date of this annual
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report:

Name Age Current Position

P FiR BWATRL

Mr. Xu Xihua 64 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RBELLE KERARBIBERE

Mr. Yuan Qing 45 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RELE AR RAREBIBKRE

Mr. Ng Chi Kit 46 Chief financial officer and company secretary of
the Company

REGEE ARRARERARME

Mr. Zhou Jihui 57 Deputy general manager of the Company
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xihua (%R 8%), aged 64, joined the Group in May
2002 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for sales and marketing of our Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu gained experience in
operational management of natural gas enterprise from his
employment at Taicang Suchuang Pipeline Liquified Gas
Engineering Company Limited (KE&ABIEERILRITIE
BMR 27, where he was a manager from January 1999
to April 2002, responsible for the overall management of
operations, safety, infrastructures and the supply of piped
liquified gas. From August 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Xu
was the chief officer of the enterprise safety division and
the infrastructures division ((RREEEEIEK) of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (& /NT&EREIE &%
E Q7R (now known as Suchuang Group), where he was
responsible for the internal management and security,
infrastructure and property maintenance of the company.
Mr. Xu was employed as a telecommunications worker and
later promoted to the foreman at Lanzhou Railway Bureau
from December 1972 to December 1986.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Correspondence Institute
Affiliated to the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (R #£ A RER IR KK L) in the PRC through its
distance learning programme in June 1990 specializing in
economics management. He has been a certified technician
of Suzhou Human Resources Bureau since December 2002
and a certified assistant government relations advisor (B}
B THD) of the Ministry of Railway of the PRC since
July 1991. In addition, Mr. Xu received the Advanced
Productivity Worker award (JLiEEE(T{E)#E) from the
Lanzhou Railway Bureau in March 1990 and the Taicang
Outstanding Communist Party Member award in June 1999.
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Mr. Yuan Qing (R%), aged 45, joined the Group in
August 2004 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang
Natural Gas, responsible for overseeing the operation of the
production department. Mr. Yuan has extensive management
experience. He joined Taicang Natural Gas in August
2004 as a manager of the production division, responsible
for gas supply service and scheduling, manufacturing
operations and safety management, and was promoted to
deputy general manager in July 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yuan was head of general office of Suchuang
Group from January to July 2004, responsible for internal
operation, regulatory compliance and external relationships.
From 1993 to 2004, Mr. Yuan served in the People’s
Liberation Army in Beijing Military Region (Jt RE[&) and
retried from the People’s Liberation Army with the rank of
captain. He graduated from China People’s Liberation Army
International Relations College (FFEIA R E BEREEE
B7) in July 1999 specialising in Optic Intelligence Terminal
Processing (2B IKEEIE) and from Correspondence
Institute of the Party School of the Central Committee of the
CPC (A RERHZZERT) in the PRC specialising in law
through its distance learning programme in December 2001.
He was awarded the qualification of engineer in June 2009.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#), aged 46, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company,
responsible for the oversight of the Group’s financial and
accounting operations, as well as company secretarial
and internal control function. Mr. Ng has over 17 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Ng has been
an independent non-executive director of Great Wall
Motor Company Limited (Stock Code: 2333) since 11 May
2017. Since December 2010, Mr. Ng has been a non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee
of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 951),
responsible for oversight of the financial management and
reporting. From January 2010 to December 2010, he served
as the chief financial officer and the company secretary
of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited, responsible for
oversight of financial and accounting operations, company
secretarial and internal control function. From March 2000
to December 2009, Mr. Ng worked in the Assurance and
Advisory Business Services Department of Ernst & Young.
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Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in
November 1997. Mr. Ng has been an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2003 and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2006.

Mr. Zhou Jihui (E#1E), aged 57, joined the Group in April
2014 and is the deputy general manager of the Company,
responsible for the Group’s strategic development planning
and managing the Group’s construction projects. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has gained extensive
experience in the field of urban gas. From July 1985 to
March 2009, Mr. Zhou worked at Southwest Municipal
Engineering Design & Research Institute of China (FEIT
TP m R TR & AR 2 A]) where he held various
positions including assistant engineer, engineer, senior
engineer and chief gas engineer, responsible for urban gas
design, consultation and technology management. From
March 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou was at PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited (FAHE
mARARFNAAERALF) where he held various positions
including CNG chief technology officer responsible for
CNG engineering and technology management, the director
of the engineering technology department responsible for
the overall management of engineering and technology
operations, and the director of the information technology
department responsible for technology and information
technology management. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering (¥ T ¥A 28
BEfLETF2) from Chongging Institute of Architecture and
Engineering (EERZETI22 ) (now known as Chongqing
University (EEAZ)) in the PRC in July 1985. Mr. Zhou
has been a certified senior engineer from December 1997
and a member of the Subcommittee of High Pressure Fuel
Gas Cylinders for Automobile of the National Gas Cylinder
Standardisation Technical Committee (% BIFRE 2L il
ZESHEASERHRBORNEZR®)
Committee of Compressed Natural Gas of the China Gas
Society (FEIEATREBGNRDEBEBBRAREXEZES)
since September 2011 and October 2011, respectively.

and the Professional
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Industry Overview

The growth of the world’s economy and the international
trade was slow down in 2019. Accelerated accumulation
of risks — continuous escalating in global trade frictions,
increasingly-relaxed global monetary policies of economies,
continuous fluctuations in international oil prices, as well
as geopolitics risks, presented significant challenges for
the world’s economic growth. China saw a relatively rapid
economic growth in 2019, but trade frictions between
China and the United States had put significant pressure
on the import and export trade and negatively affected
various industries in China. However, with the reduction
in the reserve-deposit ratio by the People’s Bank of China
in September of last year and the adoption of measures to
encourage domestic consumption, we believe that this will
be beneficial for the sustainable growth of China’s macro
economy in the future. The year 2019 marks the 70th
anniversary of the founding of China. Facing a number of
challenges, China’s overall economy “grew steadily”, due
to economic stimulus measures implemented by the PRC
government in due course. Driven by China’s economy
which was stable and moving in a positive direction and
national policies to encourage natural gas exploration,
development and import, the natural gas consumption in
China increased steadily in 2019. According to the statistical
data of the NDRC, the natural gas consumption in 2019
reached 306.7 billion m?, representing an increase of 26.4
billion m* or a year-on-year growth of 9.4%.

The energy profile of China is in a comprehensive
adjustment period, and promoting green economy
transformation is one of key national development strategies.
Pollution control was thoroughly conducted, and the task
of three major structure adjustments was tougher, but the
state confirmedly carried out the transformation to a green
economy, with unabated efforts. In May 2019, the Measures
for the Supervision and Administration of Fair Opening
of Oil and Gas Pipeline Network Facilities were officially
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published, which promoted the fair opening of oil and
gas pipeline network facilities. The formally establishment
of national pipeline network companies on 9 December
2019 is one of the most significant and fundamental reform
measures in the natural gas system reform in recent years,
and will give new impetus to the whole natural gas industry
chain in China, and promote the resources supplied by
many companies through multiple channels in the upstream
and establishment of a pricing mechanism in the natural
gas market. Urban gas companies will face the diversified
supplies of pipeline gas, the diversified natural gas resources
and the diversified prices. We believe that with the progress
in the overall reform of the industry, there will be new
growth opportunities for the natural gas market. With the
continuous implementation of domestic “coal-to-gas”
policies, continuous rationalization of all processes in the
natural gas industry and steady macroeconomic growth of
China, the data of NDRC show that during the year of 2019,
China’s apparent consumption of natural gas reached should
be 306.7 billion m?, representing a year-on-year increase
of 9.4%. The growth rate of natural gas consumption was

slower than the previous year but still kept growing rapidly.

Energy is a source of driving force for economic
development as well as a driver for social civilization and
progress. When the macro economy is facing a significant
challenge of transformation and upgrade, the energy
transition has become an important topic at the national
strategy level. The natural gas, as the sole low-carbon
and clean energy among fossil energies, is becoming an
important driver for global energy transformation. In the
World and China Energy Outlook 2050, it is predicted that
China will experience a period of rapid growth in demand
for natural gas by 2040, with the newly increased demands
mainly from industry, resident, electricity and other sectors,
and from 2040 to 2050, China will experience a period of
steady growth in the natural gas demand.
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Business Overview

As at 31 December 2019, as the leading piped natural gas
supplier and operator in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province,
China, the Group had a natural gas pipeline network
totaling 634 km covering all major regions in Taicang City
and over 90% (in terms of length) of the natural gas pipeline
network in Taicang City.

In 2019, Taicang City fully integrated into Shanghai, as well
as the Yangtze River Delta integration and actively promoted
the connection to Shanghai. Efforts were made to extend
Shanghai-Jiamin Line northward, with the completion and
opening of the Shanghai-Nantong Railway (Phase I) and the
accelerated construction of the Shanghai-Nantong Railway
(Phase II). In addition, active efforts were made to maintain
alignment with Shanghai industrial map and proactively
integrate into Shanghai Honggiao Central Business District
for deepening the construction of the Jiading-Kunshan-
Taicang collaborative innovation rim. The data in the
Government Work Report of Taicang City 2020 show that,
in 2019, Taicang City recorded the gross regional product
of RMB141.0 billion (estimated, similarly hereinafter),
representing a year-on-year increase of 13.7%; the general
public budget revenue of RMB16.3 billion, representing
an increase of 15.8%; total investment of RMB40.0 billion
in fixed assets; and ranked seventh in China’s Top 100
Counties (Cities) in terms of comprehensive economic

competitiveness.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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For Taicang, the nearest county-level city to Shanghai,
constructing roads which are “accessible and connected to
the Yangtze River Delta” is an important method of using
the advantage of traffic location to promote the high-quality
economic development. According to the Multimodal
Transport Corridor Planning of Yangtze River Economic
Zone of Jiangsu Province (2018-2035),

that there will be 3 new high speed railway projects, 1

it is planned

interurban railway project and 1 port railway construction
project in Taicang, and the Taicang Station in the Shanghai-
Nantong Railway is planned to be a comprehensive junction
station, which is conductive to integrate Taicang into the
group of cities in the Yangtze River Delta. In addition, the
Taicang Port is an important part of Shanghai International
Shipping Center as designated by the state, the main
container port, the transshipment hub for transport by river
and sea, as well as the sole riverside natural harbour in
Jiangsu. As at the end of 2019, Taicang was ranked first in
the province, tenth in China and 30th in the World’s Top
100 Container Ports and became the No.1 foreign trade port
along the Yangtze River, the port with the biggest number
of foreign trade routes along the Yangtze River, and the
port with the largest number of incoming and outgoing
international navigation ships in the province. Taicang,
the sole riverside city near Shanghai in Jiangsu, boasted
uniquely built-in advantages. At present, the government of
Taicang is planning the construction of “two regions and
two cities” — a technology innovation industrial park near
Shanghai, a riverside modern logistics and trade base, a
modern garden city model, and a Sino-German city model,
under a grand pattern and with significant investment.
The favorable macroeconomic environment and great
growth potential of Taicang City provides the Group with
an excellent business environment and strong support for
business development, which is conducive to the steady
growth of the Group.
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On 9 September 2019, through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Taicang Natural Gas, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with Shanghai Jieling and Tengxu Energy to
acquire the 100% equity interest in Tengxu Energy from
Shanghai Jieling, at a total consideration of RMB18.0
million. Tengxu Energy also became an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. Tengxu Energy mainly
engages in contract energy management and development
and management distributed energy systems project, through
its own advanced technologies.

Such acquisition is the downstream expansion of the
exclusive right of natural gas of the Group in Taicang
and supports the Group’s effort in developing itself into
a comprehensive energy and environmental protection
enterprise. Currently, Tengxu Energy fully maximizes its
own strengths to establish the distributed project in Taicang
and has entered into strategic cooperation agreements with
towns on distributed energy and smart energy, which leads
the Group towards the development of diversified energy

services.

Pursuant to the Three-year Action Plan for Taicang Port
Green Port Construction (2018-2020) K AB B @O ZE
=F778)51 &l (2018—20204))), through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Taicang Natural Gas, the Group entered into
the Construction and Operation Management Cooperation
Agreement of Taicang Port Phase IV Petroleum and Natural
Gas Stations X727 I8 HH HNSRUL 2R BIE 2 B IR & 1E 1
#)) with Taicang Port Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
(“Taicang Port Investment & Development”), supporting the
construction and operation of the petroleum and natural gas
stations for Taicang Port Phase IV. This will help Taicang
Port build a low-carbon, green and environmentally friendly
port, while further expand the Group’s business to the fast-

growing Taicang Port.
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ADJUSTMENT OF NATURAL GAS PRICE

The Group has been in good strategic relation with
PetroChina Company Limited for more than 10 years,
and put into operation the city gateway station which is
connected with Sichuan-East Transmission Pipeline of
Sinopec in November 2015, further ensuring sufficient gas-
supply resources in areas where the Group carries out main
businesses. The purchase price of natural gas of the Group is
determined by NDRC according to the type of end users and
gateway station prices. During the Year, the Group's average
unit purchase price for natural gas (exclusive of VAT) (which
is calculated by dividing the total natural gas purchase cost
by the total natural gas purchase volume for the relevant
period) was RMB2.14/m*. The maximum end-user price at
which the Group could sell piped natural gas to the end-
users is determined by the Taicang Price Bureau. The prices
for industrial and commercial end-users are generally higher
than those for residential users and other users. During the
Year, the Group’s average unit selling price for natural gas
(exclusive of VAT) was RMB2.69/m>.

Natural Gas Sale and Transmission Business

Taicang City, our main operating area, is a major industrial
county-level city in Jiangsu Province, and is adjacent to
affluent cities in Eastern China, such as Suzhou, Kunshan,
Changshu and Shanghai, with remarkable geographic
advantages available, creating the Shanghai-Taicang one-
city effect together with Shanghai. The dynamic economic
and industrial development has brought unceasingly
increasing industrial and commercial users of natural gas
to the Group. As of 31 December 2019, the Group has 595
commercial and industrial users, and approximately 250,000
residential users in Taicang, representing an increase of
11 commercial and industrial users and an increase of
approximately 10,000 residential users as compared to
those as at 31 December 2018. During the Year, revenue
generated from our sale and transmission of natural gas
business was approximately RMB1,208.4 million, up by
18.6% compared with the same period in 2018, accounting
for 90.8% of the Group’s total revenue from contracts with
customers. Such increase was primarily due to an increase

in the volume of natural gas sold during the Year.
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As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 5 CNG/
LNG filling stations,
Sichuan, 1 station in Taicang and 1 station in Suzhou. 1
LNG/CNG filling station in each of Sichuan and Taicang
are under preparation and will be completed by the end of
2020.

including 3 stations in Guangyuan,

Natural Gas Pipeline Construction and
Connection Business

The Group’s natural gas pipeline construction and
connection business includes the construction and
installation of urban gas pipeline networks, as well as the
connection of the networks to the end-user pipelines for
property developers and new industrial and commercial
users. During the Year, revenue generated from natural
gas pipeline construction amounted to RMB112.0 million,
representing an increase of 45.6% compared to RMB76.9
million for the corresponding period of last year, which
accounted for 8.4% of total revenue from contracts with
customers during the Year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to more construction projects completed during

the Year.

Developing into a Comprehensive Energy and
Environmental Protection Enterprise

Distributed energy resource, low-carbon and energy-saving
technologies are core elements of global energy reform.
At present, natural-gas distributed energy resource and
environmental protection industries of China are still in
their infancy. In order to gain an advantage in the market,
on 9 September 2019,

owned subsidiary, Taicang Natural Gas, entered into an

the Group, through its wholly

acquisition agreement with Shanghai Jieling and Tengxu
Energy to acquire the 100% equity interest in Tengxu Energy
from Shanghai Jieling, at a total consideration of RMB18.0
million. Tengxu Energy also became an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. Tengxu Energy mainly
engages in contract energy management and development
and management distributed energy systems project, through
its own advanced technologies.
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Such acquisition is the downstream expansion of the
exclusive right of natural gas of the Group in Taicang
and supports the Group’s effort in developing itself into
a comprehensive energy and environmental protection
enterprise. Currently, Tengxu Energy fully maximizes its
own strengths to establish the distributed project in Taicang
and has entered into strategic cooperation agreements with
towns on distributed energy and smart energy, which leads
the Group towards the development of diversified energy

services.

On 8 January 2020, the Group and Shanghai Fosun Tourism,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fosun Tourism entered into
a non-binding Strategic Cooperation Framework Agreement
to establish cooperative relationships in relation to, among
others, the provision of clean energy for tourist destination
projects of Fosun Tourism and its subsidiaries for 5 years
from the date of the Strategic Cooperation Framework
Agreement. The strategic cooperation between the Company
and Shanghai Fosun Tourism will create synergy between
the parties to explore the feasibility and cooperation in the
sectors where tourist project and clean energy investments

are made.

Pursuant to the Three-year Action Plan for Taicang Port
Green Port Construction (2018-2020) K KE B EH O ZR
=%178)5t3 (2018—2020%))), through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Taicang Natural Gas, the Group entered into
the Construction and Operation Management Cooperation
Agreement of Taicang Port Phase IV Petroleum and Natural
Gas Stations KABBEHINEMRMZRAELEES
YE#&)) with Taicang Port Investment & Development,
supporting the construction and operation of the petroleum
and natural gas stations for Taicang Port Phase IV. This
will help Taicang Port build a low-carbon, green and
environmentally friendly port, while further expand the
Group’s business to the fast-growing Taicang Port.
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Significant Events During the Year

On 19 August 2019, Ms. Zhu Yaying resigned as an
executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company;
Mr. Su Aping resigned as the executive Director of the
Company and ceased to serve as the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company but remained as a consultant of the Group. Ms. Su
Yi, an executive Director, was appointed as the chairman of
the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company, and a member of the Remuneration Committee;
meanwhile, Mr. Li Jianyi and Ms. Su Wen were respectively
appointed as executive Directors of the Company.

Ms. Su Yi worked as a computer specialist of New York
City Housing Authority of the United States of America, the
Executive Vice Chairman of the Board at Taicang Natural
Gas and Suchuang Gas. She has more than 10 years’
experience in computer software and project management.
Mr. Li Jianyi, holds an MBA degree from Macau University
of Science and Technology. He worked as a deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Huayou Enterprise Development
Limited CRIIZEHEEERAIRAQA]), a project controller of
Shenzhen Greenwheel Electric Vehicle Group Co., Ltd., (%
YITabEs T A #ELRESEEBEFMRAF]) and investment
director of Suchuang Gas. He has rich experience in the
industry. Ms. Su Wen holds bachelor degree in business
administration, majoring in international business from
Schiller International University. She worked as the export
director of Mediterranean Shipping Co., import and
export director of ACT Logistics, executive assistant of
Argus Holding Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Suchuang Gas, and otherwise. She has extensive experience
in international trade.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue

Our total revenue increased by 20.6% from RMB1,102.8
million in 2018 to RMB1,329.9 million in 2019. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue
from sales and transmission of natural gas business and
revenue from construction and connection of gas pipeline
business as a result of an increase in volume of natural gas

sold and scale of construction completed during the Year.

Gross profit

Our gross profit increased by 15.7% from RMB214.8 million
in 2018 to RMB248.5 million in 2019. The increase was
primarily due to an increase in gross profit from sale and
transmission of natural gas businesses and gross profit from
construction and connection of gas pipelines business. The
decrease in the Group’s gross profit margin from 19.5%
to 18.7% was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit
margin of sale and transmission of natural gas business as
a result of slight increase in average unit purchase price of

natural gas during the Year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains decreased by 61.8% from RMB27.2
million in 2018 to RMB10.4 million in 2019, The decrease
was primarily due to the foreign exchange gain and fair
value gains of financial assets and equity investments
recognised in 2018, which both recorded loss in 2019.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by 3.4% from
RMB85.1 million in 2018 to RMB82.2 million in 2019,
which was mainly due to the net effect of an increase in
staff salaries and wages, such increase was in line with the
Group’s business expansion and a decrease in share options

expenses.
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Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by 123.6% from RMB5.5
million in 2018 to RMB12.3 million in 2019. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in weighted average

borrowing balances in 2019.

Share of profits of associates

Our share of profits of associates decreased by 91.8% from
RMB7.1 million in 2018 to RMB580,000 in 2019. The
significant decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in revenue of natural gas heating business of one of our
associated companies in 2019.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 15.1% from RMB42.5
million in 2018 to RMB48.9 million in 2019, primarily
attributable to our increased taxable income for the year in
2018. Our effective tax rate increased from 29.1% in 2018
to 39.1% in 2019.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

In 2019, although the Group’s natural gas business
recorded a year-on-year gross profit growth of 15.7%,
profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
approximately RMB70.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 28.8% from approximately RMB98.6 million
for 2018. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
loss in fair value of equity investments and impairment of
goodwill. After excluding non-recurring profits or losses,
the core operating net profit attributable to owner of the
parent was approximately RMB93.4 million (2018: RMB83.1
million), representing an increase of 12.4% over last year.
(Non-recurring profits or losses included equity investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
impairment of goodwill and gain on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment).
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB441,656,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB389,766,000) of which cash and cash equivalents
were approximately RMB367,671,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB413,374,000). Total borrowings were
approximately RMB348,078,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB158,010,000). The amount of bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2019 were denominated in
RMB and Hong Kong dollar, and bore interest ranging from
2.50% to 6.08% per annum. Except for RMB242,233,000
which are repayable within one year, the rest of balances
are not repayable within one year. Please refer to note 43 of
the financial statements on the extent to which borrowings
are at fixed interest rates.

As at 31
ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 1.86
(31 December 2018: 2.04) and gearing ratio (total
borrowings/total assets) was approximately 15.3% (31

December 2019, the Group’s current

December 2018: approximately 7.7%). The Group has
sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet
its commitments and working capital requirements. This
strong cash position enables the Group to explore potential
investment and business development opportunities to
expand its business in China.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As all of the Group’s businesses are situated in the PRC,
substantially all of its income and expenses are denominated
in RMB. The exchange fluctuation during the year mainly
arose from appreciation of RMB against the US dollar kept
in Hong Kong, and such cash was generated from the fund
raising activities of the Group in the past few years. The
Group will closely monitor the interest rate and exchange
rate of the market and make appropriate responses when
necessary. Please refer to note 43 of the financial statements
on foreign currency risk.
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Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: nil).

Charge on assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting

periods are as follows:
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Capital commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the year:
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Operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2018

The Group leased certain of its property and motor vehicles
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for motor
vehicles were with terms of 12 months or less. Leases for
property were for terms ranging between one and three

years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:
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PROSPECTS

Looking back to 2019, in the complicated and changeable
international and domestic environment, China’s economy
grew steadily as a whole. As the energy transformation has
become an important issue at the national strategic level,
the natural gas industry has ushered in a golden period
of development. According to the statistical data of the
National Energy Administration, the consumption of natural
gas in China in 2019 reached 306.7 billion m’, representing
an increase of 26.4 billion m*® or a year-on-year growth of
9.4%. The increase in consumption was mainly attributable
to continuous growth in foreign trade in Mainland China,
demand for gas driven by industrial growth and demand
of residential and industrial users for natural gas further
bolstered by comprehensive implementation by the central
government of the “shift from coal to natural gas” project in
Beijing, Tianjin, and Hebei region, the Yangtze River Delta
and the Pearl River Delta.
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The energy consumption was effectively controlled, with
the continuous deepening of the energy consumption
revolution, continuous change of energy use, gradual
acceleration of the China’s process of using clean and low-
carbon energy, continuous optimization of the product type
mix, and a larger proportion of clean energy consumption
with high efficiency and low pollution. As China ushered
in a new era for economic development, it entered into a
new stage of energy development, but there will be a long
way to go for energy transformation and reform, with the
prominent problem of structural overcapacity in production
of traditional energy, the more arduous task of substitution
of clean energy and more pressure on energy conservation
and consumption reduction. It takes considerable efforts
to achieve high-quality economic development, further
improve the efficiency of energy resources development and
utilization, effectively control the total energy consumption
and accomplish the target of reducing the energy
consumption per unit of GDP by more than 15% under the
“13th Five-Year”. In order to seize business opportunities
arising out of from energy revolution, the Group has
gradually shifted its business focus to develop from a piped
gas company to a comprehensive energy and environmental
protection enterprise. In addition to continuing to strengthen
its core natural gas business, the Group will further develop
distributed energy and energy conservation and emission
reduction services and explore energy businesses in different
fields.
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In 2020, Taicang will seize the great opportunity of the
Yangtze River Delta integration to make arrangement for the
future. As the Yangtze River Delta integration becomes a
national strategy, the Yangtze River Delta will become the
focus of China’s economic development in the future, which
will also give impetus to the future development of Taicang.
Taicang, as one of the cities closest to Shanghai, has actively
realized the goal of “integrating into Shanghai”. In October
2018, at the Shanghai-Taicang Coordinated Development
Conference, a total of 35 projects were contracted,
including strategic cooperation agreements, transportation
planning projects and industrial projects. The construction
of Taicang South Station and Taicang Station has started. In
the future, it will be an intersection of Shanghai-Nantong
Railway, South Yanjiang Railway, the proposed North
Yanjiang Railway and Suzhou-Wuxi-Changzhou Intercity
Railway, which will lead Taicang into the era of “high-speed
railway”. Meanwhile, with the connection to the extension
of Jiamin Line, an urban railway line of Shanghai to form
a “5+1” rail transit network, Taicang will become one of
the gateway cities in the metropolitan region centered at
Shanghai in the future, and will provide strong support for
talents from Shanghai, thus forming new room for urban

development.

While being driven by the Yangtze River Delta integration
policy, Taicang keeps up with the industry development
trend and focuses on its development. Taicang has clarified
its effort to accelerate modern industry system construction,
and has located the “1115” industry development target,
namely the annual production value of the high-end
equipment manufacturing industry, the new material
industry and the biopharmaceutical industry respectively
reaching RMB100 billion, RMB100 billion and RMB50
billion, and the annual revenue of the logistics trade
and headquarters economy reaching RMB100 billion.
In 2020, Taicang will launch the “Project Construction
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Breakthrough Year” campaign to accelerate the construction
of 100 key projects with a total investment of more than
RMB120 billion, and strive to basically achieve three 100
billion-level targets by 2020. Projects, including Reckitt
Benckiser personal care and health product project, Nike
China Logistics Center (phase Ill), the automobile new
energy field, Wu Zhongxing pharmaceutical harbor, and
aviation industrial park, have been gradually implemented.
Meanwhile, the construction of the scientific education
innovation district, which is centered at Taicang campuses
of Northwestern Polytechnical University and Xi‘an Jiaotong-
Liverpool University, will start, and talents and innovation
resources gathered by the two universities will help provide
emerging strategies for future industry incubation in Taicang.

2020 is the key year for securing a decisive victory in
building a moderately prosperous society in all respects
and implementing the “13th Five-Year Plan”, when keeping
stable economic growth is crucial. It is also the target year
for the Three-year Plan on Defending the Blue Sky. Looking
forward to 2020, China’s macro policies will basically
be set, with looser fiscal and monetary policies focusing
on stabilizing the overall demand, so that it will be more
moderate and flexible in responding to Sino-US trade
frictions and other complex international issues. China’s
macro economy is expected to improve despite pressure
arising out of the outbreak of COVID-19 at the end of 2019.
Driven by environmental protection factors, the natural
gas demand in China will continue to grow rapidly. It is
believed that with great support from favorable national
policies, the natural gas industry of China will usher in a
better development period. Suchuang Gas will seize the
opportunity, and under the leading from our new Chairman,
with the changing from oil to gas generator reform and
the opportunity of economic development in the Yangtze
River Delta, vertically integrate its business, expand its
integration with international markets, actively expand and
extend the industrial chain, strive to realize upstream and
downstream integration in the long-term planning, and
accelerate the development pace of comprehensive energy

and environmental protection enterprises.
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Human resources and employees’ remuneration

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of
404 (31 December 2018: 371) staff members in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the United States.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees
amounted to approximately RMB56.2million. The Group
sought to further strengthen staff training by offering focused
training programmes and study tours to management and
professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the distribution
and sale of piped natural gas business to its staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group
also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated to their work and to
leverage their capabilities in serving customers.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, the Board may from
time to time pay to the Shareholders interim dividends,
half-yearly or at other suitable intervals to be settled by the
Board any dividend which may be payable at a fixed rate
or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified
by the financial conditions and the profits of the Company.
The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the
discretion of the Board and must be approved at a general
meeting of the Shareholders. In addition, no dividends shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

In accordance with the applicable requirements of the
Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, no dividend shall be declared or paid
otherwise than out of profits. No distribution or dividend
may be paid to the Shareholders out of the share premium
account unless immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in

the ordinary course of business.
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The Board shall consider, including but not limited to, the

following factors before the declaration and payment of
dividends:

(a)

(h)

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance
and conditions and liquidity position;

the Shareholder’s interests;

the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;

general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have any impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Company; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between

meeting the Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital

management with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board

will continue to review the Dividend Policy and reserve the

right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend

and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time.

ISERIPSE
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TR
TEERRE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) since
the listing of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) (the
“Listing”) on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015 (the
“Listing Date”). The key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are outlined later in this

annual report.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions
and monitors business and performance. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees, namely the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), (together, the “Board
The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective

Committees”).

terms of reference.
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Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine members, consisting of four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as set out below:

Fxecutive Drrectors
Ms. Su Yi (Chairman)
Mr. Du Shaozhou
Ms. Su Wen

Mr. Li Jianyi

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Jin Bo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu

Mr. Zhu Tong

Mr. Luk Wai Keung

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
16 to 23 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors and that Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su
Wen are sisters and are daughters of Mr. Su Aping and Ms.
Zhu Yaying, of which Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying
have jointly own and operate a number of companies, the
Board members do not have any family, financial, business
or other material/relevant relationship among themselves,
and between the Chairman and the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.
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The Company has also complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors on his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Board meeting

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for

regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or Board
Committee members at least three days before the meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or Board Committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to
include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time

after the date on which the meeting is held.

During the Year, the Board held 9 Board meetings.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee

Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and
Board Committee meetings held up during the Year is set
out as follows. During the year ended 31 December 2019,

the Company convened an annual general meeting.
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Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee general
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EZ® #EKZEE® R4ZRE FMZRE KR
Name of directors EEMS EE B - B BEAE
Executive Directors HITEZR
Ms. Su Yi (Chairman) BELL (2E) 79 NATER  NATER  NATER 0/1
Mr. Du Shaozhou HRELE 99 NATER NATER  NATER 71
Ms. Su Wen HELL
(appointed on 19 August 2019)  (R2019F8H
19HEZ(T) 34 NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Mr.Li Jianyi Fr—%4
(appointed on 19 August 2019)  (R2019F8H
19HEZ(T) 44 NATER NATER NATER NATER
Mr. Su Aping EAORS S
(Chairman) (resigned on (/&) (R2019%
19 August 2019) 8A19HFT) 35 NIA TER 22 NATER 11
Ms. Zhu Yaying RLETE
(resigned on 19 August 2019)  (K2019F
8A19AFE) 25 NATER  NATER 22 0/1
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Xu Lei fFELE 8/9 22 NATNER  NATER 0/1
Mr. Jin Bo EREE 69 NATER NATER  NATER 0/1
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu FEREE 3/9 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/1
Mr. Luk Wai Keung BERELE 6/9 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/1
Mr. Zhu Tong K RE 5/9 22 NATER  NATER 01
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Audit Committee

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises four
members, three of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. Zhu Tong and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and one of them is a non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Xu Lei. Mr. Zhou Qingzu, the
Company’s independent non-executive Director, has been
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr.
Luk Wai Keung possesses the appropriate professional

qualifications required under the Listing Rules.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board of the appointment
and removal of the external auditors, review financial
statements and review and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee has access to independent professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function, and with the senior
management and auditors of the Company reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, the risk management and internal control
system and financial reporting matters. It also reviewed the
financial statements of the Company, the Company’s interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2019 and the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the

above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, two of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Luk Wai Keung and Mr. Zhou Qingzu,
and one of them is an executive Director, namely, Ms. Su
Yi (replacing Ms. Zhu Yaying since 19 August 2018). Mr.
Luk Wai Keung, the Company’s independent non-executive
Director, has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
access to independent professional advice, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board as to the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, in which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman
of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other

executive Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Company and the remuneration
of Directors and senior management and made

recommendation to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members
at the above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Nomination Committee

During the Year, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, one of them is an executive Director,
namely Ms. Su Yi (replacing Mr. Su Aping since 19
August 2019), and two of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Luk Wai Keung and Mr.
Zhou Qingzu. Ms. Su Yi (replacing Mr. Su Aping since 19
August 2019) has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has
access to professional advice, if required, and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend

them to the Board for adoption.

NOMINATION POLICY

The company secretary of the Company shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also put forward candidates who are not nominated
by Board members. The factors which would be used as
reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for director include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board
member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and made recommendation to the

Board.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee members at
the above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company shall
establish comprehensive corporate governance practices and
procedures. During the Year, the Board has:

(1) established and reviewed the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company as well as made

relevant recommendations;

(2) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous

development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of
the Company regarding the compliance of relevant
legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) established, reviewed and monitored code of conduct

for Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewed as to whether the Company has complied
with the CG Code and made necessary disclosures in

the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separated
and performed by different individuals. The chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Ms. Su Yi (replacing
Mr. Su Aping since 19 August 2019) and Mr. Du Shaozhou
respectively with distinct responsibilities. The chairman of
the Board is responsible for overall strategic planning and
overseeing the general corporate, financial and compliance
affairs of the Group. The chief executive officer is primarily
responsible for the strategic decision making and the
management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - TERM OF
APPOINTMENT

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are not appointed for a specific term of
more than three years.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Any new Director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company after appointment.
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall than be
eligible for re-election.

Any new

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
(the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer”

code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.
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Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the Model Code during the Year. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance
of the Model Code by the senior management of the Group
up to the date of annual report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company updates the Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a
summary of training received by the Directors during the
Year is as follows:
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Type of Continuous
Professional
Development
Programmes

Name of Directors BEML HEEEERAEES
Executive Directors HiTES

Ms. Su Yi BRZL A B
Mr. Du Shaozhou AR E A, B
Ms. Su Wen (appointed on BELL (R2019F8/19HEZ(E)

19 August 2019) A, B
Mr. Li Jianyi (appointed on FEEE (R2019F8A19HEZ(T)

19 August 2019) A B
Mr. Su Aping (resigned on 19 August 2019) &M 54 (R20194F 8519 HFFF) A, B
Ms. Zhu Yaying (resigned on 19 August 2019) KB+ (R2019F8 419 HFHT) A, B
Non-executive Directors FUITES
Mr. Xu Lei AFERE A B
Mr. Jin Bo SREE A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Zhou Qingzu AEEEE A, B
Mr. Zhu Tong K EHE A B
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PERR L A B
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Notes:
A:  attending training sessions and/or seminars

B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable

regulatory requirements

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2019, except for a
member of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the range from HK$2.5 million to HK$3.0 million,
the remuneration of the rest of the members of senior
management were below HK$1.5 million.

Further details of the remuneration of Directors and five
highest paid employees have been set out in notes 9 and 10
to the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst
& Young for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
below:

s -
A BEENRER S SHEE

B: BB LA R A R A R
BRI EEIER

=N E IR B Hr N
HE2019F12A831BEFE B—Z2oR
EEERENTFHN T 25888 TE3.08
EETHEER)N  EHsREEEXNENE
g L1 5EEBBTT °

FREEFMM LR RSFMEENE P
HBEEIIRNMBEREAMEIRI0 -

ZE R £
HZE2019F12831BIEFE - BAC
FENZ KBTS D TE a0
—|?:

Amount

k-]

(RMB)

Items of auditors’ services ZE AN RSB R (ARE)
Audit services EIZIRES 2,050,000

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of
the Board to maintain an internal audit function and an
adequate risk management and internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets
and to review the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are to provide a clear
governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
a reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage it
risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the senior management of the Company.
The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that
shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and has the overall responsibility for monitoring design,
implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set
up and maintained a suitable and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted a Corporate Risk
Management Policy in providing direction in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an
annual basis, the senior management identifies risks that
would affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.
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Risk management report and internal control report are
submitted to the audit committee and the Board at least
once a year. The Board had performed an annual review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the
Listing Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours of the SFO.
Before inside information is fully disclosed to the public,
such information is kept strictly confidential. In addition, the
Group adopted the policy of disclosing relevant information
only to appropriate staff within the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Kit, the Company Secretary, reports to the
chairman of the Board. The details of his biography is set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Ng also confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board. The written requisition must specify the
business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene an
EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may themselves
convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: 30th Floor, One Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road,
Hong Kong

Email: ir@taicanggas.com

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond
to the shareholder(s)” questions.

Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

R R AE R
ERRERBHABRREI RS

RBABERAAF 6415 MEZZRAH
FAETIORARBHRER (MHBERARF]
BRAGRREN) + 02 MR - RE
MRS EEREBAESFEARAMEELE
mEXR - BREFGARARRENAE ([
RERIARE]) ZEMBRATRERE
RRIEMFER  MEZAERNEEZAHERR
M E A ERTT

WEZERE21AR  EFGRAARBRE
FrRlKE - RIARARER ] B % 4 MR R 5
RE MEZBRKPRAEZERBEARK
EMARELNMABRXARARRRKSE
fEHELRS

MESESXRERREANEF
BRAIBRAEET AL ARMEERIRE
MEAKRBIFATESS  QAEWEHH
AREFBIT

ik : BB EEE979% AN E I — 308

ir@taicanggas.com

NREAMERBXRRNESANBIEETE
ek REARFNEREEZE S (BH
B UERESH -

201955 | HAIMKBROERAAE

59



60

Corporate Governance Report
TEERERE

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company shall
submit such proposals to the Board in writing for the
Board’s consideration not less than 7 days prior to the
date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are set out in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board” under the section headed “Shareholders Rights”
above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. The Company discloses information in
compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions. Updated key information and business
development of the Group are also available on the
Company’s website to enable Shareholders and investors to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders
to provide comments and exchange views with the Board.
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
at the annual general meetings of the Company to address

Shareholders’ queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure

effective Shareholders’ communication and transparency.

There has been no change to the Articles of Association
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal business activities of the Group include
distribution and sale of piped natural gas, provision of
natural gas transmission and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
131 to 136.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.028 (equivalent to HK$0.031) per
ordinary Share for shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Thursday, 4
June 2020. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on Wednesday, 27 May 2020, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on Tuesday, 16 June 2020
to the shareholders of the Company. This represented a
total distribution of RMB25.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Summary financial information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 292. This summary does not

form part of the audited financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements.

Share capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the law of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of
the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2019 to the date of this

annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB681,975,000, of which RMB0.028 per Share has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year (which represented
a total distribution of RMB25.3 million).
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Major customers and suppliers

In the Year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 40.1% of the total sales for the
Year and sales to the largest customer for the Year amounted
to 24.4% of the total sales for the Year. Purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 89.2%
of the total purchases for the Year and purchase from the
largest supplier for the Year amounted to 45.5% of the total

purchases for the Year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the Group
during the Year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Su Yi (Chairman)
Mr. Du Shaozhou (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)(Resigned on 19 August 2019)
Ms. Zhu Yaying (Resigned on 19 August 2019)
Ms. Su Wen (Appointed on 19 August 2019)
Mr. Li Jianyi (Appointed on 19 August 2019)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Jin Bo

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zhou Qingzu
Mr. Luk Wai Keung
Mr. Zhu Tong
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Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles of Association,
Ms. Su Yi, Mr. Du Shaozhou and Mr. Jin Bo will retire from
office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Further, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, Ms. Su Wen and Mr. Li Jianyi will hold office
only until the forthcoming annual general meeting, and shall

then be eligible for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. Zhu Tong and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and as at the date of this report still

considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 16 to
26 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years which
may only be terminated in accordance with the provisions
of the service contract by either party giving to the other not

less than three to six months’ prior notice in writing.

The Company has entered into an appointment letter with
Mr. Jin Bo and Mr. Zhu Tong for a term of three years which
may only be terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three months, prior notice in writing.
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Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’ interests in
contracts

Save as disclosed under the headings “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in
note 40 to the financial statements, no Director, entity
connected with a director, controlling shareholders or any
of their subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.

During the Year, no contract of significance for the provision
of service to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries was made.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence as at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EEREFETBRAERKRND - HER®H
REEFENERR AR
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share

ordinary shares capital

held HART

B BEETRA

kA=t #8 B

Name of Directors BEENS Nature of interest 1

Ms. Su Yi (1) BRI (1) Beneficiary of two &
discretionary trusts

Mr. Du Shaozhou HBRTE Beneficial owner Z

Ms. Su Wen (2) BTt () Beneficiary of two A
discretionary trusts

Mr. Li Jianyi Fg—ka Beneficial owner 7

(L) denotes long position
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BB 100,000 (L) 0.01
PRETZZREA

328,684,000 (L) 36.4
HWEA 96,000 (L) 0.01

(L) FTREE



Notes:

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three
of the several eligible beneficiaries. Besides, 205,546,000
Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu Holdings
Limited which is wholly owned by Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. and
indirectly wholly-owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore)
Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Su
Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su
Wen are three of the several eligible beneficiaries.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly-owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three
of the several eligible beneficiaries. Besides, 205,546,000
Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu Holdings Limited
which is wholly owned by Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. and is
indirectly wholly-owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore)
Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Su
Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Su Wen and Ms.
Su Yi are three of the several eligible beneficiaries.

i
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Interests in underlying shares of the Company - equity

RARRIRBERDES — NARRESEITE

derivatives of the Company: THA:
Number of
underlying shares

in respect of the Percentage

share options of the

granted under the Company'’s

Scheme issued share

REZHRL capital

BREfSR  GALDECERST

Name of directors Exps Nature of interest EHitE WEBRRG#E RENEDL

Ms. Su Yi BXLL Beneficial owner ESBAA 2,150,000 0.24%

Mr. Du Shaozhou HARLE Beneficial owner ERBEA 2,200,000 0.24%

Mr. Li Jianyi (appointed FR-EE Beneficial owner ExBEAA 1,850,000 0.20%

on 19 August 2019) (720198 A19H
EZ{)

Mr. Xu Lei AELE Beneficial owner ESBAA 300,000 0.03%

Mr. Zhou Qingzu RERTE Beneficial owner EREAA 300,000 0.03%

Mr. Luk Wai Keung BEEBLE Beneficial owner ERBEEA 300,000 0.03%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none FR EMFTHFEESIN - R2019F12 318 -
of the Directors and chief executive had registered an #IEEERFZTHABRALRAISH (]

interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Substantial shareholders” and other persons’ interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares
As at 31 December 2019,
directors or chief executive of the Company, the following

so far as is known to the

shareholders (excluding directors and chief executive of
the Company) had interests and short positions of 5% or
more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of

the Company’s
issued share
Number of capital
ordinary BEART
shares held ERITREH
Name A% Nature of interest BEitE L BREE BAL
Mr. Su Aping (1) BT E() Interest of spouse, settlor AR - 333,034,000 (L) 36.88
and beneficiary of a 2REEFRTA
discretionary trust REBA
Ms. Zhu Yaying (2) RBEZL(Q2) Interest of spouse, settlor BBz 333,034,000 (L) 36.88
and beneficiary of a 2REFRTA
discretionary trust REBA
First Advisory Trust YIRESE (L) Interest of a controlled  REZIEEMMER 328,684,000 (L) 36.40
(Singapore) Limited (3, 6)  BRAA (3, 6) corporation
Fung Yu Holdings Fung Yu Holdings  Beneficial owner ERBEEA 205,546,000 (L) 22.76
Limited (3) Limited (3)
Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. (3) KRBRAA (3) Interest of a controlled ~ WEIABM#ES 205,546,000 (L) 22.76
corporation
Arowana Holdings Limited (3) Arowana Holdings  Interest of a controlled ~ RZIEABEM#EZ 205,546,000 (L) 22.76
Limited (3) corporation
Dazhong (Hong Kong) KB (BE) BE Beneficial owner EREBA 133,352,000 (L) 14.77
International Corporation — HRAF (4)
Limited (4)
Shanghai Dazhong Public ~ EEARARMER  Interest of a controlled R HEEEH) 178,352,000 (L) 19.75
Utilities (Group) Co., (RE) &b corporation, beneficial 2% « B4
Limited (4) BRAT (4) owner BAEA
Action East International ~ BEEZE Beneficial owner EalAA 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Limited (5) BRRF (5)
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China  Interest of a controlled ~ RSHZEEMELR 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Growth Fund Il Growth Fund 111, corporation
L.P. (5) L.P. (5
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China  Interest of a controlled ~ REZZZEEMER 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Growth Fund Il Growth Fund Il corporation
GP, Ltd. (5) GP, Ltd. (5)
Total Honest International i &|BI Beneficial owner ERHEA 123,138,000 (L) 13.64
Investment Ltd (6) REBRRATF (6)
Ridge Glorious Limited (6)  Ridge Glorious Interest of a controlled ~ REEEEMER 123,138,000 (L) 13.64

Limited (6)

corporation

(L) denotes long position

(L) RTRER
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Notes:

205,546,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu
Holdings Limited which is wholly owned by Yong Sheng
Pte Ltd. and is indirectly wholly-owned by First Advisory
Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust
of which Mr. Su Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping,
Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three of the several eligible
beneficiaries. Besides, 123,138,000 Shares are beneficially
owned by Total Honest International Investment Ltd which
is wholly owned by Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as
trustee for a discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is
the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and Ms. Su Yi are two of the
several eligible beneficiaries. Mr. Su Aping is the beneficial
owner of the share options granted under the Company’s
share option scheme in respect of 2,200,000 Shares issuable
under such share options. Ms. Zhu Yaying is the beneficial
owner of the share options granted under the Company’s
share option scheme in respect of 2,150,000 Shares issuable
under such share options. Mr. Su Aping is the spouse of Ms.
Zhu Yaying. Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares and share options
in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is interested.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee for a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying and Ms. Su Yi are two of the several
eligible beneficiaries. Besides, 205,546,000 Shares are
beneficially owned by Fung Yu Holdings Limited which
is wholly owned by Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. and is indirectly
wholly-owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as
trustee for a discretionary trust of which Mr. Su Aping is the
settlor, and Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are
three of the several eligible beneficiaries. Ms. Zhu Yaying
is the beneficial owner of the share options granted under
the Company’s share option scheme in respect of 2,150,000
Shares issuable under such share options. Mr. Su Aping is
the beneficial owner of the share options granted under the
Company’s share option scheme in respect of 2,200,000
Shares issuable under such share options. Ms. Zhu Yaying is
the spouse of Mr. Su Aping. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares
and share options in which Mr. Su Aping is interested.
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Fung Yu Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Yong Sheng
Pte Ltd., which is wholly owned by Arowana Holdings
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by First Advisory
Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust
of which Mr. Su Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping,
Ms. Su Wen and Ms. Su Yi are three of the several eligible
beneficiaries.

Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited, the A shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code
600635 and the H shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code 1635. Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited is deemed to be interested in
the same number of shares in which Dazhong (Hong Kong)
International Corporation Limited is interested. Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Limited was the
beneficial owner of 45,000,000 Shares.

Action East International Limited is wholly-owned by
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P.. Under the SFO,
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P. is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Action
East International Limited is interested.

Prax Capital China Growth Fund IIl, L.P. is a limited
partnership established in the Cayman Islands whose sole
general partner is Prax Capital China Growth Fund IIl GP,
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Total Honest International Investment Ltd is wholly-owned
by Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee for a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three of
the several eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no

person, other than the Directors and chief executive of

the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,

had registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

B bt R R & 4 -
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Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), other employees of the Group,
consultants and advisers of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 11 March 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from 11
March 2015. The scheme mandate limit was refreshed on
12 September 2017.

Principal terms of the Scheme

A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme is set out
below pursuant to the requirements as contained in Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules:

(a)  Furpose
The purposes of the Scheme are to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees, directors, consultants and
advisers of the Group and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

(b)  Participants
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Director,
consultant or adviser of the Group (the “Eligible

Person”).

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the
scheme and percentage of /ssued share caprtal as at
327 March 2020
The number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme was 75,292,400 Shares, representing 8.34%
of the issued share of the Company as at 31 March
2020.
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(d)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Scheme

Unless approved by the Shareholders in a general
meeting (with such Eligible Person and his close
associates (or his associates if the Eligible Person
is a connected person) abstaining from voting),
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each
Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities of

the Company in issue.

Any options granted to an Eligible Person who is
a substantial shareholder, or independent non-
executive Director, or their respective associates,
which will result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the
options granted and to be granted (including options
whether exercised, cancelled or still outstanding) to
such person in the period of 12 months up to and
including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such
other percentage as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange) of the issued
share capital of the Company; and

(i)~ having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000 (or such
other amount as may from time to time be

specified by the Stock Exchange).

Such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.

(d)
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(e)

(7

(g)

(h)

(7)

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The exercise period of any option granted under the
Scheme shall be determined by the Board but such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant option.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Scheme does not specify any minimum holding
period before the option can be exercised but the
Board has the authority to determine the minimum
holding period when the options are granted.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to
the Company on acceptance of options within 21
days from the date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall not be less than the greater

of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of such option;

(i) the average closing prices of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option;

and
(iii)  the nominal value of the share.
The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 11 March 2015.
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Movements of share options BRESE
Movements of the share options granted to the participants RIEZFIEIER FREA T ZEBRERTEA
pursuant to the Scheme during the Year are as follows: RSN -
Number of ordinary shares
subject to share options granted under the Scheme
REZTERLNRRESRNERRYE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Name of participant share options price 2019 thePeriod thePeriod  the Period the Period 2019
20195 #0195
1A1H Rk R RER RER 128318
SREFARLA ReBRERS i AT B fif BitH RS HA{TE
Directors
g=
Mr. Su Aping (resigned on
19 August 2019) 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,200,000 - . - N 2,200,000
BWTRLE
(R2019%6A19R%E) 201651 A29E"
Ms. Zhu Yaying (resigned on
19 August 2019) 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
REEft
(201958 F19RBE) 201651 4298
24 January 2017 2.280 150,000 - - - - 150,000
201751 AR
Ms. Su Yi 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
Bxat 201651 /298¢
24 January 2017° 2.280 150,000 - - - - 150,000
201751 A4B
Mr. Du Shaozhou 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
il 201651 298¢
24 January 2017 2280 200,000 - - - - 200,000
01751 AME!
Mr. Li Jianyi (appointed
on 19 August 2019) 29 January 2016* 2.000 350,000 - - - - 350,000
FR-RE
(201958 F19REEE) 201651 7298
24 January 2017° 2.280 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
201751 A4E
Mr. Xu Lei 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
HERE 201651 298¢
24 January 2017 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201751 A24B
Mr. Zhou Qingzu 29 January 2016* 2,000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
RRERE 2016%1 298
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201751 A48
Mr. Luk Wai Keung 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
BRRLE 2016514298
24 January 2017° 2.280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201751 4B
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Number of ordinary shares
subject to share options granted under the Scheme
REZTARENBERESROEERYE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Name of participant share options price 2019 thePeriod  thePeriod the Period  the Period 2019
20195 #0195
1A1H R R R R 128318
SREFARLS ReBRERS k| HATTE B fif Bi# RS GESIL
Other employees 29 January 2016* 2.000 10,850,000 - - - (1,100,000) 9,750,000
RS 201651 8298*
(note) 24 January 2017° 2280 3,700,000 - - - (500,000) 3,200,000
(Wit) 201751 A4 B!
25 October 2017° 3.0 15,000,000 - - - (500,000) 14,500,000
2017510A258°
Other eligible participants 24 January 2017¢ 2.280 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000
ReERSRE 201751 A24B!
25 May 2017 2.466 40,000,000 - - - - 40,000,000
201755258
95,000,000 - - = (2,100,0000 92,900,000

The exercise period is from 28 February 2017 to 28 January
2024. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2017; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2018; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2019; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2020; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2021.

The exercise period is from 28 February 2018 to 23 January
2025. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
Options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each Grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2022.
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A The exercise period is from 24 May 2018 to 24 May 2021.
The vesting period is as follows: (a) 33% of the options
granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May 2018; (b) 33%
of the options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May
2019; (c) 34% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 May 2020.

© The exercise period is from 24 October 2018 to 24 October
2025. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October
2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 October 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 24 October 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 24 October 2022.

The closing prices of the shares of the Company on 28
January 2016, 23 January 2017, 24 May 2017 and 25
October 2017 being the dates immediately before the
date of the Share Options were granted, were HK$1.99,
HK$2.28, HK$2.45 and HK$3.06 per share, respectively.

At the end of the Year, the Company had 92,900,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 92,900,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional issued capital of HK$929,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB844,000) and share
premium of HK$224,341,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB201,906,900) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of this annual report, the Company
had 92,900,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 10.29% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Connected transactions
During the Year, the Group has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions.
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Continuing connected transactions

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou
Suling Automobile Service”) operates gasoline and diesel
refilling stations as well as CNG and LNG refuelling stations
in Taicang City and sells diesel fuel, gasoline, CNG and
LNG to customers in the ordinary and usual course of its
business. Its customers during the Year included certain
members of the Group. Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
entered into a LNG Sales Agreement with Taicang Natural
Gas on 1 March 2019, pursuant to which Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service agreed to supply LNG to Taicang
Natural Gas at the procurement cost of the LNG products
on the date of purchase plus filling fee of RMB200 per ton,
for a period from 1 March 2019 to 31 December 2019.
During the Year, the accumulated amount of purchases paid
by Taicang Natural Gas under the LNG Sales Agreement
amounted to approximately RMB6,500,000.

Suchuang Group, as licensor, has entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with the Group, as licensee, on 1
August 2014, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to grant to the Group the right to use the trademarks “#t
#l” and "@ " in the PRC in connection with the Company’s
business on a perpetual and non-exclusive basis at a
nominal consideration of RMB1.00.

Suchuang Group further entered into a tenancy agreement
with the Group, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to lease from the Group an office premise of 1,082 square
meters on 5th Floor, 116 Loujiang South Road, Taicang City,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual rental of
RMB346,500 (inclusive of tax and management fee) for a
period from 21 October 2016 to 20 October 2019. During
the Year, the rental paid by Suchuang Group under the
aforesaid tenancy agreement amounted to RMB346,500.

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation Co.,
Ltd. entered into a vehicle leasing agreement with the
Group on 31 December 2018, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to lease from Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Transportation Co., Ltd. 10 vehicles for an annual fee of
RMB650,000 (inclusive of tax) for a period from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business of the Group are provided under

note 40 to the financial statements.

Certain related party transactions set out in Note 40(b) to the
financial statements (loan to Energette Capital Corporation,
rental income received from Suchuang Group, purchase of
motor vehicle fuels from Suzhou Suling Automobile Service,
sale of natural gas to Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
and renting of motor vehicles from Taicang Suchuang
Dangerous Goods Transportation Co., Ltd.), are regarded
as exempt continuing connected transactions of the Group
and were exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements contained under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules as at 31 March 2020, being the date of this

annual report.

Directors’ interests in a competing business

Except for the below, none of the Directors (other than the
independent non-executive Directors) are considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of

the Group.
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Suzhou Suling Automobile Service is principally engaged in
the operation of diesel and gasoline refuelling stations, as
well as CNG and CNG refuelling stations and is controlled
by Ms. Su Yi, Ms. Su Wen and their associates. On 23
February 2015, Suzhou Suling Automobile Service and the
Company entered into a deed of first offer (the “Deed of
First Offer”), pursuant to which Suzhou Suling Automobile
Service granted to the Company an irrevocable right
exercisable after rectification of the non-compliance matters
in relation to the CNG and LNG refuelling stations operated
by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service. The Deed of First
Offer was expired and the Company has not exercised its
right under the Deed of First Offer.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu
Holdings Limited has confirmed to the Company of his/
her/its compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 23 February 2015. There has not been any opportunity
in any restricted business (being business which competes
or is likely to compete with the business of the Group from
time to time) being referred by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu
Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings Limited to the Company
during the Year. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the deed of non-competition
have been complied with by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying
and Fung Yu Holdings Limited and duly enforced during the
Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company places great emphasis on its own environmental
and social performance by increasing its support on green
economy, low-carbon economy and recycling economy
and strictly controlling high-pollution and high-energy-
consumption. We have implemented policies and procedures
to ensure compliance of the regulatory requirements and our
production safety and environmental protection. Policies and
procedures are implemented to our employees, customers
and suppliers to enhance health and safety awareness during
production.
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For detailed information, please refer to the Environmental,
Social, Governance Report set out from pages 85 to 121 of
this annual report.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS FROM
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group upholds the highest standards of business ethics
that govern how we maintain our relationships with our key
stakeholders. We regularly engage and communicate with
our employees, customers and suppliers and provide rapid

and effective responses to address their needs and concerns.

Employees

Employees are considered to be one of the most important
and valuable assets of the Group. The Group has always
adhered to the principle of “people first”. We emphasise
individual development of employees and understood
targets and requirements of employees in different stages of
career. We wish to give full play to the expertise of each
employees and explore the individual potential of employees
through setting appropriate positions and regular training
activities. In addition, we wish to provide employees with
a sound remuneration package system to offer guarantee
to employees in all aspects, thus achieving the target of
retaining employees and the final target of sustainable
development of the Group, and enabling employees to work
in a confident, happy and safe manner.

Customers

The Group endeavours to provide safe, reliable and
thoughtful services to fulfil our customers’ expectations
and cater to their needs. The Group has established a 24h
customer service call center to provide service information
for customers, and guarantee a quick response to customer
feedback. During the Year, the customer service center
received a total of 727 complaints mainly about the progress
of construction, equipment and other matters. All complaints
were handled in a timely manner and recorded properly.
The Group will regularly review previous complaints and
continuously make improvement. The Group observes and
respects all customer data privacy and intellectual property
rights by strictly complying with all relevant laws and

regulations.
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Suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with the suppliers is essential
to the Group in respect of the supply chain and when facing
business challenges and regulatory requirements. It can
achieve cost efficiency and promote long term commercial
benefits. For the gas pipeline construction and connection
business, the Group regularly updates our database of
approved suppliers and carries out performance reviews to
assess the quality of our suppliers’ services. For the sales of
natural gas business, the Group has been in good strategic
relation with our principal natural gas supplier for more
than 10 years. Such relation further safeguards the reliable,
stable and sufficient supply of natural gas.

COMPLIANCE STATUS WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE BUSINESS
During the Year, the Group received no reported cases
of non-compliance with applicable standards, laws
and regulations on the environment, labour standards,
occupational health and safety, anti-corruption, customer
privacy and intellectual property in China and Hong Kong.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

On 19 August 2019, Ms. Zhu Yaying resigned as an
executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company;
Mr. Su Aping resigned as the executive Director of the
Company and ceased to serve as the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company but remained as a consultant of the Group. Ms. Su
Yi, an executive Director, was appointed as the chairman of
the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company, and a member of the Remuneration Committee;
meanwhile, Mr. Li Jianyi and Ms. Su Wen were respectively
appointed as executive Directors of the Company.
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Ms. Su Yi worked as a computer specialist of New York
City Housing Authority of the United States of America, the
Executive Vice Chairman of the Board at Taicang Natural
Gas and Suchuang Gas. She has more than 10 years’
experience in computer software and project management.
Mr. Li Jianyi, holds an MBA degree from Macau University
of Science and Technology. He worked as a deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Huayou Enterprise Development
Limited (RYIFRERZRBRAF),
Shenzhen Greenwheel Electric Vehicle Group Co., Ltd. (iR
YImkEit T A REBEEEERAAF),

director of Suchuang Gas. He has rich experience in the

a project controller of
and investment

industry. Ms. Su Wen holds bachelor degree in business
administration, majoring in international business from
Schiller International University. She worked as the export
director of Mediterranean Shipping Co., import and
export director of ACT Logistics, executive assistant of
Argus Holding Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Suchuang Gas, and otherwise. She has extensive experience

in international trade.

RISKS AND PROSPECTS OF THE COMPANY

The principal risk and uncertainties facing the Company are
set out in the “Financial Overview” on pages 36 to 40 and
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
278 to 289. The future development of the Company’s

business is set out on pages 40 to 43 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 11 March 2015. Net proceeds
from the global offering received by the Company were
approximately RMB347.5 million after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses. The net
proceeds have been applied for the purpose in accordance
with the future plans and use of proceeds as set out in
the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2019, the unutilised
proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong
and China.
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ERRES
As at 31 December 2019
2019512318
Percentage of Net Utilised Unutilised
Purpose total amount proceeds amount amount
LR 5 EBA HAEA
e BOK HTRFR £ £
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AREEET AR%BET ARKAEER
Acquiring and constructing CNG and SHEEARERAR/ 25% 86.9 64.7 22.2
LNG refuelling stations for the NGB R 2R E R
sale of CNG/LNG for vehicular use RARRINGIIAL
Expanding our pipeline network and hRAMNEBBRER 35% 121.6 121.6 -
sale of piped natural gas to RMBEMRETEEP
customers in our existing market HERBRAR
Acquiring controlling interests in KEXRBRUMRAR 30% 104.2 104.2 -
natural gas operators outside Taicang EEENERES
Working capital and other LEESRAM 10% 34.8 34.8 -
general corporate purposes —REERGE
Total il 347.5 325.3 222
Auditors % SR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2020
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - dgRkER®RE

Introduction

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “we”)
are pleased to present the 2019 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Group. This report describes the
sustainable development philosophy of the Group, reports
on plans and measures taken to implement such concepts,
and presents our progress in various aspects and the
summary of our performance in the Year.

Reporting Basis

This report complies with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and is prepared
in accordance with the four principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency set out in the Guide.
The Group’s corporate governance practice is published in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Reporting Scope

Except as otherwise indicated, this report only covers the
Group’s core businesses, namely piped natural gas sales and
transmission businesses of Taicang Natural Gas Company
Limited (“Taicang Natural Gas”) and Xinjiang Dunhua Gas
Engineering Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Dunhua”)
which is to be put into operation in Kuga, Xinjiang and
whose 51% equity interest was acquired by the Group.
The main businesses of Xinjiang Dunhua include capturing
carbon dioxide and nitrogen from industrial waste gas from
oil refineries, gas-fired power stations, chemical fertilizer
plants, etc., through self-owned technologies, and storing
and utilizing them. The revenues from these two companies
accounted for 85.5% of the total revenue of the Group.
The content of this report covers our performance for the
reporting period commenced on 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019 (“Reporting Period”), while the performance
data for the previous year are also listed in the Report for

the purpose of reference and comparison.
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Content and Data of the Report

The information and cases quoted in this report are sourced
from relevant documents provided by departments of the
Group or are obtained from integrated statistics of operating
data. This report was confirmed by the senior management
of the Company and was approved for publication by the
board of directors.

Opinions and Feedback

Through this report, we expect to reflect the sustainable
development performance of the Group in an open,
transparent, comprehensive and objective manner, and
respond to concerns of stakeholders to promote mutual
communication. We sincerely invite you to submit
your opinions. If you are in doubt about or have any
recommendations concerning the content of this report
or our sustainable development work, please contact us
through the following channels to help us in continuous
improvement and efforts for excellence.

Hong Kong 30th Floor, One Taikoo Place, 979
Address: King’s Road, Hong Kong

Mainland 116 Loujiang South Road, Taicang
Headquarters City, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
Address: 215400

Email: ir@taicanggas.com
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Sustainable Development Philosophy and
Strategy

As an energy supplier, the Group was established based
on clean energy, and has been promoting environmental
protection. We spare no effort in supporting sustainable
development and providing assistance for social
upgrading and transformation. We have complied with
national development plans and policies regarding the
promotion of the use of clean energy, performed our social
responsibilities, and strove to create values for stakeholders
and the community where we operate.

We have integrated the concept of sustainable development
into our corporate management, decision-making and
daily operations, established and continuously improved
the management system and information recording
system concerning our sustainable development affairs,
and included relevant performance into the assessment
indicators to ensure that persons in charge perform
their duties and implement sustainable operation and

management.

The Group is principally engaged in the supply of natural
gas with the mission to ensure safe and stable gas supply.
To this end, we have established and maintained long-term
cooperation with upstream natural gas suppliers to ensure
a reliable, stable and adequate supply of natural gas in the
long run. The Group has established strict internal code
for safe gas supply, provided relevant training to ensure
employees’ compliance, and utilized information technology
to collect, transmit, and analyse safety management and
operational data. We also strengthened supervision to
improve safety standards and reduce risks, thus maintaining

our core competitiveness.
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As climate change has become a common challenge for all
mankind, reducing carbon emissions with clean energy is
a general trend. With the promotion of national economic
development and environmental protection policies, as well
as the deepening of oil and gas reforms and the accelerating
replacement of coal with natural gas in various fields, the
proportion of natural gas in the overall national energy
consumption will be increasingly enhanced. In recent
years, the natural gas market has continued to expand with
sustained growth in demand and considerable potential.
We expanded our business to surrounding areas of Taicang
City through proactively capturing opportunities, and
formulated plans for long-term development, with the aim to
provide sustainable and stable investment incomes for our
shareholders.

In addition to our main business of development in sales
and transmission of natural gas, the Group also operates
CNG and LNG refuelling stations, and have invested in
energy saving and emission reduction technologies in recent
years through acquiring 51% equity interest of Xinjiang
Dunhua. With environmental protection and a circular
economy as our targets, the Group has taken an important
step towards the strategy of comprehensive green and
low-carbon business. The “Carbon Capture, Utilization and
Storage (CCUS)” technology, a professional technology of
Xinjiang Dunhua, can be utilized to provide purification
and emission reduction services. We are undergoing final
tests and inspections with oil field customers, and will
sell captured liquid carbon dioxide and other products to
customers in the following years, which will enhance the
profitability of oil fields and achieve closed cycle of carbon

collection and storage.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board of Directors of the Group is responsible for
supervising and ensuring the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems, thus protecting
the interests of the Group and shareholders and preventing
accidents. The management of the Group communicates
with all functional departments to identify various risks from
the bottom up and cover all areas including environmental,
social and governance related risks. We have formulated a
risk management mechanism such as a risk assessment list
and quantitative assessment standards, and also carefully
followed up the risk management and control of new
projects. We have formulated corresponding internal control
measures based on materiality which will be determined
according to the potential impact and the probability of
risks, and will identify and effectively control and resolve
potential risks in a timely manner. The Board of Directors
of the Group is responsible for managing risks of the
Group’s businesses. The Audit Committee is responsible
for reviewing the risk management report, analysing
mechanisms with the management on a regular basis, and
reporting evaluation results to the Board, thereby enhancing
the Company’s capacities to prevent risks. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has obtained 1SO9001:2015
certification for quality management system. In the future,
we will continue to implement best industry practices and
strive to obtain more standard certifications.

In the meantime, the management of the Group has
established rules and regulations for relevant functional
departments to comply with, and was committed to
improving the compliance awareness of employees, so as
to ensure that the Group’s businesses meet requirements of
relevant laws and regulations and prevent legal risks. The
detailed compliance status of each issue will be disclosed in
relevant sections of this report.
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BRIE - HERES $ﬁ¢

Stakeholder Participation and Feedback

The Group understands that stakeholders are essential
to our sustainable development. Their opinions can help
us formulate long-term business strategies, balance the
interests and concerns of all parties, and respond to their
expectations. We have established proper communication
channels for different stakeholder groups to collect
thus

establishing a relationship of respect and mutual trust. The

their feedback and maintain close communication,

follow diagram sets forth the key stakeholders of the Group
and their corresponding communication channels.

Customer
oSite safety inspection

FESRREE

AEERD  FHHELBRMNAIHEER -
BEFSASIBRNAE - MM ER - AT
B FFIHIEREEBHERR - YERBEZS
R M TZERE - BEMIIAEIE - #8
TRMFNEEHE  RMRLTAENES
RE - WEMPNREER @ BRHTIHR
o MEBELEEMNEEHNER - AEER
BERMNERHENEBRENTERMT

eElectronic customer service system

s Telephone/email

» Customer satisfaction survey

Government and
regulatory authority
*Regular reports
*Notice/guideline
*Special meetings
*Workshops and seminars
*On-site inspections

B R
- BRERRAS

Shareholders and investors

*Annual general meeting and
other general meetings
*Regular financial statements
*Announcements and circulars
*Briefing meetings for investors
*Website and publications of
the Company

B‘ii/hﬁ%

SUCHUANG GAS

HRIRR

Employees
eInternal meetings / interviews
¢ Performance assessment
e Training plans
eTeam building activities
eInternal communication
*Comments / complaint box

Community
*Community promotion
*Community construction

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019

Supplier / Business partner
*Regular performance evaluation
¢ Face-to-face meeting
oSite safety inspection
s Telephone/email
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Materiality Assessment EEMME

In order to ensure that this report can accurately reflect

AR E L EREN R R A EBARE

the performance of the Group in terms of environmental, #&MERHRBHKRE  BYHTREHNE
social and governance aspects, we conduct a materiality ZZE  BHMISFHETEZHTG - AF
assessment annually to address important issues in different EMEZHFTED AU TSE
aspects. The steps of materiality assessment for the Year are

as follows:

Identifying
relevant
issues

w8 !| 1E R
E3d

Collect
opinions from
stakeholders
WERF D&
R

Analysing and
confirming
the results
DT e WERR

=+
i

In accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and based on results of past materiality
assessments, we identify and formulate issues related to the Group’s businesses and
the development of the industry, which can be classified into five categories.

SEFBBRM (GRIR - HERERBEESD - MRIBAENERUFNHER

apI I T AR B RS RIT R ERAANEE - W /SRR

\

We invite stakeholders to submit their opinions concerning our sustainable
development strategy and corresponding work through an anonymous online
questionnaire, and learn of the extent of stakeholders’ concern for different issues.

R EREERE - MERNTR - BN &R EHR I A8 %R R
REETIENER I THROMESHENRIREE -

The senior management assesses the materiality of each issue based on the Group’s
businesses, and analyses and prioritizes different issues to determine
the results based on the survey of stakeholders.

HERAEEEREARENES  HASZENERN  WRARHNEREME -
DB B EZRB B IR T - FEEA
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We have analysed the results obtained from the R FMFE  HESEASHENERLE
questionnaire survey and the management’'s assessment IREH:TE @ RIS ERTERINUTH
according to the above steps, which is presented in the EZEH45EE :

following materiality matrix:

Materiality Matrix

B2 ERE
High -
=
@7
o8
1 100 @5
5 021.2 o9
25 o3 04
AN
Eﬂ g 1 e o4 1@ @13
g_’ > @16 exn O
< o7 @5
S o
a‘ x o
n_ g2
3
3 ox o2
3 -
@23
Middle Importance to the business of the Group High
a3 HAEEXRBCEEZNT =
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Working environment

practices
THEREEK

1) Diversity,

antidiscrimination and
equal opportunity

Zitft ~ RIEAR NP E
&

2) Occupational safety and
health
BEZ2NMER

3) Employee training and
development
‘BN EER

4)  Preventing child and
forced labour
R ET Mgkl %8

5) Caring for employees
and communicating with
employees
BEBTLEREER

6) Absorbing talents and
employee benefits

WA AA M E &R
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Product and service
responsibilities

EmRREEE

7)  Service safety and stability
R MBE

8) Product and service
compliance
Em LRI AR

9) Customer satisfaction and
complaint handling
B EE LR

10) Protection of customers’
information and privacy
REZPER KB

11) Research and technology
development
B 7 Mkl 3% R

12) Advertising management
BEEE

BE - g RER®RSE

Environmental protection
and green operation

RARENSERE

13) Exhaust emissions and air
pollution control
BEREER N ZE R TR

14) Mitigating and adapting to
climate change
AR N e SR AR AL

15) Sewage and waste
treatment
TEIK K BE Y R TR

16) Use of resources
BIRER

17) Green procurement

AREIRE

Operating practices Community contribution
EERER & R

18) Emergency response and
prevention of accidents
FRE SRR NI

19) Evaluation and supervision
of suppliers and

outsourcers
PR RSME IR R

20) Sustainability and social
responsibility of suppliers
and outsourcers
GYE TN = A B
HERtEaEE

21) Preventing bribery and
corruption

7 ILRRRE MBS

22) Participating in public
welfare activities
ZHENREE

23) Charity donation
HERE

20196 FH | HAMKBRGERAH

93



94

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRIE - HERERRE

According to results of the above assessment, there are five
issues, namely service safety and stability, product and
service compliance, emergency response and prevention
of accidents, protection of customer’s information and
privacy, and customer satisfaction and complaint handling,
which are essential to the sustainable development of the
Group. This report will disclose relevant detailed policies
and measures in corresponding sections with focus on
these issues, with the aim to enable stakeholders’ in-depth
understanding and enhance relevant work in the future.
The Group will continue to maintain close communication
with stakeholders to formulate and adjust our sustainable
development strategy in a timely manner, thus improving
relevant performance of the Group and capturing

opportunities for further development.
Gas Safety

The Group is a public utility company and an energy
supplier with tens of thousands of employees and customers.
As the gas business is a high-risk industry with significant
safety risks, any potential equipment hazards, system
defects or work negligence may lead to serious safety
accidents. Therefore, the provision of safe and reliable gas
services is essential to our business. We ensure the safety of
employees, customers and the public relying on our sound
engineering design and operation codes, strict maintenance
systems and quality standards. We were honored the Suzhou

Quality Award in 2019 for our outstanding performance.
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Safety management system

The Group has established and implemented a
comprehensive safety management policy and system
to standardise operations and management, including
identifying potential health and safety risks in workplace,
formulating the notification and handling mechanism
for safety incidents, and regularly conducting on-site
assessment, safety inspection and maintenance, so as to
enhance our management, reduce operational risks, avoid

accidents and reduce the impact of accidents.

The Group has prepared the review list for safety
management and the item list for project quality monitoring,
which provide basis for front-line staff to perform monitoring
work. We will continue to improve our safety management
system, and ensure that employees are aware of their
responsibilities and rights, so as to eliminate potential
dangers and monitor the source of risks, thus ensuring the
safety of employees and the public. We take “Eight Noes” as
the target of our safe production, and “Four Prohibitions” as

our safety production principle:

BRIR - HEREREBE
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BE - HeaRERHRS

Eight Noes Target

No Severe Injury

Accident

BEBER

NEBR

No Death

Accident

EILTER

No Loss Incurred

No Fire Accident b);)Poor E‘IOOd
S E revention
AR ERBAS
HEKEL
Production
TEEE No Major
No Explosion Equipment
Accident Accident
BIRIFEY mEKX

Four Prohibitions Principle

Unclear Analysis
of Accident
Cause Prohibited

SWIRE DT
NEBTHE

No Poisoning
Accident of
Many People

EZ A

REEHR

No Punishing
the Person
Liable for
Accident
Prohibited

EWETART

BRI A
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No Major Traffic
Accident above

B

the Equal
Responsibility Level
EFREAL
EARBES
RN EEIEY:

No Implementation
of Practical and
Feasible
Rectification
Measures against
Specific Accident
Prohibited
ST EHIE
YIER1THY
BodEm AR
EETA

No Educating
the Person
Liable for
Accident and
Related People
Prohibited
EWREEAR
FEBRLE
ZEHE TG
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Natural gas terminal

As the access point of urban gas supply, natural gas
terminals are the source facility to ensure the Group’s stable
gas supply, so that we must always ensure the normal
operation of natural gas terminals and handle abnormal

conditions in a timely manner.

To prevent inadvertent human or animal intrusion, we
equip walls of natural gas terminals with sensors, such that
when an object enters the wall, the alarm will sound and
automatically alert the regulating and control center, so
that employees on duty can follow up and handle the issue
immediately. We regularly inspect and maintain the alarm
system to ensure that the system functions properly.

In order to avoid accidents caused by fire, all persons
must wear a safety helmet and anti-static clothing and be
destaticized before entering a natural gas terminal. Safety
instructions, and locations of hazards and escape routes are
also posted at a prominent position of the entrance of the
terminal, to enhance the safety awareness of all personnel
and prevent accidents.

BRIR - HEREREBE
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Our experienced and qualified management personnel
lead the employees at various levels to carry out safety
management work, so as to ensure that routine operation
complies with all safety operation rules. Employees on duty
are required to carry the following safety inspections and
maintenance according to guidelines so as to ensure safety:

- The warehouse area, roads and firefighting access are
kept unblocked and meet transportation, evacuation

and rescue requirements;

- Check whether the readings of flowmeters and the
pressure at the front and back of pressure regulators

are normal;

- Portable instruments for laser remote detection of
methane are used for leak detection of pressure
regulators and pipelines;

- Odorizing devices are in good condition, and the
odorant injection rate meets requirements, thus
ensuring stable gas supply and immediate detection

of leakage;

- Check the instrument installation to ensure that the

documentation is consistent with the on-site data;

- The facilities in areas with different levels of
explosion hazard have corresponding explosion-proof
performance;

- Employees wear protective equipment and clothing
as required;

- Fire-fighting equipment, fire and power supply
sources, and lightning protection and anti-static
facilities are regularly inspected in accordance with
national standards to ensure normal operation;

- Maintenance tools and equipment are sound and

complete and are managed in a centralized manner,

which are available for use at any time.
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Gas pipeline network

The Group strictly conduct the maintenance of pipeline
networks and other distribution facilities to ensure that
the gas supply system is stable and reliable. Our technical
team has extensive experience. The employees in relevant
positions have obtained certificates issued by government
departments. They are responsible for maintaining natural
gas distribution and transmission stations, urban pipeline
networks and safety monitoring systems and improving the

operational efficiency.

The Group inspects and strengthens the construction of
underground gas pipeline networks on a regular basis, and
replaces damaged or corroded old pipelines in a timely
manner to eliminate hidden dangers. During the Reporting
Period, we have renovated over two hundred old valves,
and cleaned the 18-kilometer high-pressure pipelines from
Kunshan terminal to Taicang terminal, and inspected the
anti-corrosion layer along the pipeline to improve the safety
of pipeline networks. We have also actively invested in and
applied advanced equipment and monitoring technologies,
such as the device for remote detection of methane, to assist
in the inspection of pipeline networks. We regularly check
gas equipment in households, and establish a close and
trust relationship with stakeholders, thus ensuring safety and

increasing their awareness for gas safety.

Gas pipeline networks are subject to the impact of season
change. High temperature and less gas consumption in
the summer will lead to increased pressure on pipelines.
Natural disasters such as lightning, heavy rain and
typhoon frequently occur in the summer can make safety
accidents happen more easily. In addition, continued low
temperatures and snowfall in winter may also adversely
affect the operation of gas equipment. We take appropriate
preventive measures in response to the season and weather

conditions to ensure a safe and stable supply.

BRIR - HEREREBE
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Summer

BEZ

e Reinforce structures to protect covered J
outdoor pipelines during the rainy season
NEMERBEY  REBENFINEB

e Check and clean drains before and after J
rainstorms to ensure channels clear and
prevent flooding
RWAERENBREEKRE  RERES

e Remind outdoor staff of heatstroke J
prevention and take cooling measures for
key equipment
REFPITIEABERFTHERRBIENZ

i

prevent malfunction due to low temperature
REBRLFRBRS P HEREHRHE
Strengthen anti-freezing measures for
pressure regulators, metering equipment
and other related facilities

HYAERS  FEREBFEZZRREINRD
B BHKR R
Increase the number of night inspections in
the terminal to ensure normal gas supply

IEINPIEE AR E AR - ARERIER

Winter
R=E

Use heat insulation tapes for pipelines to

Our pipeline inspection team led by personnel qualified for
gas business operations regularly inspects the surroundings
of the pipeline to check whether external factors such as
nearby construction projects affect pipeline operations. The
pipeline inspection team will clearly record the findings of

the inspection and arrange treatment as quickly as possible.
Safety monitoring and emergency plan

The Group understands that gas safety is of great importance,
so we have always been in long-term vigilance for and
prepared in advance for emergencies. We have formulated
emergency plans for safety accidents and responsive
measures for potential accidents, which will be implemented
by employees as planned. Our emergency plans are revised
every two years and are filed with government authorities.
In order to ensure that all employees of the Company are
familiar with responsive measures, we provide trainings
on fire safety knowledge for employees, and enhance the
capacities of the management and front-line employees
to deal with emergencies. At the same time, we conduct
at least one safety drill every year as well as joint drills in
cooperation with local governments and other companies,
from which we will learn experiences and enhance

countermeasures against any defects.
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Joint Anti-Terrorism and Fire Prevention Drill for Natural Gas

BIRERM

KRR 7 H B Bt

In case of any unfortunate event of a gas leak or even
explosion, serious chain incidents may occur, which may
affect the gas supply for a wide range of users and even
cause casualties and property losses. In order to deal with
abnormalities as early as possible and avoid expansion of
any crisis, the Group implements two-level management,
namely monitoring the on-site daily operation of natural gas
terminals and monitoring the operation of each natural gas
terminal, regulator stations and pipelines through remote
24-hour natural gas regulating and control centers. We
monitor operation parameters of the gas supply system in
real time, including temperature, flow and pressure. When
the data exceeds the upper and lower limits of normal
operation, the system will automatically send an alarm and
notify the defective equipment and its values to employees
on duty, so that the engineering and technical staff can
follow up and deal with emergency situations immediately
as instructed to resume normal services as soon as possible.

In the event of any public accident, we will fully
cooperate with relevant authorities to assist in dealing with
consequential problems and investigating the cause and
responsibility. We will take improvement measures against
the cause of accident, and enhance the publicity on gas
safety to prevent similar accidents according to the objective
situations reported by the media.
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Occupational safety and training

As the gas business is in a high-risk industry, we have always
attached importance to safe operations and are committed
to ensuring the health and safety of our employees. We
hold safety education trainings and briefing sessions for
employees, which will enable employees’ understanding of
the importance of work safety to the Group, enhance the
level of occupational safety and create the safety culture of
the Group. We publicize and communicate occupational
safety information through various channels such as internal
communication platforms and safety drills and knowledge
competitions. New maintenance employees are required
to receive professional trainings organized by government
authorities and obtain relevant certificates before taking up
their posts, so as to ensure that employees can perform their
duties safely. Meanwhile, we also provide employees with
protective equipment and regularly check the provision of
protective articles in accordance with the Labour Protection
Regulations of Jiangsu Province and the Management Rules
for Labour Protection Supplies of Employers.

As for the completed Xinjiang Dunhua project, the safety
and environmental protection department has also provided
internal employees with relevant training on safety
production, safety management and mechanical operation

to ensure smooth operation after its commencement.
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Safety production in compliance with laws and
regulations

The Group has observed the requirements of gas franchise
rights in regions we operate and applicable laws and
regulations concerning work safety, including but not
limited to the Urban Gas Management Regulations, the
Measures for Management of Franchises for Municipal
Public Utilities, Jiangsu Gas Management Regulations,
the Measures of Jiangsu for Management of Piped Gas
Franchises, the Measures of Suzhou on the Administration
of Gas, the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Natural Gas Pipeline Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China. In order to comply with
relevant government laws and regulations and the safety
requirements of industry standards and practices, we have
formulated internal safety guidelines and measures which
will be regularly reviewed and updated. To the knowledge
of the Directors of the Group, the Group recorded no major
accidents related to occupational safety, and was not subject
to any major administrative sanction or punishment due to
violation of any safety production laws or regulations during
the Reporting Period.

Product and Service Quality

The Group is committed to providing excellent products
and services for gas users. Our natural gas is supplied
by state-owned enterprises. We have formulated strict
requirements and procedures on quality control, and will
regularly submit inspection reports to prove that the quality
of gas meets standards. As for our gas supply business,
we have established multiple backup systems to avoid
disturbances or loss to users caused by any unexpected
interruption of gas supply. For new pipelines with specific
specifications, relevant certificates shall be obtained from
relevant government authorities, and the approval and
acceptance shall be completed before commencement.
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With the aim to provide safe clean energy for customers,
we are committed to the safety management of end users
in addition to the safety of terminal facilities and pipelines.
In order to prevent gas accidents from users, we carry out
on-site special inspections to identify unsafe conditions
in the use of gas, and conduct treatment according to the
situation or provide correction suggestions for customers.
We provide free maintenance services for resident
customers, and the Maintenance Department will follow up
if any problem or potential hazard is found. Meanwhile, we
provide non-resident users with free maintenance for the
first year, so as to ensure that natural gas pipelines are in
good operating condition. When activating gas equipment
and related transmission pipelines our customers, we will
provide and explain to the customers the Guidelines for
Natural Gas Supply Services, so that they can understand
relevant matters requiring attention on gas use such as the
safety rules and methods for immediate treatment in case of
suspected leakage.
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In 2019, we visited multiple communities in Taicang City to handle business

for more than 3,000 residents and promoted knowledge on safe use of natural gas
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Customer service and complaint management

The Group firmly believes that only by continuing to gain
the trust of our customers can we continue to develop stably
for a long time and that the ability to understand and meet
customers’ needs is the key to providing quality services.
Therefore, we constantly improve our customer service
system and optimize our service procedures to enhance the
customer experience. In recent years, we have introduced
intelligent gas meters, so that new resident users can use
smart phones to monitor their gas usage in real time, which
is very convenient. We also provide inquiry and recharge
services on our WeChat public account, and send gas safety
knowledge and notifications from time to time.

Our customer service center and 24-hour maintenance
hotline provides customer with service information and
ensures timely response to and handle customer feedback.
During the Reporting Period, our customer service center
and online platform received a total of 700 complaints, all of
which were handled in a timely manner, recorded properly
and followed up. We also provide household inspection
and maintenance services, and make sampling interviews by
telephone to ensure service quality. Meanwhile, we provide
employees of the customer service center with trainings in
product knowledge, services and complaint handling skills
on a regular basis, so that our employees have sufficient

knowledge and skills to answer customer inquiries.

BRIR - HEREREBE

EERBRIRFEE

AEBERE RERENER  ARNES
ESEPHNEEMXE  ZRHEBENOR
% BRERGERTHRIHEEFPNTE -
At - RO T EEFPIRBER - BLk
Bnig  RATPER - RO FSHETE
R ERBPAERERESR
FERARE  FESE - RATEMRE
RIRPBERERRFTEFRY - AR E XK
REBHBRAE -

i

\;

F\

BRIFIRE TP RIEH O N 24/ NS 4 SE R IS 2
B REPRHRBEN - BREEEER
BEREEFHRE - LERBAN - RANER
RLEEEFE  —HEELH700FER -
FTERFHDERNERE TS0 HER
# o BN A LPIREEERT - WIEE
AR - MRREEER - AR BRME
HARRBPOMET @ REBRERMANER
M- R REEEFEI - EETER
HRMBANET - BERFPEM -

201953 | HAIMERODERAE

105



106

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRIE - HERERRE

Protecting customer information and privacy

The Group attaches great importance to the security of
customer information and has the responsibility to protect
customer privacy. According to the Archives Law of the
People’s Republic of China, we have formulated the internal
regulations on confidentiality management which classifies
the grading of information confidentiality, provides for
corresponding confidentiality measures and strictly prohibits
employees from improper access and use of confidential
information. In order to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, we will also explain how to properly
handle confidential and sensitive information of customers
and the Company before new employees take up their posts.

Advertisement marketing

The Group actively promotes the use of natural gas to the
public through various channels. We promote the use of
natural gas and related safety knowledge through publicity
activities, newspaper and media advertising. Providing our
customers with correct and detailed safety information and
product labels is our extended responsibility in product and
safety management. All advertising publications, product
labels and business-related information of the Group should
be subject to approval of the management of the Group,
and that they can be published only when there is assurance
that the information contained therein is correct. During the
Reporting Period, we did not recall any product as a result
of safety and health problems, and to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Group did not receive any complaints in
relation to advertisement and labels inconsistent with health

and safety requirements, products and services.
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Environmental Protection

As a major challenge facing the world, climate change is
affecting all aspects of life, so the economic development
can no longer ignore the interrelationship with environment.
The extreme weather resulting from climate change is
bringing new risks to business operations. As the world’s
second largest economy, China has made important
commitments in addressing climate change, promoting
low carbon development and new energy reforms. As a
component of low-carbon clean energy industry, the Group
support China’s goal of reducing carbon emission intensity,
and is committed to promoting the use of natural gas. In
2019, we continued to support large industrial coal-fired
enterprises in responding to government policies and
regulations and promoting the conversion and upgrading
of replacing coal with gas, so as to reduce emissions of air
pollutants and greenhouse gas and protect the environment.

3 e i i
The project of replacing coal with gas of
BNBM Taicang Company Limited was
completed and put into operation in 2019,
with gas consumption of up to 70,000
cubic meters per day, leading to an annual
coal reduction of 30,000 tons.
ARLEHEMERQBDELRIEAERFRER
A ARESE70,00025K X
FRE=BW -

In addition, coal boilers of Taicang Xintai
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Alcohol Co., Ltd. have also been converted

to use gas, with gas consumption of
up to 14,000 cubic meters each day,
equivalent to 20 to 30 tons of coal.
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Our natural gas sales and transmission business mainly
involve underground pipeline projects in urban areas,
basically imposing no significant adverse impact on the
environment. Besides, a small amount of residual natural
gas will be discharged out of the pipeline at time of pigging
operation, but it does not have significant influence on
surrounding environment due to the low emission. Major
environmental protection laws and regulations concerning
the operation of the Group include the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact
Assessment, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. To the best
knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Group
was not subject to any major administrative sanction or
punishment due to violation of any environmental laws or
regulations during the Reporting Period.

Resource utilization and emissions management

The daily operations of the Group inevitably generate
exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions, which mainly arise
from indirect emissions from purchased electricity and direct
emissions from vehicle fuels such as diesel and compressed
natural gas. We strongly advocate the low-carbon and
environmentally-friendly green office, save resources in
daily operations, and implement the following series of
green operation measures:

Energy saving and emission reduction

J Make use of natural light and wind to reduce the use
of air-conditioners and lights

J Purchase energy-saving and environmentally-friendly
lights electrical appliances and office equipment with

priority

J Keep the indoor air-conditioning temperature at 25°C
in summer and 18°C in winter
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J Set the time to ensure the air-conditioners are turned
off automatically when getting off work, and cut off
the power on holidays

o Install auto-induction lights in some offices
J Post a reminder to turn off electronic devices and
equipment when employees leave a room

J Use electric vehicles and vehicles powered by
compressed natural gas to reduce air pollution

J Maintain the level of brightness of computer screen
at 75 % or less and set the computer display to shut
down automatically in 10 minutes

Water saving

o Post a slogan or notice to remind employees to turn
off the tap when finished, so as to avoid waste of

water
J Use water-saving faucet facilities with low flow
J Conduct daily inspection of water supply facilities

and pipelines, and carry out repair when any problem

is found to reduce waste of water caused by leakage
Paper consumption reduction

o Use online platforms, promote paperless office

approvals, and reduce the use of office supplies

. Provide collection boxes in the office to collect and
reuse single-sided paper

J Encourage employees to use handkerchief and water
glasses to reduce the use of paper towels and paper

cups
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Reuse and recycling

J Set a recycling bin to collect waste rechargeable

battery, which can reduce environmental pollution

o Entrust recyclers to collect scrap paper regularly,

which can be used for producing recycled paper

. Choose alternative stationeries, and reuse envelopes,

loose-leaf binders, paper bags, etc.
Waste and sewage management

There are no significant hazardous waste generated from
or packaging materials in large quantities used in the
Group’s businesses. The solid wastes we discharge can be
mainly divided into domestic waste and industrial waste.
After collection, daily waste generated in our offices
and employee dormitories will be delivered to the urban
environmental health department for centralized treatment.
In addition, our long-distance natural gas transportation
pipeline networks may contain steel pipe scrap iron after
long-term use, so we will clean pipelines from time to time
and deliver non-hazardous waste generated to a third party

for special treatment.

The Group does not generate industrial sewage. The
domestic sewage discharged by the Group into municipal
sewage pipelines will be treated centrally by the local
sewage treatment plant and will not adversely affect the
environment. We also do not involve industrial water. Our
daily water is supplied through municipal pipelines, and
therefore does not have any problem in relation to sourcing

of water.
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Environmental footprint

The key environmental performance indicators of the Group

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE - g RER®RSE

REEEH

AN RARESF REFOBEIRBEBIE

for 2019 and 2018 are as follows: ZEE
Indicators Unit
BER 2019 2018  Efy
Total greenhouse gas emissions 958.1 85.9 tCO2e
BEREBHMEE M —RLIREE
Direct emissions (scope 1) 310.9 278.2 tCOze
HEPE (FE1) M LiREE
Indirect emissions (scope 2) 1,530.0 699.7 tCOze
R (SE2) M —RLIREE
Indirect emissions (scope 3)* 21.1 11.9 tCO2e
IR (BE3) * M —RLIREE
Greenhouse gas removals (scope 1) 903.9 903.9 tCOze
RERBRRE (HE1) M —RLIREE
Greenhouse gas emission intensity 5.3 1.0 kg CO:e per square meter
BEREHNEE RFr —SBLIREE FIK
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) 706.8 508.5 Kg
AAIP(NO,) Niy
Sulphur oxides (SO,) 1.7 1.4 Kg
et (so,) NIy
Particulate matter (PM) 65.2 47 .4 Kg
TR (PM) Ny
Total energy consumption 3,259.8 2,001.9 Megawatt hour
RERBFEEE TET ELbs
Electricity purchased 2,178.1 994.8 Megawatt hour
BEEE TET Ebs
Diesel oil 56.9 81.9 Megawatt hour
SeH TE T FL
Unleaded petrol 982.4 786.2 Megawatt hour
BT TE T E
Compressed natural gas 42.4 139.0 Megawatt hour
B HER AR TE T L
Energy consumption intensity 18.0 23.8 Kilowatt hour per square meter
RERHEEE TEE /7K
Total water consumption 72,016.0 49,186.0 Cubic meter
mREKE 7K
Water consumption intensity 0.4 0.6 Cubic meter per square meter
RARRERE MK FTTK
Total non-hazardous waste produced 0.8 4.3 Tonne
BEEERVRE YN
Non-hazardous waste intensity 4.4 51.8 g per square meter
BEEBRRVEE ./ ¥k

# Relevant data are emissions from air business travel of employees

t ABRBEBEAEIMEZRMENTNK
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Supplier Management

Ensuring stable gas supply, high quality and safe and
reliable services is critical to our long-term development
of piped natural gas sales and transmission businesses.
We understand that maintaining good relationship and
long-term cooperation with suppliers are integral for the
steady development of our businesses. As a corporate
citizen, we have the responsibility to provide opportunities
for local suppliers for joint development, procure their
commitment to society and the environment, and uphold the
same principles and values as the Group. As such, we can
manage relevant risks and promote sustainable development
in the life cycle of all aspects of products and services.

To cope with the increasing demand from the market,
we have signed long-term cooperation agreements with
upstream gas suppliers in order to continuously maintain a
stable and reliable gas supply. PetroChina Company Limited
(“PetroChina”), the principal natural gas supplier of the
Group, has been in strategic relationship with us for more
than 10 years. In addition, we started to receive natural gas
from Sinopec Sichuan to Eastern China Gas Transmission
Pipeline Co., Ltd. since 2015, which has enhanced our
capacity to supply gas to end users.

We also have service providers, machinery equipment and
raw material suppliers for our gas pipeline construction
and connection business. During the Reporting Period, we
had 123 suppliers, all of which were located in Mainland
China. We visit manufacturers of important equipment to
inspect their production and commissioning process. Our
raw materials mainly are gas pipes and fittings, including
PE pipe, steel pipe, valve and pipe connectors. In order to
ensure the quality and safety standards of the purchased
materials, we visit new suppliers, and only start purchase
after a new supplier passes our audit. As for existing
suppliers, we also conduct regular assessments, including
qualification review, product quality, procedures and
internal management and on-site environment. If any
problems are found, we will put the supplier into the watch
list, and communicate with and require such supplier
to rectify. If it is found that suppliers violate national
laws or regulations or fail to perform their obligations
under contracts, we will terminate cooperation with such
suppliers.
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The Group cooperates with engineering contractors in
the construction and installation of gas pipelines. Our
contractor review includes the past safety compliance
records and business cases of contractors, and the bidding
management is implemented for major projects. As for daily
maintenance and emergency repairs, we engage third party
engineering teams in advance which will conduct relevant
work as demand at any time to ensure the safety of gas in an
emergency. We believe that by managing the supply chain
in a responsible manner and ensuring a fair and ethical
procurement process, we can build long-term cooperative
relationships with strong and reliable business partners.

We expect that all suppliers will comply with all applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations and
reduce the resource consumption and the impact on the
environment. The basic requirements of the Group for
business partners are set out in the Social Responsibility
and Business Ethics Agreement covering environmental
protection, occupational health and safety, moral behavior,
etc., which shall be confirmed the suppliers.

Our Employees

The development of an enterprise depends on the support
and collaboration of employees. We regard the practical
knowledge, work experience and professional skills of
employees as the precious assets of the Group. We provide
our employees with an excellent working environment, a
friendly, equal, diversified and harmonious atmosphere
as well as competitive returns, while maintaining the
physical and mental health of employees. We also provide
opportunities for training and professional development to

realize common growth of employees and the Group.
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Laws and regulations of the PRC in relation to employment
with the Group include the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour and the Labour Contract Regulation of
Jiangsu Province. To the best knowledge of the Directors
of the Group, the Group was not subject to any major
administrative sanction or punishment due to violation of
any employment laws or regulations during the Reporting
Period.

In order to ensure that our employees understand relevant
regulations and promote our continuous compliant
operation, we have formulated the Human Resources
Management Policy and the Employee Handbook, which
detail the human resources management methods of
the Company. The Group is committed to providing
fair treatment to our employees. All labour contracts
are voluntarily signed by employees, and we will verify
the identification documents of employees during the
recruitment process to avoid inadvertent employment of
child labour or forced labour and protect the rights and
interests of employees.

Talent selection

We attach significance to the value of each employee,
and strive to create an equal workplace to give employees
a sense of belonging to the Company. We provide equal
opportunities for existing employees and job applicants, and
eliminate any form of discrimination. We safeguard human
rights and equal opportunities in recruitment, remuneration
and benefits, promotion, transfer, training and dismissal, and
strictly comply with relevant employment laws and policies.
Under the principle of fairness, we recruit employees
through different channels, and absorb a wide range of
talents, pay attention to the diversity of the team, and
will not treat employees or job applicants differentially in
regard to age, gender, race, ethnicity, nationality, religion,
sexual orientation, family status or other factors unrelated to

employees’ work ability or qualifications.
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Employee distribution ST MmEE

Number of employees by gender
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Staff turnover

MABE T EIE

Number of turnover staff by gender
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Remuneration and benefits

The Group understands that our employees are the core of
our business operations. As a responsible employer, we are
committed to providing our employees with competitive
remuneration and benefits to attract and retain talents.
Remunerations of our Chinese full-time employees mainly
include basic salary, duty salary, performance salary,
seniority pay, job allowance and other subsidies. We adopt
a remuneration system that is linked to work performance,
under which we regularly carry out performance appraisal
of employees, and give additional rewards to outstanding
employees for recognition of their work performance, with
the hope that they can continue to make efforts to contribute
to the sustainable development of the Group. In addition,
we also hope to understand the employees’ expectations for
the Company through performance appraisal. The Group
regularly reviews and adjusts the remuneration and benefits
for each position, so as to ensure market competitive
remuneration and benefits.

In addition to providing employees with legally mandated
benefits (such as social security and paid annual leave), we
provide the following additional benefits:

- Birthday cake vouchers for employees;

- Festival bonus for employees on Women’s Day;

- Mooncake gift sets on Mid-Autumn Festival;

- Living allowances for employees who receive training

in other regions;

- Allowance for employees working in a desert area of
Xinjiang;

- Activities such as annual gala to promote communication
between the Company and employees
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Trainings and Development

Cultivating excellent talents can enhance the competitiveness
of an enterprise and promote the common growth of
employees and the enterprise. Therefore, we pay attention
to the long-term development of our employees, and
support employees to improve their professional knowledge
and qualities, so as to ensure that our technicians and other
employees keep up with the pace of the times. The gas
business is a highly professional, so we provide internal
and external trainings for our employees as well as various
targeted trainings according to the actual needs of different
departments and functions. As for the gas technology
business of Xinjiang Dunhua, which has been put into trial
operation in Kuga, Xinjiang, we have organized different
trainings to ensure that employees at all positions have
the necessary knowledge and skills for daily operations.
The following table sets forth relevant statistical data for
trainings provided for our employees during the Reporting
Period. Among them, Xinjiang Dunhua provided various
trainings for employees in 2018 in order to get its projects
ready to go into production.

Bk EERE

BEEBHFAL JLRCLERFE N EE
THAFXHFAE - Al ZRMFEET
MEERR SHEI-ZHIENE I
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Statistics of employee training
BT

2019 2018

Total training hours
AR LR )| B 2K
Average training hours per person

158 A5 5 2R

4,168 17,450

13.9 67.6

Hours trained by gender
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2019 2018
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219 2,946
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Hours trained by employee category 2019 2018
2R R 28 Bl & 2 B 55 5| B Y

Senior management 45 1,482
BAREEE

Middle management 178 1,779
PREEE

General and technical employees 3,945 14,189
—REIRMA R

Hours trained by age group 2019 2018
BE R B2 HIEIIRE

30 or below 1,345 9,212
30BRIA T

31 to 40 696 3,104
31Z405%

41 to 50 1,138 3,220
41ZE505%

51 to 60 977 1,825
51ZE605%

Above 61 12 89
615%3 A L
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Anti-corruption and Pro-honesty

Corporate integrity is the foundation of business operations.
The Group strictly prohibits our employees and partners
from providing or soliciting illegal benefits when handling
business, including any form of corruption, bribery,
extortion, blackmail and money laundering and other
behaviors violating the relevant laws and regulations
including the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China. In order to promote the
concept of integrity and honesty and maintain excellent
corporate governance, we have formulated the Anti-Fraud
Management Rules and provide training for employees,
which includes anti-fraud measures, investigation and
reporting guidelines and procedures, and encourage
employees and stakeholders to pay attention to and report
relevant violations and misconducts, and protect the
confidentiality of the whistleblowers and the information
received. To the best knowledge of the Directors of the
Group, the Group and its employees were not subject to
cases complaints or punishment in relation to corruption,
bribery or other misconducts during the Reporting Period.
In addition, the good reputation record of Taicang Natural
Gas has won the certification of the “Enterprise Adhering to
Contracts and Observing Credit” by relevant departments of
Taicang City.
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Community Care

Good community relations are the foundation for the
existence development of an enterprise. This is especially
the case for the Group whose growth depends on the
support and trust of the community. We give back to the
society by offering discounts to needy users. During the
Reporting Period, we continued to implement our Fee
Reduction Plan for Needy Users and offer subsidies for
7,560 cubic meters of natural gas to over 100 users, so as to
mitigate their financial burden of using natural gas services.
We will provide assistance for more users in need in the

future.

We have also been cooperating with the community
to organize safety month activities and visit multiple
communities to promote gas safety knowledge. We also
arranged staff to the elementary schools to give popular
science lectures. During the summer vacation, we organized
students to visit our regulating and control center and
natural gas terminals, which provide opportunity for students
to communicate face-to-face with technicians to learn about
gas safety. We hope that the next generation can know more
about the use of natural gas from early age, and improve the

concerns and awareness of the society on gas safety.
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B R BETRE

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

e
EY:

LK BRI E ST
BEBRIRNEEHR

TelE:E: +852 2846 9888
Fax{EE: +852 2868 4432

1 Tim Mei Avenue RIERE2212 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited HEHAMERBROERQDFIRE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 131 to 291,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report
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Key audit matters (Continued)

REEZSR (&)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELETERRUMEEREEREE

Expected credit loss of trade receivables

JEKE 58 TR S B8

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
expected credit loss for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customers with similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group’s historical observed default rates.
The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. A considerable amount of
judgement and estimation is required in assessing
the realisation of those receivables, including
the creditworthiness, past collection history and
forward-looking information of each customer.
BEREERRBEEGTERKEZRANBREERE
B BEXILERABRUBERANZETEF AR
MBI A BEE - BEREROER BEREMATE
RELENE - BERERIRZEHEEENAZNB
EEEBBERFMZIERE o FFh%FRKAENE
ReRT2ERREHE MG BRSEPHE
B OREERGENETEEER -

The carrying value of trade receivables was
RMB103,625,000 as at 31 December 2019.
The provision for expected credit loss of trade
receivables is considered as a key audit matter
due to the materiality of trade receivables to the
consolidated financial statements and the high level
of management judgement and estimation involved.
R2019F12A318 - BEBZEFNEAERAR
#103,625,0007C - B E HEFNEHEEEBERZ
BRERGSBREZER  JTANEKRESRFE R
BUBRAMEIEFTEE - AP RERENSEHE

Reffitt -

Our audit procedures included, among others,
discussing with management on the estimation
involved in determining the amount of expected
credit loss allowance regarding to the trade
receivables and assessing the management’s
processes and controls relating to the estimation of
the expected credit loss allowance.

BEENECRETEE (ATl 2EBEIdRmINE
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A EREERBEREEERBEEGLAENEF ME

e

We tested the model of provision matrix prepared
by the management to calculate the expected credit
loss and checked the information included in the
provision matrix which was based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. In order to
evaluate the appropriateness of these judgements,
we verified whether the ageing analysis including
current and days past due records for groupings of
various customers which had similar loss patterns,
historical payment patterns and historical loss data
are complete and accurate.
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BB R S

ARFZEE (H)

Key audit matter

AREELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERRNMNEERRELEE

Related disclosures are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of financial assets”, note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates” and note 23
“Trade receivables” to the consolidated financial
statements.
HAREEHEN GRS BREMT2.4IEESTIK
R |~ MIsE3 T 2@t HIE R hEt | RMtsE23 (&
WE SRR -

We reviewed the forward-looking information
which the Group used to calibrate the matrix, such
as the anticipation of the customers’ operation,
forecast industry situation, overall economic
conditions, etc.

EECDEE ESEANAREREOAELEER (F
MEFELEY  TRBEER - BELEIRRE) -

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
of trade receivables in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

REEZER (&)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELETERRUMEEREEREE

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated
financial statements amounted to RMB98,782,000
as at 31 December 2019 and was allocated to the
corresponding subsidiaries acquired as each of
these acquired subsidiaries is a cash-generating
unit (“CGU") that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

R2019F12A31 8  REMBHREABAENREE
R AERKE98,782,0007T + I 23 Bo 2 P Uk i #O 48 A Y
BRAE - WIBRAKRENZEHE AR REKE
BHBRRETENNRSELEV ((REELSE
fiz]) -

In accordance with IFRSs, management of the
Group is required to at least annually perform
impairment test for goodwill. The impairment test is
largely based on management’s estimates of future
results of each CGU to which goodwill is allocated
and involves various assumptions and judgements.
REERMBREEN - EREERERAELESF
ETREBRENR REARERAREE LERER
BHOKBENSRSELBMRREFENMGE - X
W R AR R A -

Related disclosures are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of non-financial assets”, note 3
“Significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 16 “Goodwill” to the consolidated
financial statements which specifically explain
the key assumptions the management used for fair
value less costs of disposal.

HERBEEHEN GV BRRME24[FeREE
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Our audit procedures included, among others,
involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the assumptions and methodologies
used by management, mainly the discount rates
and the long-term growth rates beyond the five-year
period.

BEENEZEFER (AT ERE) ZIRARMHES KR
PESHEEREEMEANBREITA - TEFERE
RARRAFZERORIERE

We reviewed and assessed the forecasts used with
respect to future revenues and operating results
by comparing the forecasts with the historical
performance of the respective CGUs and the
business development plan.
EEEBRRARSHESELBUNBERERER
LRFTEVEITH R - SRR A R L X EmTRRE
TEE R -

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of
goodwill in the consolidated financial statements.

BENHETAERNGEMBREBENRIIE -
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Independent auditor’s report
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report

BYZBERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEmkEMEZEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BLEFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
P EE AR¥T ARBFIT
REVENUE KA 5 1,329,875 1,102,805
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,081,359) (888,039)
Gross profit ER 248,516 214,766
Other income and gains H A Y A R Yo 6 10,399 27,171
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ko SR A (13,187) (11,990)
Administrative expenses THRREAX \ (82,208) (85,052)
Impairment losses on financial @%ﬂ&é@ﬁéﬁﬁ
and contract assets, net E518 - FEE (2,234) 902
Other expenses Hibfx (24,641) (1,382)
Finance costs BbE A AR 8 (12,310) (5,501)
Share of profits of associates R E R B A 580 7,099
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR 7 124,915 146,013
Income tax expense PRI TR XX 11 (48,880) (42,510)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEER 76,035 103,503
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BN % 75 R
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE PPN 70,150 98,621
Non-controlling interests JEVE R R 5,885 4,882
76,035 103,503
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hi2mEE
Other comprehensive loss that may ~ EEHIFAJgEEHRHEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in BRNEMEEER :
subsequent periods: i
Exchange differences on translation of 288N ETEE £ K
foreign operations M R (217) 91)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FEH {2 HEE -
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HBRTLE (217) (91)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S EZ2HERFHAEE
FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: DEN-¥:7 I
Owners of the parent BREER A 69,933 98,530
Non-controlling interests JEVE R 5,885 4,882
75,818 103,412
EARNINGS PER SHARE BATEEREZEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhERAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic HER .
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRai(AR¥ET) 13 0.08 0.11
Diluted e
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FREMN(AREIT) 13 0.08 0.10
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
P 5T AR¥T ARBTIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 14 656,249 625,895
Right-of-use assets FHAEEE 15(b) 92,435 =
Prepaid land lease payments B LA E TR 15(a) - 88,613
Goodwill EES 16 98,782 97,412
Other intangible assets HEER & 17 114,063 99,210
Investments in associates REEE R RIRIRE 18 137,551 141,358
Equity investments designated at BERATHET AR
fair value through profit or loss HRAR & 19 54,147 165,190
Debt instruments at amortised cost L HA AT BRAY
EBITE 20 95,044 13,726
Deferred tax assets RIERIE & B 21 37,888 35,169
Other non-current assets HuIEREEE 25 29,554 9,833
Total non-current assets EREEELRTE 1,315,713 1,276,406
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7E 22 9,046 10,622
Trade receivables eI E FER 23 103,625 77,061
Contract assets GREBE 24 8,160 34,129
Prepayments, other receivables and FBR A - H iR
other assets B R HAMEE 25 122,660 96,316
Amounts due from other related parties JFE st L th BE 338 5 3R 0E 26 32,571 32,744
Financial assets at fair value through &R AFEFAB=ED
profit or loss TRIEE 27 204,000 100,000
Debt instrument at amortised cost LB HA AT BRAY
BEETA 20 43,295 -
Pledged deposits EEFER 28 64,450 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 28 367,671 413,374
Total current assets MENE ERRE 955,478 764,246
CURRENT LIABILITIES ok h=N
Trade and bills payables e E 5 R R RIR 29 60,688 64,008
Other payables and accruals Hip et sE &
EEtEH 30 42,721 41,764
Contract liabilities ERAE 31 136,970 150,440
Amounts due to related parties FESTREE 508 26 650 12,945
Deferred revenue B A 32 1,043 882
Interest-bearing bank and FHRERTT R EMAER
other borrowings 33 242,233 80,000
Tax payable eI TR 29,517 24,441
Total current liabilities MENBERTE 513,822 374,480
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 441,656 389,766
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 1,757,369 1,666,172
continued/...
g/ ..
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBEMRRE

31 December 2019

201912 HA31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B 7 ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Contract liabilities ARAE 31 91,638 89,970
Deferred revenue EEUTA 32 13,924 14,094
Interest-bearing bank and FEERTT REMER
other borrowings 33 105,845 78,010
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEAE 21 27,908 25,296
Total non-current liabilities EmBEEREE 239,315 207,370
Net assets BEFE 1,518,054 1,458,802
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of BARHEE AELER
the parent
Issued capital BEEITRA 34 7,214 7,214
Reserves Gl 35 1,423,079 1,366,352
1,430,293 1,373,566
Non-controlling interests JEVE R RE 87,761 85,236
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,518,054 1,458,802
Su Yi Su Wen
Director Director
BFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BLEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAIEEARL
Special
Share Statutory reserve-  Exchange Non-
Issued Share  option  Merger  Capifal  reserve safety fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve fund fund  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
SRR
fhE &5 EE -%% Bl
BRRE  ROEE i AHRE fE BEE EEE REER REE & FERER REAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRL ARETT ARMTRL ARETT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTL ARETR ARETT ARETR
note 34 note36  note35  note35  note35  note 35
M4 Mase s WES MER BER
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1518 7214 804,019 26103 (74343) 6,231 87,030 - - 413,650 1,270,504 85,380 1,355,084
Profitfor the year £ - - - - - - - -9 962 4882 103,503
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FEEM2ESA:
the year:
Bxchange differences related o~ EB/NEHEE
foreign operations NEREE - - - - - - - (91) = (91) = 91)
Total comprehensive income for ~ £ 2 ENEEE
the year - - = = = = = (91) 98,621 98,530 4882 103412
Dividends paid to non- RREEUEL
controlling shareholders e = = = = = = = = = = (50260 (5,026)
Final 2017 dividend declared ~ BERREZ2017
and paid EXERE - (18058) - - - - - - - (18058) - (18059)
Special reserve-satety fund ERGRE-
REARR - - - - - - -4 = = -
Equity-settled share option WEREEH
anangements EREni - - 059 - - - - - - 059 - 059
Transfer from retained profits ~~ ERERBEA = = = = - 13,486 5 - (13,486) 5 5 5
At 31 December 2018 and R018512A318
1 January 2019 R019E1A1B 7,014 785,961 48,693 (74,343) 6,231 101,116 2433 (91) 496,352 1,373,566 85236 1,458,802
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - - - - 0450 70150 5885 76,05
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FERM2EFE:
the year:
Exchange differences related to - ISSHERERR
foreign operations EiZE - - - - - - - (217) - (217) - 217)
Total comprehensive income ~ FE2ENHEE
for the year - - - - - - - 7) 70150 69,933 5885 75818
Dividends paid to non- BRFERERN
controlling shareholders RS - - - - - - - - - - (3360 (3360
Final 2018 dividend declared ~ BERRIKE
and paid WIVERBRE - (520 - - - - - - - (252 - (520
Special reserve-safety fund EERE-
RR4EE - - - - - - - o - - -
Equity-settled share option WEREEHER
arrangements (note 36) BRH (Wik3e) - - 1207 - - - - - - 10 - 1207
Transfer from retained profits BREREEN - - - - - 14,031 - - (14631) - - -
AU31 December 2019 ROGEIANE 724 TeOETY  6076%  (434F  6231C TTT 102100 QOB 544094 1430293 87761 1518054

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of RMB1,423,079,000 (2018: RMB1,366,352,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BLEFE

2019 2018
20195 20185
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
i3 ARETR ARETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES £&ZBfERETE
Profit before tax BR Bt A& 124,915 146,013
Adjustments for: BroAz:
Finance costs AR 8 12,310 5,501
Share of profits of associates AMEBE R AR EF (580) (7,099)
Interest income MEBA 6 (8,293) (4,242)
Dividends from equity investments designated & & A F{E ABEA)
at fair value through profit or loss BRAARE 2 R, 6 (296) -
Gain on disposal of items of property, HENE - BERXEEL K
plant and equipment 7 - (3,601)
Fair value losses/(gains): NTHEBE /() -
Equity investments designated at fair value BERATE ABE
through profit or loss RARE 7 26,671 (2,116)
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRENEREE
through profit or loss 7 (7,674) (9,833)
Depreciation ik 7 36,385 34,063
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/ RREEENE /
amortization of prepaid land lease payments BT TR EFIAEH 7 5,244 2,991
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EERH 7 5,043 4,186
Amortisation of deferred revenue ERPAEH (913) (896)
Impairment of goodwill BEHE 7 4,252 =
Impairment of trade receivables, net ERE FHRTRE 38 7 2,234 (902)
Equity-settled share option expenses IR A E R RRER X 36 12,076 22,590
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) EREE/ (ki) 1,752 (5,835)
213,126 180,820
Increase in trade receivables JEYRE 5 IR FE (28,798) (5,621)
Decrease in contract assets AREERD 25,969 16,724
Increase in prepayments, other BRRIE - At EUHIER
receivables and other assets HtEEEM (29,390) (47,419)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /() 1,576 (1,687)
Decrease in amounts due from JEWCH th & 7 SRR D
other related parties 2,501 1,892
Increase in amounts due to other related parties &/ A B2 A A N 205 =
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables B ZEFREE (i), 2 (3,320) 13,901
Increase/(decrease) in other Bt ZIaRESER
payables and accruals s,/ Cad) 6,162 (11,666)
(Decrease)/increase contract liabilities ARARRD)/ & (14,173) 9,675
Increase in deferred revenue B AL 904 515
Cash generated from operations REXBMEAS 174,762 157,134
Interest received BIKHE 6,564 3,999
Tax paid BEfNHE (46,457) (46,038)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REEBAERERERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 134,869 115,095
continued/...
&/..
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n -\éiﬁiﬁ‘;ﬁlii
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2019 2018
2019% 2018%
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Mzt ARBTR ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFIERERE
Purchases of items of property, BENX  BERREER
plant and equipment (68,949) (80,217)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HENX - BERRXEER
property, plant and equipment eI - 7,005
Purchase of intangible assets BERVERE (7,761) (7,063)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HHEL 37 (14,339) =
Loan to a third party ME=FH1iE @m%\ (72,000) (13,726)
Repayments of a loan from a third party FE=HERER 43,726 -
Loan to associates MBS DA REER - (30,000)
Loan to a related party ﬁfﬁﬁ?ﬂ HER (348) =
Investments in associates REE DRI E (12,500) (53,000)
Purchase of equity investments at ﬁ% S RATERHARRHRARE
fair value through profit or loss (6,000) (163,074)
Prepayments for a proposed acquisition BEWERNRE (19,375) -
Dividends received from equity investments BUIEER A TE ABRH
designated at fair value through profit or loss ~ BARE 28 296 =
Dividends received from associates B U E N AR S 4,387 1,580
Purchase of financial assets at BERATEAABGENERERE
fair value through profit or loss (540,300) (689,479)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERATE ARRN
assets at fair value through profit or loss TREEMFRA 436,300 644,002
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN REZBFARSRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (256,863) (383,972)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEBFSRERE
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits BERER (EM),/ B (64,450) 67,000
Dividends paid BERRE (28,642) (23,084)
Interest paid BRFS (9,707) (5,501)
Principal portion of lease payments RERRNASHH 38(c) (2,365) =
New interest-bearing bank and Mgt BRI REMER
other borrowings 293,207 148,010
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings &S R1TEH (110,000) (80,000)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REZBFERALREFE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 78,043 106,425
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERALSENAL FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (43,951) (162,452)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ﬁ?ﬂﬁ'}fﬁi&fﬂ%ﬂg% 413,374 569,991
Effect of exchange rate changes, net EXEEHTEFE (1,752) 5,835
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERNASRASSEN
END OF YEAR 367,671 413,374

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and Group Information

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

The registered office address of the Company is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal business activities of the Group during
the year included the distribution and sale of piped
natural gas, operating compressed natural gas (“CNG”)
and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) refuelling station
business, the provision of natural gas transmission,
and acting as the main contractor of construction and
connection of gas pipelines in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate controlling shareholders of the Company are
Mr. Su Aping (Fi¥) and Ms. Zhu Yaying ((RZBZ)
(together known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

B 75 3 R B

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BLEFE

TtEREEER

BB BB D BR AR ([ARF]]) BE
RERSEEENERNRENR2013F7
RAaBEREHESEMKRLIAEREE
REMLAA °

AAalGEfMEREMIE B Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands

ARAMEBRBFRREER

FAREENTEXBEBERT B A
FANHEEBRAR  KEBBRR
R(TEBERAR]) RRIERAR ([R
ERAR L) IRIEE - RERARE
& AERERMEAMRRE BN T BA
B e

ARBEZRR » ARRHREIEBR
RAEM T RERRDREZE (REA
[HERXALR ) -

RATRME E2015FE3 A11 BRESE
BHAERZMERAR ([BRAT]) iR
ET e
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. EREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries EBERBATNER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are ARABEEMNBARIMEBHOT ¢
as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered share  attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
HIA BRATEE/ FARES
A% af R E B M TR A R TEXH
Direct Indirect
B B
China Suchuang Energy Co., Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Ltd. B 10,000/ 7T REER

(“Suchuang Hong Kong")
PEEEER (BE) BRAR

(T&RIEE])

Suchuang Gas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ""® PRC/ RMB300,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(“Suchuang Shanghai”) Mainland China N REER

BAIMR (L8) BRAR® hE/HREASE  300,000,0007
(&8I L&))

Taicang Natural Gas Company PRC/ RMB400,000,000 - 100 Distribution and
Limited 7@ Mainland China ARE sale of natural gas,
(“Taicang Natural Gas") HRE/ RER 400,000,0007T provision of natural

KEMAARRER LG/ @ gas transmission,
(TRERAR]) main contractor of

construction and

installation of

gas pipelines
BxRHERAR -
REXARGIZ -

ERERRZERRER

MEEABR

Kunshan Anda Natural Gas PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 80 Distribution and sale of

Development Co., Ltd. ™ Mainland China ARE natural gas

(“Anda Natural Gas") REPEAL 2,000,0007C RERBERAR
RUZERARERARAR"C

(TZRERAR])
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Corporate and Group Information

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

TEREEER ()

BREWBEATINER (&)
ARRTEMBARNEBNT « (B)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name business capital Company Principal activities
EmmL BRTEE/ T AR
L R &R MR R TEXR
Direct  Indirect
B B

Suzhou Zhongyu Energy PRC/Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction and
Development Co., Ltd. ™ China N operation of natural
(“Suzhou Zhongyu") HE /BN 10,000,0007C gas refuelling stations

FMPFRRERERAR/ ERREERARIMRLS
(T&MEF])

Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng Gas PRC/Mainland RMB20,000,000 - 51 Operation of natural
Co., Ltd. ™ (“Licheng Gas") China N gas refuelling stations

mIELERRREREAARY S8/ PERKME 20,000,0007C EERARMAIS
(TERMR])

Changshu City Suyu Natural Gas PRC/Mainland RMB20,000,000 - 51  Distribution and sale of
Transmission Co., Ltd. "/ China NS piped natural gas
(“Changshu Suyu”) RE /PR 20,000,0007T iz RHEEERAAR

EATHEXARBEARDR®
(IFRHE])

Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering PRC/Mainland RMB30,000,000 - 51 Promotion of
Technology Co., Ltd. 1/ China N technologies for
(“Xinjiang Dunhua”) RE /PR 30,000,0007T nitrogen and

MEFERERIRRMARAR/@
(T#8E])

carbon dioxide

ARR—BILHBAHEE
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information

(Continued)

1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

TEREEER ()

BREWBEATINER (&)
ARRTEMBARNEBNT « (B)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name business capital Company Principal activities
EmmL BRTEE/ T AR
L R &R MR R TEXR
Direct  Indirect
B B
Argus Holding Corporation © United States USD1,000 100 - Investment holding
(“Argus Holding") EJ5 1,000%7T REER
Argus Holding Corporation ©
(T Argus Holding])
Argus Midwest Resources LLC United States USD1,000 - 100 Upstream asset
(“Argus Midwest”) xH 1,000%7T investment
Argus Midwest Resources LLC @ FHEERE
([ Argus Midwest )
Argus LNG LLC ¥ (“Argus LNG") United States UsD1,000 - 100 LNG facility investment
Argus LNG LLC® ([Argus ING])  %E 1,000%7T RICRARRMERE
Vulcan Resources LLC ® (“Vulcan”)  United States UsD1,000 - 60 LNG facility investment
Vulcan Resources LLC ¥ ([Vulcan]) % 1,0003%7T and import and export
BIERARRIERE R
il
Argus World LNG LLC ® United States USD1,000 - 100 LNG facility investment
(“Argus World") xH 1,000% 7T and import and export
Argus World LNG LLC © BRI RARRIERE R
(T Argus World ) #EHO
Wanli Energy Development PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 100 Technical services,
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. W@ Mainland China ARE consulting, transfer,
(“Wanli Energy”) RE /PR 30,000,0007T development, etc

ENRERE (18) BRATY &/
(TBHER)

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Corporate and Group Information
(Continued)

1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

TEREEER ()

BREWBEATINER (&)
ARRTEMBARNEBNT « (B)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name business capital Company Principal activities
EmmL BRATEE/ FARES
L R &R MR S ER TEXR
Direct  Indirect
B A&
Nantong Suyou Gas Co., Ltd. ™2 PRC/ RMB2,000,000 = 100 Sale of general
(“Nantong Suyou”) Mainland China N dangerous chemicals
mRFARRARRR WO FEHEAL 2,000,0007C HE-RERILBm
(TR @& )
Jiruiji Energy Investment (Shanghai) ~ PRC/ RMB100,000,000 - 100 Industrial investment,
Co., Ltd. "@(“Jiruiji Energy”) Mainland China NS new energy technology
THEERIRE (LF) BRAR/ 0/ OmE /hE i, 100,000,0007C and technical services
(IEwmEaR]) EXRE  HEREMK
Bl R
Taicang Sucheng Natural Gas PRC/ RMB249,245,530 - 95 Natural gas supply
Transmission Co., Ltd. @@ Mainland China NS services, project
(“Sucheng Transmission”) B /R A 249,245,5307T construction
ARTHAXRARBRARAR/ 20 RARBER -
(&R s ]) HRER
Jiangsu Tengxu Energy Management ~ PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Contract energy
Co., Ltd. e Mainland China ARE management,
(“Tengxu Energy”) RE /R 50,000,0007 distributed energy

TEHBBERERARAR/ @/
(THEMBEEIR])

system projects, etc
ARERERE
PAERERER S
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

TEREEER ()

BRWBRARNER (&
ARRTEMBARNEBNT « (B)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name business Company Principal activities
EmmL BRTEE/ T AR
L R &R MR R TEXR
Direct  Indirect
B B
Taicang Zhongcheng Port PRC/ RMB600,000,000 - 90 Port facilities,
Construction Co. Ltd @1 Mainland China natural gas supply
(“Zhongcheng Port”) RE/ RER 600,000,0007C BORHE - RARHLE

ARTRHMENERER ARV /O
(IR0 ])

(1)

The statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of
the Ernst & Young global network.

The English names of these subsidiaries represent the
best efforts made by the management of the Company to
translate their Chinese names as they do not have official
English names registered in PRC.

No audited financial statements have been prepared for
these entities for the year ended 31 December 2019,
as the entities are not subject to any statutory audit
requirements under the relevant rules and regulations in
their jurisdiction of incorporation.

During the year, Suchuang Shanghai set up Wanli
Energy. According to the articles of association,
Suchuang Shanghai owns 100% of the voting right
and has the right to control Wanli Energy. Thus, Wanli
Energy is considered a subsidiary and consolidated into
the Group’s financial statements.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Corporate and Group Information
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

(5)

(10)

During the year, Taicang Natural Gas set up Nantong
Suyou. According to the articles of association, Taicang
Natural Gas owns 100% of the voting right and has the
right to control Nantong Suyou. Thus, Nantong Suyou
is considered a subsidiary and consolidated into the
Group’s financial statements.

During the year, Suchuang Shanghai set up Jiruiji Energy.
According to the articles of association, Suchuang
Shanghai owns 100% of the voting right and has the right
to control Jiruiji Energy. Thus, Jiruiji Energy is considered
a subsidiary and consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

During the year, Taicang Natural Gas and Taicang City
Development Group Co., Ltd jointly set up Sucheng
Transmission. According to the articles of association,
Taicang Natural Gas owns 95% of the voting right and
has the right to control Sucheng Transmission. Thus,
Sucheng Transmission is considered a subsidiary and
consolidated into the Group's financial statements.

During the year, Taicang Natural Gas acquired Tengxu
Energy. According to the articles of association, Taicang
Natural Gas owns 100% of the voting right and has the
right to control Tengxu Energy. Thus, Tengxu Energy
is considered a subsidiary and consolidated into the
Group’s financial statements.

During the year, Taicang Natural Gas and Taicang City
Development Group Co., Ltd jointly set up Zhongcheng
Port. According to the articles of association, Taicang
Natural Gas owns 90% of the voting right and has the
right to control Zhongcheng Port. Thus, Zhongcheng
Port is considered a subsidiary and consolidated into the
Group’s financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are
private limited liability companies (or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar
characteristics to a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong).

1.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

TEREEER ()

BRWBERARNER (&)
ARRTEMBARNEBNT « (B)

5)

=
e

FA - ARRARKILABE R © RIF
ABERAR - KERARHESE100%
IR R R A EES BB R o Bt
FEEORBAR A — RN E QA RN ASE
BB REANEE AR

FA - A BRI ER TR - RIE
ABEIZAR - #A LIBEF100%H
SRR R AR T IR T R o Bt
T E R A — B A R kR A
KB BRRALEE AR

FAR - ARRARRARTHMERE
BERR R AR ZERBAL - RIEA
BERAA - RKERAREEIS%H
REENAREG B - Bt - %
PWRREER—HNB AR IR AEE
BB R AR A AR

FRN - KERAZKRBEBER - BIE
MBERMEE - KRERAZTHEE100%
R ERE R AR BAER - Eitt
FEBAER AR A — R E A RRAE
EIHEHREANGAEALR -

FA - RARRAREARTHMERE
EERARARKIRMAD - RiFAE
BERAY  ABERAREEI0%H
SRR ARESNREED - Bt - R
PEAER AN B AR RN AEE
MR SR AR A AR ©

MR2019F12 A318 » XAGIHE LM
EHAENMBAR 2B ELAR
REMTEAT (3 0 MREBIBINTMA
3 AIABEERBFMRZINLAR
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.1 REE%E

2.1 Basis of Preparation

144

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for equity investments and wealth management
products which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Notes to Financial Statements
g e R

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

2.1 RBLE% (48)
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,

IAS 12 and IAS 23

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
Except for the amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 19, and
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which

are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s

financial statements, the nature and the impact of the

new and revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
except for certain recognition exemptions.
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in IAS 17.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under this method,
the standard has been applied retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the
comparative information for 2018 was not restated
and continued to be reported under IAS 17 and

related interpretations.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct
the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying IAS
17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed. Therefore,
the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 has been
applied only to contracts entered into or changed
on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items
of property and motor vehicles. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the assessment
of whether the lease transferred substantially all
the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the
Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for
two elective exemptions for leases of low-value
assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the
Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if
any) of the right-of-use assets and interest accrued
on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance
costs).

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 and included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the lease recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective
practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1
January 2019:

e Applied the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12

months from the date of initial application

e Used hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease

e Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as

operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition (Continued)

e Excluded initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the

date of initial application

e Relied on its assessment of whether leases
are onerous applying IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets immediately before the date of initial
application as an alternative to performing an

impairment review

Financial impact at 1 January 2019
The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at

1 January 2019 was as follows:

22 B RENEBRIKE (&)

(a) (#&)
TERATAN — SR D B RACETHE
HIHE (58)

R E (E)
e RERERBHFEHREE
ER SRR E R

o REREREXERBHAE
REIFR & ERISE 375 B -
KRABEBRIAREEHHOZ
BESFHANFTGH (RBET
B ERA)

R2019%F1 H1 028554
MR201991 A1 H AN B KR B 75 ¥R
B F16HELNTEMT

Increase/(decrease)
2, Ch)
RMB’ 000
AREFT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets 55 PR & A 1B 0 92,522
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments TN T AR EFRIER A (88,613)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables TERTFRIA - Bt FE WK IE K2
and other assets HEiEEm (3,177)
Increase in total assets AR 732
Liabilities &
Increase in interest-bearing bank and FTRERIT R E At 5 FRIE AN
other borrowings 732
Increase in total liabilities BEEEM 732

Change in retained earnings

R 58 2 Fl) & &) )
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (Continued)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019
reconciled to the operating lease commitments as

at 31 December 2018 are as follows:
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22 B RENEBRIKE (&)

(a) (#&)

R2019F1 A1 HZBHEZZ (48)

SRR

MR2019F1 A1 EMMAEGGERER

2018512 A31 BHK L HE A

RMB’ 000
ARETT
Operating lease commitments ®2018F12A31 8K
as at 31 December 2018 RETAERIE 2,181
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases  J& : H2%G HA7H & K J| R 10 HA
and those leases with a remaining lease 2019512 A31 83,
term ending on or Z RIJEw
before 31 December 2019 (1,196)
Adjusted operating lease commitments PR EHERAE 985
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate 201951 A1 B A IS
as at 1 January 2019 HEFBRFE 5.77%
Discounted operating lease commitments 201951 A1 ARIREER L
as at 1 January 2019 TS AIE 732
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 B1ANEEESE 732
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b) Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope

exclusion of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is applied and does not include long-term
interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than
IAS 28, including the impairment requirements
under IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term
interests. 1AS 28 is then applied to the net
investment, which includes the long-term interests,
only in the context of recognising losses of an
associate or joint venture and impairment of the
net investment in the associate or joint venture.
The Group assessed its business model for its
long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
upon adoption of the amendments on 1 January
2019 and concluded that the long-term interests
in associates and joint ventures continued to be
measured at amortised cost in accordance with
IFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position or

performance of the Group.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(c)

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application
of 1AS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the
interpretation, the Group considered whether it
has any uncertain tax positions arising from the
transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on
the Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing
study, the Group determined that it is probable
that its transfer pricing policy will be accepted by
the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation
did not have any significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

22 BT RN EHRIRE

(c)
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International 2.3 B MM 1B 14 R A R Ay B R B 3 R

Financial Reporting Standards HEA
The Group has not applied the following new and REBEARZENBRERANRBUAT
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet B AR E R R E AT RT A HE FT BB
effective, in these financial statements. B RS HR 4E R o
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business ' BRSBREENEIRNETL  2F0Es
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform I@?Eﬁﬁfw%ﬁﬁw £O% - FIEZENE
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 R 8 ERIE9% R
K’HW&%@@ IETRAEITA
Amendments to [FRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BB BEREENZ 105 R REZERBE Al
and 1AS 28 (2011) between an Investor and PR es &R 265 (2011F) REREZE
its Associate or Joint Venture * T BESEGE
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BB RS ERE 175 RELH?
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material ! BRIl S R AR e EHZEE
and IAS 8 ERZSFAE A
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BB e EE 1 RREIA BEABENGT IS
Current or Non-current?
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! 202041 A1 Hek 2 &R 18K FEH
January 2020 A 2R
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 72021451 A1 Bz #&FH%BEFE
January 2021 AR
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R2022F 1 A1 Bk 2 & FIRKFE
January 2022 fE A2
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is ¢ ORBREERGIAR AN - (BR] HERA
available for adoption
Further information about those IFRSs that are expected TEHRAEEEANZ SRR B RS E
to be applicable to the Group is described below. AV — P E R T XA -
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to transactions or other events that occur
on or after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

2.3 B MR E 15 AR A R B R B A R

HEA (&)

PR B 5 3R = RN B 3 SR B AT A BB
WIREEBRGERNBINGS - %F
ERIEE » —HBANEBREENR
ERKNEBUAELBR-—BRAR—
BEEWBRE  —EHNARBEZRE
BIEELMEES - TEEEEELE
RFTBIRA MBI ABKRER - 2%
EEATBURS M52 HERTHRIES
EB L HEREEHNTE - MEEH
FIFMESHNRALRDSNEE EBE
AR NARBEREREEHME
N o HFERMENELNESE - B
BIEREPRHENE MRS - REW
A —BREBEBELNEMBKA © it
SN - R BB ET IR R Sl ARHA FTER 1S &Y
BESERELDMSARE Wl NEEMK
MAFESEFEAR - AFFRAESH
— R REERTYIF—REBUNT
BERHE - AEERHKE B 2020F1 A
1THEARFERERPZFER - @
RRFERMERR & XEM R Rk
ZEBEZRGREMEN - BAKHE

REZGERAB I ELZFEITFE -

20196 FH | HAIMKBROBERA A

155



156

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS
10 and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,

the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group'’s financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the criteria for determining
a liability as non-current. The amendments states that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability
is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement
of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. The
amendments also clarify that the requirement for the
right to exist at the end of the reporting period applies
regardless of whether the lender tests for compliance
at that date or at a later date, and the classification is
unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise
its deferral right. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2022. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates or joint

ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or

groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than deferred tax assets, inventories, contract assets,
financial assets and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

24 T ESHBERME (&)

FERMEERME

HHIRRETR - AFEHEEETE
EREANA (BERBEE 78 A
REE TMEEMFERBEE) @ 1
FHEBEMN AW EI SR - BE A K [E]
cRNEEXReELEUNERER
HEEQNFEABRLERAMEFTRS
- UHRERNEEETE  BRIFZEEL
BELTAM EBYNAEMEEREEM
AMBRESRE  EHIBRT - BIREE
PIBMRSELEUET A WESHE -

REBREXREERAEESEIKD
THRER - EHEEREER - &5
RREAESRENEFBRATAIR R EE
HE - ZHRERREE AT I5H EEE
BENFGEMZEENRERR - BE
BELDEEELMEEBET - I
FRARREEENE - BNARER
BRIA -

REREPAREFEATTATRBR
VAR AT RERR H) B (E BT 1R B T3k Al
WA e MERIEFETR - Bl AT K
CE&HE - ERUETEERRESEDN
EFFARER - HeROZEELAER
FURER R (T BREEE) @ EEDAZ
FEETABBBTFELENZAE
ERRRERBEMEANKEE (F05
ERIFTE,/#i) - BENREBETD
REABEFABRRR  BRIFBENE
EEEIR  AXEGREENRERE
BETRBEERE S RRARK

20196 FH | HAIMKBROBERA A

163



164

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognised such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose

are as follows:

Buildings By
Gas pipelines MREE
Plant and machinery R 5 B i 23

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles RE

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents gas station
structures, machinery, gas pipelines and other property,
plant and equipment under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Operating rights

Operating rights for city pipeline network are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

twenty-eight years.

Software copyrights

Purchased software copyrights are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of

ten years.

Intellectual property rights

Intellectual property rights for petrochemical industry
are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of eighteen years.

Customer contract

Customer contract for energy management are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

sixteen years.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Prepaid land lease payment 30 to 60 years

Motor vehicles 2 to 3 years

Property 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of property
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of properties that are considered to

be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance

lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised

as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due for sales
of natural gas and 180 days past due for construction
and connection of gas pipelines services past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the

contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplitied approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as loans and borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank borrowings and amounts due to other related

parties.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

178

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued) Emas (&)
Subsequent measurement Hjtgit 28

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019

TREENHMEAEIORRED T D

2

HHERATIENEREE (BERRE
)

R HERE - SHERITEREREKA
BIRA RRIR B AGTE - FRIFRER
VREALTEKR - RUIERT - BT
RAMESIER © BB ERBEHER A RS
BIRERENRETERER - BEHNERD
PR o

B SR T BT M B R B R R R A K
ORI ESORE R B A
AETHE - BERFAREHN BT 5T AR
B o

HiEmATRARs
EREMNRBCRMERIBURSER
TRl B BV RHRER

fieh [B] — B FRA AR B R E) & B
BERRREERAEIREGREGRK
RERER] - MIEHEREETERER
RBGHERRERE  UHERWAE -
EREAENZR N BRER

HETHMTA

i B2 & BRI — R A GOXR BT
MM RR S BMEEMN
FREEIRARSEHEEREMNER
AemEERERABEHA THE M
HFERMBRARAZRE -



2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

24 T ESHBERME (&)

Frigsi (&)

PIBEARERMEEZR - RAPHHRIBEL
REEMARP AV AR REE - THER
RBERIAEE - & RRBAIEHIRE
ARt A o BB LA HD AT H0R R 1 =
£ APABHRLARLERP AR IBEEE
me - THERRELTRBERE -

s MEEERABBNER  EAR
BE ARG AHRIINEEL
BEMNNSHR  TEXZE
S AT A BB AR B K S B 1R S
& RIBEHISN - R

o HRFRMEBARKEERRHIKR
EMAREREERENS - RA
FEEREERA AL A RS A
@ - BE®RAREHEERN G
Mo TRREMEREZER 7
R DELEHRIBREE °

BREMABENREE  SESHEH
KT AR - T BRIER BAERK
it M P A Bh A 22 AP Sk B0 0 MH IR 7R 1R
BE  ARECHBEEEREE - K
ERHELCHBEE NS RENRE
Fatfh - YR GEETS B SR B e A
AN B 2 B sk BRI IEE AR IR B E R T IA
FERR ©

ME eRFEEERCEHBEENEA
& WAREMRAESRAXEL LE
BT R (RBUX) BEZE

20196 FH | HAIMKBROBERA A

181



182

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income to match the grant on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred revenue account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Sale of natural gas
Revenue from the sale of natural gas is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the natural gas.

(b) Construction and connection of gas pipelines
Revenue from the provision of construction and
connection of gas pipeline services is recognised
over time given that the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced or the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group.

(c) Natural gas transmission service

The Group’s provision of natural gas transmission
service generally includes a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same and that
have the same pattern of transfer to the customers.
Revenue from transmission of natural gas is
recognised at the point in time when the Group
transferred the promised service to the customer.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the

following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of
the revenue to which the asset related is recognised.

Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible
participants is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using the
Black-Scholes model, further details of which are given
in note 36 to the financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense and other expenses, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefits

As stipulated by PRC regulations, subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme. All formal employees are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of their last employment
at their retirement date. Subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to make contributions to the local
social security bureau at rates of certain percentage of
the average basic salaries of the employees under the
employment of subsidiaries in Mainland China to whom
the defined contribution retirement plan is applicable.
Subsidiaries in Mainland China have no obligations
for the payment of pension benefits beyond the annual
contributions to the local social security bureau as set

out above.

Accommodation benefits

According to the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
is required to make contributions, which are in
proportion to the salaries and wages of the employees,
to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There are
no further obligations on the part of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China, except for the contributions to the

accommodation fund.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period and their profit or
loss is translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3. TESFTHERMET

3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

192

Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts

The Group determines the lease term as the
non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by a highly possible renew action
which reasonably certain to be exercised.

The Group has the highly possibility to renew the
periods under some of its leases to lease the assets
for additional terms. The Group applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to
renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to renew. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its
ability to renew (or not to renew) the periods of existing
lease (e.g., a change in business strategy).
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts (Continued)

The Group included the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of property and motor vehicles
due to the significance of these assets to its operations.
These leases have a short non-cancellable period and
there will be a significant negative effect on operation
or production if a replacement is not readily available.

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of
dividends

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding
corporate income taxes relating to the unremitted
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Chinese Mainland that are subject to withholding
taxes. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities, based
upon the likely distribution level of such earnings from
these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount
of deferred tax liabilities arising from the withholding
tax associated with the investments in subsidiaries in
Chinese Mainland for the year ended 31 December
2019 was RMB1,067,000 (31 December 2018: Nil).
Further details are contained in note 21 to the financial

statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period, are described

below.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(1)

(ir)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations, or competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in

note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns according to sales type,
customer type and rating.

The provision matrix is initially based on the
Group’s historical observed default rates.
The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group'’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in note 23 and note 24 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary tax differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019 was RMB37,888,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB35,169,000), details of which are set out in

note 21 to the financial statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv) Estimation of the amortisation period of connection
fees recorded as contract liabilities and deferred
revenue
The Group receives fees from customers in
advance in exchange for the connection of
gas pipelines to the urban natural gas pipeline
network. These fees are received in advance and
gradually amortised. The Group determines the
estimated amortisation period of ten years for its
revenue recognition. This estimate is based on the
Group’s historical experience of the actual service
period and the strength of the Group’s business
relationship with each individual customer. It
could differ significantly based on the customer’s
profile, expected term of the relationship and the
strength of the customer’s business relationship
established with the Group. Generally,
amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis
for ten years. The carrying amount of connection
fees and deferred revenue as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 31 and note 32 to the financial

statements.

(v) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2019 was RMB98,782,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB97,412,000). Further details are given in note
16.
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Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is natural gas
operation. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment

analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers
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2019 2018

2019% 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR® TR ARETTT

Mainland China A B A 1,327,880 1,101,957
Overseas SN 1,995 848
1,329,875 1,102,805

The revenue geographical information above is

based on the locations of customers.

(b) Non-current assets
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(b) FRBEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARETT ARETIT

Mainland China HE A 1,129,071 1,060,028
Overseas AN 1,857 2,293
1,130,928 1,062,321

The non-current asset information above is
based on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

One single customer accounted for 24.4% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: 22.8%).

A EFRBEEERTIAEEME
WRKE YT EReBTANE
ERIBEE -

EBEEEFHNEHR
REBZE2019F 12 A31BHILEFE @ &
BE—EFRAMAEEKRA24.4%
(20184 : 22.8%) °
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4. Segment Information (Continued) 4.
Information about major customers (Continued)
The directors have only little information about
whether a group of entities are under common control;
and therefore the assessment is made according to the
directors” best knowledge. Especially, the assessment
is not for those entities which might solely be under
the ultimate common control of the government after
taking into account the economic integration among
such entities in the economic environment with a large

number of state-owned entities in Mainland China.

5. Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

7 ERE R ()
BRETEZEFNEHR (&)
EXH-HEREOSIAREGERD
EER R ARG IREZEEHA
et » AR - A REFAILIFH AT #E
EAXBTHELREZEFNEREL -
DRERERERENTBEAMES K
EFRALENEERETOLERS

A
AEEAHRADTRFIIT :

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBFT
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEE#WKam 1,330,380 1,101,385
Revenue from other sources A FKRHA
Gross rental income from operating leases rREHEHS AL 3,443 3,443
1,333,823 1,104,828
Less: Government surcharges B BURBTINE (3,948) (2,023)
1,329,875 1,102,805
Revenue from contracts with customers RPA K
Type of goods or services EmBREER
Sale of natural gas HERAR 1,197,568 1,011,861
Construction and connection of gas pipelines & REAKRAE B 115,365 78,403
Transmission of natural gas BERAR 11,379 7,949
Others Hith 6,068 3,172
Total revenue from contracts with customers P A 42N 1,330,380 1,101,385
Timing of revenue recognition A ON: LS
Goods or services transferred at a point A JE B R B e G Y
in time BEme iR 1,215,014 1,022,982
Services transferred over time RIS R R ) RS 115,366 78,403
Total revenue from contracts with customers BEA#4ENE 1,330,380 1,101,385
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Revenue (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

B ()
TRIRREE B ASFEERA
REPERRBOMASE -

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARMF T ARET T

Sale of natural gas HERAR 82,334 85,093
Construction and connection of R RIEAKRAREE

gas pipelines 68,106 58,246

150,440 143,339

There is no revenue recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods.

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations

is summarised below:

Sale of natural gas

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the natural gas, the payments are paid in advance
or due within 30-90 days from delivery for different
customers.

Construction and connection of gas pipelines services
The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before or during rendering
the services. The remaining percentage of payment
generally should be paid upon completion of
construction and connection and the Group usually
give the customers a credit period of 180 days.

WEL BT IR C TR B E EHER
WA e

BHERE
FARAEBEHNEENERBANT

HEXAR
BHEEIRRIMNRAREBTK - RA
RA X RNARE P RM1E30E90
BAEEIER -

ERREAMTEBRE
BARARRERBH —BREMAE
B - BRERAATSKARGHE — KA
MNEHBK - BEERERIREATK
BENFBRFEBEAAEBRBESLTE
F180KM{EEH -
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Revenue (Continued)

WA (%)

Performance obligations (Continued) BHEE (&)
Rendering of natural gas transmission service TR B XX A RIRTE

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the promised service to the customers and the payments

are generally paid in advance.

The amount of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

BRUREIRATPE RN AERSERE
B BETRESAROA

HEN A HIEERBRBEHNEECR
ERHNIDREK) IR S ER S BN
I

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BTR ARETT
Amounts expected to be TREER B AN R

recognised as revenue:
Within one year —F R 126,097 87,386
More than one year HH —F 126,781 181,398
252,878 268,784

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
construction and connection of gas pipelines, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within
two years. All the other amounts of transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations are
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.
The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.
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6. Other Income And Gains 6. HMWARWE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AREBT T
Other income HA WA
Interest income FE WA 8,293 4,242
Government grants I T 485 B 1,747 1,678
Foreign exchange gain ME 5 W - 5,600
Others Hity 63 101
10,103 11,621
Gains Wz
Dividends from equity BERAFESARRH
investments designated at BRARE 2 IRE
fair value through profit
or loss 296 -
Gain on disposal of items HEWE - BB RRIE
of property, plant and TH B W
equipment - 3,601
Fair value gains: N ERE
Equity investments designated EERATHES ABRD
at fair value through profit BRI E
or loss - 2,116
Financial assets at fair BRAFEFABRT
value through profit or loss TREE - 9,833
296 15,550
10,399 27,171
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7. Profit before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

7. BRBAIRR

AEBBRB AR R MG (G

charging/(crediting): A)
2019 2018
2019% 20185
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Cost of inventories sold HEGERA 1,024,274 856,193
Cost of services provided RERBEAA 57,085 31,846

Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BB RRETE (MiT14)

equipment (note 14) 36,385 34,063
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESENE

(2018: amortisation of land (20184 : T EFRIBHIH)

lease payments) (note 15(b)) (FEE15(b)) 5,244 2,991
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH (HH17)

(note 17) 5,043 4,186
Impairment of goodwill* B (E 4,252 -
Minimum lease payments under RELEHENRERENR

operating leases - 1,987
Lease payments not included in the At AMEAEHEN

measurement of lease liabilities RER T (ME15(d)

(note 15(d)) 1,196 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZER & 2,050 1,950
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERBARX (TREMTIMEMN

directors’ and chief executive’s EERFETRAENMNE) -

remuneration as set out in note 9):

Wages and salaries I&k%Fe 31,190 27,294

Equity-settled share option expenses IR A E B RER X 11,195 21,468

Pension scheme contributions FREFEIEH 2,730 2,600

Social security contributions and terRERRERER

accommodation benefits 3,547 2,660
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) BEH AR () 1,465 (5,600)
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE SERTURME %8 (FiEE23)

(note 23) 2,234 (902)
Fair value losses/(gains): AHEESE /(M) -

Equity investments at fair value BATESABRHRARE

through profit or loss 26,671 (2,116)

Financial assets at fair value through BATESABRNEREE (Me)

profit or loss (note 6) (7,674) (9,833)

Interest income (note 6) MEYA (HizFe) (8,293) (4,242)
Gain on disposal of items of property, &M « BE RFEEE Kz (Fe)

plant and equipment (note 6) - (3,601)
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Profit before Tax (Continued) 7. BRBIRDGEF ()
*  The impairment of goodwill is included in “Other O EBREAGEERRAN[ A
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. TR e
Finance Costs 8. MEMRAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERANITEIIAT
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
ARBTR ARETT
Interest on interest-bearing FEEREERERNNE
borrowings and contract liabilities 13,053 5,292
Interest on lease liabilities (note 15(c)) HE B EMFE (FIEE15(c)) 193 -
Others it 39 209
Total interest expense on W IR A AT AR
financial liabilities not at fair value ~ £EIBENF SR BHE
through profit or loss 13,285 5,501
Less: interest capitalised W EARER B (975) =

12,310 5,501
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Directors’ And Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

9. EBERFETHAENME

Rz EHARR - BB RAEGIZE383(1)
(@)~ (b) ~ (O RMOIFAKR AR (BEES
MEEER) ROIE280 - BEFANES
REZBITERABNMESMT :

as follows:
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T AREFTT
Fees we 447 460
Other emoluments: Hip e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EUREYHR
in kind 6,242 5,596
Equity-settled share option expenses LA & 45 & ) i AR i A 2 881 1,122
7,123 6,718
7,570 7,178

The fair value of the options granted to certain directors
have been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join the Group, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the year.
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9.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

2019

Notes to Financial Statements
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HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

9. EERFETHRABHME (H)

(a) BAFAITES
REAXN FRBILIERTESH
/T

20194

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total

LIS AEEN
e BRER et
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRT AR%¥TR ARBFT
Mr. Zhou Qingzu AER T E 149 25 174
Mr. Luk Wai Keung B fE a8 e A& 149 25 174
Mr. Zhu Tong VN it 149 - 149
447 50 497

2018 20185

Equity-settled

share option
Fees expenses Total

N EER
ok B A ET
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREFT ARBTT AREFT
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BERLE 150 41 191
Mr. He Junjie ™ BB ED 10 - 10
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PERog st 4 150 41 191
Mr. Zhu Tong K k& 150 — 150
460 82 542

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the

year (2018: Nil).

RER BEENBIIFATEENE
B & (20184 : &) °
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9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERFETHAEBNME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) MITEERFHTES
directors
Salaries,
allowances Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and henefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
o 2 NEREEN i3/

e RENAE RERS BREXL  HEEX El
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARBTR ARET:R

2019 20195

Executive directors: HTES:

- Mr. Su Aping ? — BT - 2,054 - 149 - 2,203
- Ms. Zhu Yaying ? —REETLY - 797 - 153 - 950
~ Ms. Su i -HELt - 1,610 - 153 - 1,763
- Mr. Du Shaozhou - HAR%E - 1,181 - 158 - 1,339
~ Mr. Li Jianyi © —ZR—£A - 162 - 193 - 355
~ Ms. Su Wen © -HELL - 140 - - - 140

- 5,944 - 806 - 6,750

Non-executive directors: FHTEE

~ Mr. Xu Lei -FERE - 149 - 25 - 174
~Mr. Jin Bo - REE - 149 - - - 149
- 6,242 - 831 - 7,073
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9.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (Continued)

9. EERFETHRABHME (H)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

(b) FITESERIFATES (&)

Salaries,

allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions Total
x4 DEGERN  RKE
#e REDNE XERE  BRESH HEIMEX At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
2018 2018%
Executive directors: HIES:
~ Mr. Su Aping —HMEEE = 1,748 £ 243 z 1,991
~ Ms. Zhu Yaying —RBAXE - 1,186 - 249 - 1,435
~ Mr. Du Shaozhou - HARRE - 1,185 - 258 - 1,443
~ Ms. Su Yi -HEat - 1,207 - 249 - 1,456
- 5,326 - 999 - 6,325
Non-executive directors: ~ FHTEE:
- Mr. Xu Lei -FELE - 150 - 4 - 191
~ Mr. Zhuang Jianhao © —HRERAES = 82 = = - 82
- Mr. Jin Bo - BRELY - 38 - - - 38
- 5,596 - 1,040 - 6,636
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9.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (Continued)

(1)

Mr. He Junjie resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1
February 2018.

Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying resigned as
directors of the Company on 19 August 2019.

Mr. Li Jianyi and Ms. Su Wen were appointed as
executive directors of the Company on 19 August
2019.

Mr. Jin Bo was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 3 September 2018.

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company on 3 September 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.
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9. EERFETHRABHME (H)

(b) FITESERIFATES (&)

(1) fAIBEEEER20184F2 A1HE
FARRBYIIENITEST B -

2) BMMFEXERADTRZLER
20198 A19ABAIARAIES
— B o

(B) FTE—HRAERMIERLIER2019
FEA19BEZ T ARRBNIT
BEo

(4) ©RELEDN2018F9A3EES
EERRBFFRITES -

(5) HEEEEEN2018F9 A3 HE
ERRBIFERITES B -

REA » WEFTSLERZHE - A
EENELURERETAME



10. Five Highest Paid Employees 10.

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four directors (2018: four directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one
(2018: one) highest paid employee who is neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

TEmEHMES

FR > hEmE=7HEES (BENRE
E(2018%F : MBER)) M FIFH
REXHTE - R 8 —% (2018
FRB)UFARAEFHETETR
AEBNESFHMEEMSOFRBIDT

follows:
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TR ARBFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ¥& - FZH R EYH &= 2,565 3,172
Equity-settled share option expenses DA 4 H BV BRI 7 X 239 397
2,804 3,569

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

FEEZSHTMEENMES N TIATHA
R ASIIT -

as follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184

AR¥2,500,001 T2
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR #3,000,0007T 1 -

AE#3 000,001 L&
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR#4,000,0007T - 1
1 1

The fair value of the options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employee’s remuneration

disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join the Group, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

ERBREBER BN REROBRIEL
FERMEL BB - M ASEER
BREMSEO A LRI BT
ITEIRABNSETMES 2 MR
B -

FR-AEERMERNAERSHFALX
MERFM - (ERRSIINAREE SN
AR ER 0 EEE AE RRERIAE(E -
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11. Income Tax

11. FiB%H

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and

operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax

in that jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong and the United States
profits tax has been made as the Group had no

AEBEERANEBEKE QA EMREE
X ERAERMMEENIREZE A
EREE SN IR B R EEGATEN o

REFASBHSNRANEATE - AREIH
BN % B AR MRS -

HRFEAREEETER BN |BES
PRI ER DA A - FU W\ EE K

KBNERIEL RS -

assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong Kong
and the United States during the year.

FE A B EAFT S R TR R R &
TEMSTE(TFHEEMSEE] - B
2008F1 A1 A#LERER) « BAS
EhBEHER AR ERRENIA25%
(20184 : 25%) KEEMERGE -
ETEESEERHELHERENE
EE BRI

The provision for current income tax in Mainland
China is based on the statutory rate of 25% (2018:
25%) of the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group as determined in accordance with the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008 (the “New
Corporate Income Tax Law”), except for certain group
entities which are entitled to various concessionary tax
rates or tax exemptions and reliefs.

The major components of income tax expense are as ISR EEHETWOT ¢

follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
ABE#HTF T ARET T
Current tax: ENEATRIA -

Income tax in the PRC for the year FRRBEMEH 51,364 45,794

Adjustments in respect of current tax of ERT HIE A B
previous periods ENEATR TR A B 169 (534)
Deferred tax (note 21) EERIE (MEE21) (2,653) (2,750)
Total tax charge for the year FARIAL 48,880 42,510
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11. Income Tax (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

rate is as follows:
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11. FrE% (&)
ERREAD R REKEH B2 R
1} AT 72 B A HE R o R B R At E R B AT
R BB X IR R R B R A E OB
ERZAOHRMT :

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB"000

ARBTR ARETT

Profit before tax BREE AR A 124,915 146,013

Tax at the statutory tax rate REEHETE 2 HIA 34,441 36,503

Lower tax rate for a specific entity BEERBZBERE (120) (604)

Tax losses utilised from previous periods  FTE) BT A IEE1E (533) =
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the ~ RASEFR BN ER AR 2K
distributable profits of the Group's ME10%t ERHRNTE

PRC subsidiaries 2,067 -

Expenses not deductible for tax PAHIBIAX 1,390 229

Tax losses not recognised AEERVIEER 11,582 8,662

Adjustments in respect of current tax BT HEA BN RERE

of previous periods 169 (534)

Profits attributable to associates BN A e i A (116) (1,746)

Total tax charge recognised BRI IAR X A5 48,880 42,510
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12. Dividends
On 31 March 2020, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB0.028
per ordinary share (2018: RMB0.028), subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

12. RE

MR2020F3 A31H » AR AIEEE#
RIBFHIREEHZE2019F12A318IEF
ERAREEGREBRAR0.0287T
(20184 : AR¥0.0287T) @ HBFR
RRARGIEERRAFAS LHER
AEE -

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® TR ARETT
Proposed final - RMB0.028 HEARHRE —
(2018: RMB0.028) per BREBKRARK0.0287T
ordinary share (20184 : AR¥0.0287T) 25,282 25,282

13. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of The Parent
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 902,924,000
(2018: 902,924,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019

13. BAREEREFAABRGER

27

BRERRFTIRER QB L BRER
EABRGEFRNEHNRFAEEITERR
hnHEF 5 £0902,924,0000% (20184 :
902,924,0000%) 5t & -

BEREERNNERIIERERR TR
BHERE AREFRENFTE - 5t EE
PrAME BB MEFARSANGAES
BRERBNHNFEAND HTEBREE
M 48 AN S 35 B RER AR (BT T 1
BB ETE B ELRRE
AR EEET -



Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE

13. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 13. B AR EBEREZSEAELER
ZF (&)
SIREARBERF T RN TR

Equity Holders of The Parent (Continued)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on:

&g

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBF T ARBTT

Earnings 25

Profit attributable to ordinary equity RIETEBRERRFIH
holders of the parent, used in the AR EBRERE A

basic earnings per share calculations &1k i A

70,150 98,621

Number of shares

BHEE
2019 2018
20194 20184

Shares &)

Weighted average number of ordinary FR{EFTEBRERRFIFNA
shares in issue during the year used BEITEERINE T

in the basic earnings per share

calculation

ik
S I

Effect of dilution — weighted average HEy

ERall:RSol 2

Share options Bt

I

number of ordinary shares:

902,924,000 902,924,000

20,000,000 80,000,000

922,924,000 982,924,000
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. 9% - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
Buildings pipelines  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
B %ER

B HREE HERAR WOERE nE  ERIR it
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARTI ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR

Cost: A
At1 January 2018 201851818 M 43713 47,203 4,588 8,715 60,822 777,426
Additions e - 59 1,416 1357 1,729 80436 84997
Transfers g5 2085 22,887 3,699 - - (8670) -
Disposals & (810) - 280 £ = - (3,640)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A318R

and 1 January 2019: 2019%1R18 23,660 456,659 49,482 5945 10444 112587 858,777
Additions hE - 34 2,163 822 1,636 58,203 62,948
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37~ WEHBAR (K&37) - - - - - 3,791 3,791
Transfers g 4,741 8,134 3,102 - - (1597) -
Disposals & - - - - (81) - (81)
At 31 December 2019 #2019% 124318 28401 46487 54747 6767 11999 158,694 925435
Accumulated depreciation: ZifE:
At1 January 2018 1201851 A1H 3295 136647 22,839 2351 4,271 - 199,061
Charge for the year ERRR 6961 21,974 3,158 914 1,036 - 34,003
Disposals e (26) - (216) - - - (24))
At 31 December 2016 20185124318 R

and 1 January 2019 2019%1A18 39886 158621 25781 3,265 5,307 - 232,88
Charge for the year ERREY 6,804 23,293 4333 816 1,139 S 36,385
Disposals & - - - - (81) - (81)
At 31 December 2019 120195124318 46,692 181914 30,114 4,081 6,385 - 269,186
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2016 #2018%12A31A 183772 298,038 23,701 2,680 5117 112587 625,895
At 31 December 2019 12019128318 181709 282913 24,633 2,686 5614 158,694 656,249
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
At 31 December 2019, none of the Group’s buildings
(2018: RMB117,784,000) were pledged to secure
interest-bearing bank borrowings granted to the Group
(note 33).

15. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
property and motor vehicles used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 30
to 60 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of property
generally have lease terms between 2 and 3 vyears,
while motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 3

years.

(a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

14. Y% - BEKZRE (&)

15.

2019512 8318 ' AEEREEZF
B (20184F : ARM 117,784,000
L) MBABRTFAEEMNBRITER
REHER (HFE33) o

HE

REBIEAEBEA
AEBBRAREEKEENRE R AE
ZEBEEMHEESY - BRAIEH—X
MAFAmMEFTKREREL - A
302605 - MEBREZE T WHENK
B TSREINEMKE - WEM
EMAEBREA2E3IF - MAENEE
BER3IF -

(a) TEITEHHHEFIE (2019F141H

2019) ZFT)

RMB’ 000
ARBTRT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 201851 A1 BRAREE 94,599
Recognised in profit or loss during the year FARERER (2,991)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 7201812 A31 B REIE 91,608

Less: current portion, included in prepayments, & : BENH3ERS + 5F ATEfTFE
other receivables and other assets H b e sRIE R E M B B (2,995)
Non-current portion FERNEAER 73 88,613
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Notes to Financial Statements

BA SRR BT EE
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A31HIEFE
15. Leases (Continued) 15. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEREEA (&)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) (EHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use FR - AEEFEAEEENREE
assets and the movements during the year are as NEEMT :
follows:
Prepaid
land lease Motor
payment  vehicles Property Total
L
HEMKER AE L/ES R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTRT AR¥ T
As at 1 January 2019 M2019%1H18 91,608 = 914 92,522
Additions NE — 3,374 1,775 5,149
Exchange realignment M 5 8 B = = 8 8
Depreciation charge HEER (2,981) (1,125) (1,138) (5,244)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12H31H 88,627 2,249 1,559 92,435
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15. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included

under interest-bearing bank and other borrowings)

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

15. & (&)
REBERAEBEA ()
c) HEEE
FRNEEAE GIAGERTRE
MEXET)MEEERZSH N

and the movements during the year are as follows: N~
2019 2018
20195 20185
Lease  Finance lease
liabilities payables
HEAE
mEHEE P+ RIR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 BRAREE 732 =
New leases e 5,149 -
Exchange gains and losses B 3, Mo 2 K% B 1R 8 -
Accretion of interest recognised FREHERF B ZM
during the year 193 -
Payments (NE (2,558) =
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31 BREREE 3,524 =
Analysed into: RUTRIESN
Current portion BNEAER 7 1,967 =
Non-current portion SERNEREE 1,557 =

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is

disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

T B (BB IR B S SRR M 333
-
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

15. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d)

(e)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation

15. HE (&)
REBIEAEEA (B)
(d) 1825 7 BE SR B9 T & 46 B 2 3B 20

to leases are as follows: ’s
2019
20194
RMB’ 000
AR®T T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBENE 193
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEENEER 5,244
Expense relating to short-term leases ERFE BRTH & R N AHEIR
and other leases with 201912 A31H3K
remaining lease terms ended on or Z Rl E MmO EMEE
before 31 December 2019 B
(included in administrative expenses) (FTATTHRAEX) 1,196
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERPHERNETHE 6,633

The total cash outflow relating to lease is
disclosed in notes 38(c) to the financial
statements.
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15. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

15. € (&)

The Group leases its properties under operating

lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally

require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental

income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB3,443,000 (2018: RMB3,443,000), details of which

are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease

AEBEESHEA

AEBRBEEHSLHHBAEME -
ZEHEMBERME KRB I ERE
T FRN - AKENERRBESWAR
AR#3,443,0007C (20185F : AR
3,443,0007T) ' FBEH R B HREM T

5o

M2019F12 A31 8 - BEAREEIRE

payments receivable by the Group in future periods EH P 2 A REE & 1 E 1 EWOR
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants BRIRFEE RN
are as follows:
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Within one year —F R 3,662 3,459
After one year but within two years —FREMFERN 1,699 2,963
After two years but within three years MERE=FR 1,234 1,048
After three years but within four years =FRENFA 755 738
After four years but within five years MEREBERFEA 655 755
After five years L& 694 1,349
8,699 10,312
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

16. Goodwill 16. B &
RMB’ 000
ARETIT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 2018F1H1H »
and 1 January 2019 2018412 A31 B &
20191 A1H 97,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) U BB B A a) (FizE37) 5,622
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 103,034
Accumulated impairment: R5HREE :
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 201851518 »
and 1 January 2019 201812 A31H X
20191 HA1H =
Impairment during the year FANRE (4,252)
At 31 December 2019 2019F12 A31H (4,252)
Net carrying amount: BRTERE -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12 A31H 97,412
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 98,782

Impairment testing of goodwill

B R E A

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the following cash-generating units
(“CGUs") for impairment testing:

—  Distribution and sale of nature gas of Licheng Gas
(“Licheng Gas”)

—  Distribution and sale of nature gas of Anda Natural
Gas (“Anda Natural Gas”)

—  Promotion of technologies for nitrogen and carbon
dioxide of Xinjiang Dunhua (“Xinjiang Dunhua”)

—  Contract energy management and distributed

energy system projects of Tengxu Energy (“Tengxu
Energy”)
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16. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined
based on fair value less costs of disposal, using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. The
discount rates applied to the cash flow projections were
13.6% (2018: 13.3%) for Licheng Gas, 15.0% (2018:
16.5%) for Anda Natural Gas, 18.8% for Xinjiang
Dunhua (2018: 18.6%) and 14.2% for Tengxu Energy.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the above cash-generating units beyond the five-year
period is 3%, which is also an estimate of the rate of
inflation. The fair value measurement hierarchy was
level 3.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the CGUs is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

16. & (1)

EERERE (8)
REeEABMHITRESELIERATF
BEBREHENE  WEAERKEEEREL
ENRAFHRYEEENRERERAE
E o ARERME  TEXAR - FE
HBEKBEMBERIR SR ETENMBLIR
KRN E13.6% (20184 : 13.3%)
15.0% (20184 : 16.5%) * 18.8%
(20184 : 18.6%) & 14.2% » AR
MR eELABMAFERREREN
BREAE3% @ WL ERENAMTARE
Ko NTEAEERAFIL -

RERRSELAEUNBEREEN

2019 2018
20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT ARETF T

Licheng Gas BEME 51,723 51,723
Anda Natural Gas TIERAR 35,812 40,064
Xinjiang Dunhua B E 5,625 5,625
Tengxu Energy BB BEIR 5,622 =
98,782 97,412

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and
its expectations for the development of the market.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective

industries.

TR E R ERETREERERFF
WIRERERANMEKENSEEZER
&

HBEEM*E - EBREENABTRBARR
MSERBAETHEEENE -

BB — REIERITTES ERR OBAT
BRI o
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

16. Goodwill (Continued) 16. BE (E)

222

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

During the year, an impairment loss of RMB4,252,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as other expense, in respect of the goodwill
resulted from the acquisition of a subsidiary of the
Group, Anda Natural Gas. During the impairment
test, Anda Natural Gas was considered as a separate
cash-generating unit (“Anda Natural Gas CGU”). The
impairment charges are driven by the lower recoverable
amount of Anda Natural Gas CGU resulting in the
directors’ reassessment that the estimated future
business performance of Anda Natural Gas CGU might
not achieve the expectation of management taking the
budgeted gross margin and estimated growth rate of

distribution and sale of nature gas into consideration.

The recoverable amount of Anda Natural Gas has been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal,
which is based on certain key assumptions including
discount rate, long-term growth rate and budgeted
gross margin. The carrying amount of Anda Natural Gas
CGU was determined to be higher than its recoverable
amount of RMB5,314,000 and an impairment loss
of RMB4,252,000 (2018: Nil) was recognised. The
impairment loss was solely allocated to goodwill, as a
result, the carrying amount of goodwill was reduced.
The key assumptions used in calculation include a
discount rate of 15.0%, long-term growth rate of 3%
and budgeted margin which are consistent with market

average level and external information sources.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019

EERERE (8)

RER - WEASE —RHHBARLE
AAREENBERMINREBEAR
#4,252,000 TERGEBERER A
HMAX - RBERREP  TEXAR
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RREELEN]) - REXENRER
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WIBEEMERMGFHERE®ER - FHT
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EBR|AVENNETIEENTEL -
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15.0%MB IR X « 3R RE -
AR 56 M5 KT RINEBE KRR
MIEEFEX -



16. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The following table illustrates the breakdown points of
each key assumption as at 31 December 2019, with all
other variables held constant, whether the recoverable
amount of the CGUs excluding Anda Natural Gas CGU
would have been approximately equal to the carrying
amount. Any reasonably possible change in other
key assumptions on which management has based
its determination of all CGUs’ recoverable amounts
excluding Anda Natural Gas CGU would cause all
CGU’s carrying amounts to exceed their recoverable

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

16. & (1)

EERERE (8)
TREAEMEEMISEREFTE
MIERT - MESELBEMNATKE S
F(RERARRSEEBMERIN) BER
EEHEE - B2019F12 A31B&EE
BRI OBL  c EREERNLETHE
BEEABEMAIKREEE (LERAR
REEEBMKRIN HEMEZRE
EREEEEE  HABRMERS
ELXBMAEMERBETKEESHE -

amounts.
Growth rate
beyond the
Pre-tax five-year
discount rate period
BiA TEHEMN
BEER R BRE
Licheng Gas BEME 14.56% (7.46%)
Xinjiang Dunhua FIBAE 19.82% (4.55%)
Tengxu Energy LR 14.13% 1.13%
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

17. Other Intangible Assets 17. Hitb B EE
Intellectual
Customer ~ Operating Software property
contract rights  copyrights rights Total
RFEH KER  BM4RE 0 ARER Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB"000 RMB"000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®Tn AR®Tn ARWTR ARET:R
Costs: A
At 1 January 2018 M2018%1A1H - 89,741 3,957 7,034 100,732
Additions NE = = 6,035 1,028 7,063
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31A K
and 1 January 2019 2019%1H1H = 89,741 9,992 8,062 107,795
Additions NE = = 9,711 = 9,711
Acquisition of a subsidiary  YeE& M & A A (FiFE37)
(note 37) 10,185 - - - 10,185
At 31 December 2019 R®2019%F12A318 10,185 89,741 19,703 8,062 127,691
Accumulated amortisation: ~ Eit#8 :
At 1 January 2018 R20185F1 H1H - 3,971 428 - 4,399
Provided during the year FREE - 3,724 462 - 4,186
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31A K
and 1 January 2019 2019F1H1H — 7,695 890 — 8,585
Provided during the year —~ FR& & 169 3,646 1,056 172 5,043
At 31 December 2019 2019124318 169 11,341 1,946 172 13,628
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H - 82,046 9,102 8,062 99,210
At 31 December 2019 M2019612A318 10,016 78,400 17,757 7,890 114,063
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Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

18. Investments in Associates 18. REEE R AINRE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARBTTT
Share of net assets DEEEFE 116,629 120,436
Goodwill on acquisition BR o B T 72 AR RO P 20,922 20,922
137,551 141,358
(a) Particulars of the associates are as follows: () BEEAQRIMFEWT -
Percentage of
A
Nominal value of Place of
paid-up/registered  registration and Voting Ownership
Name of company capital ~ operations power interest Principal activity
Bz
AR AMBANEE EMREELE RRE fiakRE TZXH
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas RMB117,650,000 PRC/Mainland 49% 49% Sale of gas products,
Co., Ltd.* (*Kunlun Suchuang Gas’) ARE  China and pipeline
BN R RERBANAERAE 117,650,000 &/ ERH construction and
(IR mEEIRR]) maintenance
HEMRER:
BRREELEE
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Natural Gas RMB28,000,000 PRC/Mainland 40% 40% Manufacture and sale
Usage Co., Ltd.* {"Kunlun Suchuang Usage") ARE  China of compressed
ENrERERBEXARFIRERAA" 28,000,000 HE /FEAL, natural gas
(TRR&EINA)) RERHEERRAR
Shanghai Zhongji Suchuang New Energy RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland 49% 49% Technology
Technology Co., Ltd.* (‘Zhongji Suchuang’) AR%  China development and
(LB BEERNRAERAR) 50,000,000 HE /REAL technology services
LRh RN RERAT of new energy
([msgeel]) technology
FRRRORMRS
LR
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the associates are as follows: (a)

(Continued)

18. REFE QR RRE (F)

B

Ejﬂ/\j%i,%m]“ﬁ : (%E)

Percentage of
AR
Nominal value of Place of
paid-up/registered registration and Voting Ownership
Name of company capital operations power interest Principal activity
B4R/
DR4R AfEANEE SMREELY RRE fakRE TERH
Xinjiang Dunhua Petroleum Technology Co., Ltd. RMB48,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 9.16% 9.16% Technology promotion
(‘Dunhua Petroleum’) * AR HE/HER and technology
HEFERBRIRL 48,000,0007C services of petro-
BRAR([3ERM ) chemical
technology
AR RmERR
UL
Beijing Beilun Energy Science and RMB25,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 20% 20% Technology promtion
Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Beijing Beilun’) * ARE @8 /hER and technology
R mERREARAR) 25,000,007 services of new-

TRIRERHER
BRAA (iR )

energy technology;
gas operational
business
MRRRIORIER
UL R
MRAEXH

* The statutory financial statements were not audited
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. The
English translations of these company names are
for reference only. The official names of these
companies are in Chinese.

* EEMBBRRAREEBLKE
1B 2= 7% P 2k 22k B R 4R 4% LA
B RREZ - ZFREBEH
RXNZREHRZ2E  ZFQFN
BETBBRTI -

(b) The Group’s outstanding balances and transactions (b) AEKERFAREEE AR NAREE

with the associates during the year are disclosed in

note 26 and note 40 respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REt&E N RIMNIRE (&)

(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) KREBEREE QAR EWEAY
AEEENMEBER o TR
REEBERRNTBERNRE

considered to be individually material to the
Group. The following tables illustrate the

summarised financial information of the Group's

associates:

Kunlun Suchuang Gas EmE AR
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE 42,465 46,034
Current assets mEEE 112,670 99,505
Current liabilities mBaE (18,226) (16,733)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE (10,726) (5,047)
Net assets EEFE 126,183 123,759
Ownership interest (%) PTG #ERE 25 (%) 49 49
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 61,830 60,642
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(c) The Group’s investments in associates are

considered to be individually material to the

Group. The following tables illustrate the

summarised financial information of the Group’s

associates: (Continued)

Kunlun Suchuang Gas (Continued)

Kunlun Suchuang Gas distributed dividends to
its shareholders amounting to RMB6,582,000
in the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB2,990,000). The Group’s share of the dividend
distribution amounted to RMB3,225,000 (2018:

RMB1,465,000).

(c)

18. REFE QR RRE (F)

REER é‘%%“?ﬁ’]&éﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ
AEBENMEEEK - TREM
$EIH$*M“TE’JB7TW§HTEEK :
(#8)

EmEAIMRR (&)
REZE2019F12 A31BIEFE -
B m Al R m H R R DR
Bok&aHEARM6,582,0007T
(20184 : AR¥2,990,0007T) °
AEBASEREDERERBAR
#3,225,0007C (20184 : AR¥
1,465,0007C) °

/7

2019 2018

2019F 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBTF T

Revenue WA 89,936 107,736

Profit for the year FE 5 A 9,006 8,314
Other comprehensive FEAEMPE KSR

income for the year - -
Total comprehensive FEIPEM A

income for the year 9,006 8,314

Ownership interest (%) Fi A RERE 75 (%) 49 49

Share of results DIEFEE 4,413 4,074
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(c) The Group’s investments in associates are

considered to be individually material to the

Group. The following tables illustrate the

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

18. REFE QT WIRE ()
(0 AEEREEDANREREAY
REBEZTEBEK o TRAEM
AEEBEDRAORBENEE

summarised financial information of the Group’s (#&)
associates: (Continued)
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Emg 2% A
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,615 16,385
Current assets MENEE 22,097 17,993
Current liabilities mENa G (2,050) (2,852)
Non-Current liabilities EREEFE (371) =
Net assets BEFE 35,291 31,526
Ownership interest (%) PTG #ERE 25 (%) 40 40
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 14,116 12,610
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MR
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REt&E N RIMNIRE (&)
() The Group’s investments in associates are (c) AEER ?‘ﬁ%ﬂjmhé?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
considered to be individually material to the AREBEERMSBEK o TR
Group. The following tables illustrate the $'§.H§*M/\7Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁixi
summarised financial information of the Group’s (#&)

associates: (Continued)

Kunlun Suchuang Usage (Continued) EmEAIFA ()
Kunlun Suchuang Usage distributed dividends REZE2019F12A31BILFE -
to its shareholders amounting to RMB2,105,000 Em&afARERRELRE
in the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: DIERAR®2,105,0007T (2018
RMB287,000). The Group’s share of the dividend F: AR®287,0007T) - A& H
distribution amounted to RMB842,000 (2018: DIEBRE D IRB/AKRKES42,0007T
RMB115,000). (20184 : AK#115,0007T) °
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR¥TRT AREFT
Revenue WA 70,947 64,617
Profit for the year FE R A 5,871 2,273
Other comprehensive FEAEMPESE

income for the year - -

Total comprehensive FELPHWRERE

income for the year 5,871 2,273
Ownership interest (%) P A Rt 22 (%) 40 40
Share of results DIEELE 2,348 909
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(c) The Group’s investments in associates are

considered to be individually material to the

Group. The following tables illustrate the

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

18. REFE QT WIRE ()
(0 AEEREEDANREREAY
REBEZTEBEK o TRAEM
AEEBEDRAORBENEE

summarised financial information of the Group’s (#&)
associates: (Continued)
Dunhua Petroleum HELR
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Non-current assets EMEEE 307,644 326,090
Current assets MENEE 124,559 164,400
Current liabilities mEa G (87,741) (121,980)
Non-current liabilities EmBAEE (6,547) (14,460)
Net assets BEFE 337,915 354,050
Ownership interest (%) PTG #ERE 25 (%) 9.16 9.16
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 30,953 32,431
Goodwill on acquisition A s B T 2 A Y e 16,538 16,538
Share of net assets DL EEFE 47,491 48,969
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REEZE R AN E ()
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) AEBERBEQNRNIREWRAY

considered to be individually material to the
Group. The following tables illustrate the
summarised financial information of the Group’s

associates: (Continued)

Dunhua Petroleum (Continued)
Dunhua Petroleum distributed dividends to its
shareholders amounting to RMB3,493,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
The Group’s share of the dividend distribution
amounted to RMB320,000 (2018: Nil).

AEBENMEEEK - TREM
AEEBERRNMBEERRR
(#8)

HELH(E)

HZE2019F12A31HLEFE * K
ERARRAEREIELERED KA
HAR¥3,493,0007T (20184 :
/) AEBLSEREDIRERE
AR#320,0007T (20184 : £&)

From the

acquisition

date to

31 December

2019 2018

BWERHRZE

20185

20194 12H31H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARMF T AR¥ET T

Revenue WA 106,666 140,882

(Loss)/Profit for the period B (B518), & (12,642) 10,579
Other comprehensive HAA H 2 T R

income for the period - -
Total comprehensive Brem (),

(loss)/income for the period Uy s 4 s (12,642) 10,579

Ownership interest (%) P B RERE 2R (%) 9.16 9.16

Share of results DILEE (1,158) 969
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Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REEE R RWRE (&)
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) KNREBEREE QAR EWEAY
considered to be individually material to the AEBERMEBEKN - TRED
Group. The following tables illustrate the REBEBENRHNMBEERRE
summarised financial information of the Group’s (&)

associates: (Continued)

Beijing Beilun tmdtm
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,787 46,195
Current assets MENEE 96,877 96,801
Current liabilities mEAE (64,694) (40,149)
Non-current liabilities EREEFE - (30,000)
Non-controlling interest SRR = - 33
Net assets BEFE 47,970 72,880
Ownership interest (%) Fi B BERE 75 (%) 20 20
Share of net assets DMLEEFE 9,594 14,576
Goodwill on acquisition H U mE A2 4,384 4,384
Share of net assets PMLEEFE 13,978 18,960
Beijing Beilun distributed no dividend to its REZE2019F12 A31BIEFE » bR
shareholders in the year ended 31 December 2019 IR AMERRELEREDIK (2018
(2018: Nil). Fo|m)o

20195 F3 | HAMBRDERAT 233



Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REt&E N RIMNIRE (&)
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) AEBERBEQNRNIREWRAY
considered to be individually material to the AEBERMEBEKN - TRE
Group. The following tables illustrate the REBEEENRHNMBEERRE
summarised financial information of the Group’s (%)

associates: (Continued)

Beijing Beilun (Continued) dtrdbm ()

From the

acquisition

date to

31 December

2019 2018

BWEAEBZE

201841

20194 2A31H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ET T ARET R

Revenue WA 46,382 200,959

(Loss)/Profit for the period B (E518), i Fl (24,910) 7,301
Other comprehensive HA O Bt 2 [ U 2

income for the period - -
Total comprehensive Hrzem(EE)/

(loss)/income for the period gy ck-cl (24,910) 7,301

Ownership interest (%) P A Rt 22 (%) 20 20

Share of results DIEEE (4,982) 1,460
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)
(d) The following table illustrates the aggregate

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

18. REFE QT WIRE ()
(d) TR AR E A AN 5

financial information of the Group’s associate that ERRIREEIIEER
is not individually material:
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Share of the associate’s loss FADIEHEE DBl EE
for the year 41 (313)
Share of the associate’s total DEEBE AR R EER
comprehensive loss L] 41) (313)
Aggregate carrying amount of REEREE R EIH
the Group’s investment RERERE
in the associate 136 177

19. Equity Investments Designated At Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

19. EER A PEFABZHRAR
&

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
ARBT T ARETT
Listed equity investments, at fair value FRRAKRE

BAFER 48,147 67,904

Other unlisted equity investments, HihIE FHRAKRE
at fair value BATFER 6,000 97,286
54,147 165,190

The above equity investments at 31 December 2019
were classified as equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss as the Group has not elected
to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other

comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
disposed its investments in the third party resulting
from the adjustment of the Group’s investment strategy.
The fair value on the date of sale was RMB91,515,000.

PN B ) R 23R R H A 2 T W e
WRAFEER - LR 2019F12 A
31 BW MR A E S B AR A FER
AEZHRAIRE ©

HZE2019F12A318IEFE » A5&E
ERABRAEEREREMEENE=FH
MitE - REE RN AFEAARKE
91,515,000 7T °
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

20. Debt Instrument At Amortised Cost

20. BEBHER AT BENERKRTAE

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR%T T ARETTT

Analysed into: RUT RIS
Current ME 43,295 -
Non-current ERED 95,044 13,726
138,339 13,726

(1)

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31
December 2019 amounting to RMB95,044,000
was a note receivable provided by the third party
company to Argus LNG, with a period from 20
September 2019 to 31 January 2021 and the
interest rate of the loan was fixed at 8%.

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31
December 2019 amounting to RMB43,295,000
was a loan provided by Nantong Suyou to the
third party company, with a period from 20 August
2019 to 20 August 2020 and the interest rate of
the loan was fixed at 5%.

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31
December 2018 amounting to RMB13,726,000
was a loan provided by Argus Holding to the third
party company, with a period from 17 August
2018 to 17 August 2020 and the interest rate of
the loan was fixed at 5%. The loan was settled on
20 September 2019.
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(1)

2)

2019412 A31 B & 855k A7)
ARMVER TR AR 95,044,0007T
RE=FAFIMAArgus LNGREH
FEWE % - HBBR A20194F9 A20H
£20219F1 8318 » ZEBEFIZEFE
FEB%ET B

201912 A31 B #5475
RMEMKTAEARYK43,295,000
TLAMBEORMSE =5 A RS
BR - HRA2019F8 A208 =
202048 H20H @ ZEFIRE T A
E5%5T B °

72018412 A31 BIR# 85 A7)
RHEHIAAR13,726,0007T
AArgus HoldingR % =7 A R]E
HEOER - BRA2018F8H17H
£2020F8 8178 ZEREKEF
FIE5%ET B c ZERER20194F
9H20R85E -



Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

21. Deferred Tax 21. EEBLIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities RERN BEEHEEERBGEEHT
during the year are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets EIERIESE
Contract Impairment Loss
liabilities of financial available
and and Accruals — for offsetting
deferred contract and  against future
revenue assets provisions  taxable profits Total
THEERR
SRR ERRAE EiER ERHER
BERA BERE ki HER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Gross deferred tax assets 201841 A1R#
at 1 January 2018 EREHEEELE 30,519 1,028 1,923 = 33,470
Deferred tax creditedl(charged) to EEA/ (MR E) B
profit or loss EiEba (Bn)
during the year (note 11) 625 (226) 167 1,133 1,699
Gross deferred tax assets at 20185124318 R
31 December 2018 and 2019%1 A 188
1 January 2019 EREHAEELS 31,144 802 2,090 1,133 35,169
Deferred tax credited to FR:T ABRNEEHA
profit or loss during (RfzE11)
the year (note 11) 479 559 30 1,651 2,119
At 31 December 2019 R2019%128318 31,623 1,361 2120 2,784 37,888
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect WA T B IRERHEEHIAEE

of the following:

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000

ARET AREFIT

Tax losses not recognised REERHNMIBEE 72,310 35,448
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect HRZEERERBRSERNMB AR
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that Al - MIBHARAR] R R R N A] BE = A fERR
have been loss-making and they are not considered T AT B ER W ERZEE

probable that taxable profits will be available in the IEMERELETIIBEE ©

foreseeable future against which the tax losses can be
utilised.
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

21. Deferred Tax (Continued) 21, IEERIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Withholding Lease  acquisition of
taxes liabilities  subsidiaries Total
WENEAR
et
B HEaE AT ERE @t

RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARBTL  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR

Gross deferred tax liabilities 1201851 A1HE

at 1 January 2018 BRRESERSE - = 26,347 26,347
Deferred tax credited to FRIABRNELHE

profit or loss during the GEN

year (note 11) - - (1,051) (1,051)
Gross deferred tax liabilities M2018%12 A31HA)

at 31 December 2018 BELHIERELE = - 25,296 25,296
Deferred tax credited to ERG ANBRRETRA

profit or loss during the (M)

year (note 11) 1,067 71 (1,072) 66
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEB AR (Hi37)

(note 37) - - 2,546 2,546
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2019%12 A31BH)

31 December 2019 BREHERELR 1,067 71 26,770 27,908

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.
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BIEFRBEPEMSHE - KNP A
SMHNEIRE R EREIMEEEME IR
HRR B ZEBAN10%TEI0R - BEARER
200841 A1 BREAR - WiEAR2007
F12A31HBZEEF o f§Fh HEG
IMEE BB RIERERET G 1RAY - B
ARZAREMHBENBE - iAKEM
T BEABERI0% Bt 0 AEE
AL ZER P B ALK B AR
200841 A1 BRI AEF SR
IR BN TEHT -



21. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

By the end of 31 December 2018, no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the
Group established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors, it is not probable that this subsidiary will
distribute earnings arising from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2018 in the foreseeable future.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors
have decided to distribute certain dividends to overseas
holding companies from the distributable profit earned
by Taicang Natural Gas in Mainland China from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019. Therefore, the
Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by Taicang Natural Gas established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019 and deferred tax liability
amounting to RMB1,067,000 was recognized regarding
to withholding taxes as at 31 December 2019.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investment in the subsidiary in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB897.7
million as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB770.4

million).

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

21 EFERTE ()

EERIEEE (E)
HZE2018F12A318 ' WERAEE
FHR B P b K 37 B BT BB A B R AT B R EE
HBNAMEENTEINERELCHIER
E - EERA  ZWBARRKARER
TRAREDIK2008F1 A1 BZ20184F
12 A31 BB/ &R -

HZE2019F12A31BIEFE &S
BABARERARB2019F1A18E
2019F 12 A31 BRFRE A A ] 5 2
FMBEERE TREZEIMNERAR -
I AEBEEEHBE2019F1A1H
F2019%F12 A31 BB B AR LAY
ABERARE KRR EHMEBENG - I
FMHPR2019F 12 A31 B FBHIFL FER A
BRI B EHMAR1,067,0007T °

M2019%12 A31H @ ERERFER
HHB AR HENERE=R2@EA R
RWAR®E897.788ET (20184 - A
R¥7704887) MARERBELERIE
afE-
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

2

23.

Inventories

22. ZE

2019 2018
201945 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Construction materials M B 7,329 8,446
Natural gas KAR 1,717 2,176
9,046 10,622

Trade Receivables 23. EIRE Z R
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARETIT
Trade receivables EUE 5 BRFK 109,071 80,273
Impairment BB (5,446) (3,212)
103,625 77,061

The Group’s trading terms for sales of natural gas are
paid in advance or due within 30-90 days from delivery
for different customers, the trading terms for rendering
of construction and connection of gas pipelines services
are mainly on credit and the average trade credit period
are 180 days, and the trading terms for rendering of
natural gas transmission services are generally paid in
advance. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances
are reviewed regularly and actively monitored by
senior management to minimise credit risk. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are unsecured and
non-interest-bearing.
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23. Trade Receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the

end of the year, based on the invoice date and net of

loss allowance, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

23. EWWE SRR (&)
EREAMRNBREEREL  REX
HEWE SERMREBROTMT

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Within 90 days 90H X 76,339 68,904
91 days to 180 days 91HZE180H 839 847
181 days to 360 days 181 HZ2360H 21,858 2,087
Over 360 days 1360 H 4,589 5,223
103,625 77,061

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

FEWE 5 R ERE BB BN T

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR%T T ARETTT

At beginning of year RF A 3,212 4,114
Impairment losses, net (note 7) B EEFRE (K15E7) 2,234 (902)
At end of year RER 5,446 3,212

The increase (2018: decrease) in the loss allowance

was due to the increase of the gross carrying amount of

trade receivables which aged over six months.

B B (20187 < ) TR
AR BB 6 1A 2 16K 5 AR R R
0 -
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

23. Trade Receivables (Continued) 23. BRE SR (&)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting AEEREHRE BN AR EEREET
date using a provision matrix to measure expected BEIN - AT EBRHBHEEERE - B4
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past ENERZEEBRUBEEANER
due for groupings of various customer with similar loss DEBAE R (BRI ERE - BEFEM KR
patterns (i.e., by sales type, customer type and rating). AR BBRBMETE - Rt HEAER
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted BRABE R INAE4E R - EERRE N MR
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable SR SEBABEENH - ERIGEHR
and supportable information that is available at the RRGEB RGNS IE R ARBE X #
reporting date about past events, current conditions and B o

forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk XA EE N AR EERES LA E
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a WEZERNEERRER

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019 A2019%F12A31H
Ageing
it
6-12 12-24 Over 24
0-6 months months months months Total
0Z6fA 6Z12F 12Z24fHF #iB24M8A @t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 0.2%-0.4%  2.2%-5.7%  3.6%-7.9% 20.0%-84.8%  1.9%-5.5%
Gross carrying amount BEREE
(RMB’000) (ANR®FT) 78,159 22,796 2,958 5,158 109,071
Expected credit losses EHEEEE
(RMB’ 000) (ARETI) 288 1,128 226 3,804 5,446
As at 31 December 2018 M2018%12 A31H
Ageing
6-12 12-24 Over 24
0-6 months months months months Total
0E6fdR 6Z1288 12E24MEF BB241ER st
Expected credit loss rate HHEEERX 0.1%-02%  1.0%-6.0% 2.4%-13.3% 12.3%-47.6% 4.0%-15.7%
Gross carrying amount @ERmE
(RMB’ 000) (ARETI) 69,905 2,107 2,208 6,053 80,273
Expected credit losses HHEEER
(RMB’000) (ARETT) 154 123 251 2,684 3,212

242  Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019



24. Contract Assets

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

24. BEIEE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
2019% 20184 20184
128318 12 A31H 1A1R

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRE ARETRT AR¥TE

Contract assets arising from: SRBEXRE :
Construction and connection BERREA
of gas pipelines MRE B 8,160 34,129 50,853
Impairment B - = =
8,160 34,129 50,853

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the construction and connection
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on successful completion of construction. Upon
completion of construction and acceptance by the
customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The decrease
in contract assets in 2019 and 2018 was the result
of the decrease in the provision of construction and

connection services at the end of each of the years.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
allowance (2018: Nil) for expected credit losses on
contract assets was recognised. The Group’s trading
terms and credit policy with customers are disclosed in
note 24 to the financial statements.

EREERVERRBERREARYE
FTBMA - AWER EEURR AT T
L - RELTEXIAEFRKE -
REAAEENSRERBENSBEERIK
B8N 2 2019F R2018FEREE
WA T A FERIBHER RE ARG
DETEL o

HZE2019F12A831BILFE - @&
(20185 : B)MERAEENTBHEE
BERREH AEEEEFPHORFZEF
KREEBRNMBRERM T24F 5

?Eo
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

24. Contract Assets (Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for

contract assets as at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

24. ERIEE (&)

R2019512 8310 - A AEEMHERT
W El sk E R AT

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 8,160 34,129

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by sales type, customer type and rating.)
The expected credit loss rate for contract assets is
assessed to be 0.2% to 0.3%. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Based on evaluations on the expected credit
loss rate and the gross carrying amount of the balances,
the directors are of the opinion that the ECL in respect
of these balances is considered immaterial.
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25. Prepayments, Other Receivables And Other

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

25. BARR - RtEREURRE A

Assets BE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
2019F 20194 20184
12A31H 1H1R 12A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB”000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T R AR¥EFTTT AREFTT
Prepayments AR IR 120,566 90,604 93,781
Deposits and ®’e RHEM
other receivables e GRIE 11,073 11,168 11,168
Prepayments for Yo B S Y
the acquisition AR IR 20,575 1,200 1,200
152,214 102,972 106,149
Impairment allowance DERI=REYi] - = -
152,214 102,972 106,149
Classified as: DR
Current i 122,660 93,139 96,316
Non-current ELrE)] 29,554 9,833 9,833
152,214 102,972 106,149

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date, expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record
of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amount. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

e hEMRKFRAETEREERE N

HERHZE - A&E

G2 EREEER

L=

BB BEABRREIHERE AN
AEr R EEBRELRED T - 8K
R EE FHRIE L A ARRIREE

R IERIAR KB ER

P EESEaHASRE - BT AL
EHRNSREEMT W EENCER
BECEMNERFIERR - H£2019
FR2018F12 8318 » BIEBRERT
HAREM -
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

25. Prepayments, Other Receivables And Other  25. FE{3 7B + Hith R IE R HA1ith

Assets (Continued) BE (&)
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are FERNFRIA - Efh EUCIAE R EMEER
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed | RENERETEN -

terms of repayment.

As a result of the initial application of IFRS 16, prepaid HREREABERMGHREERE16
land lease payments of RMB3,177,000 previously 8% SLRIET ATTEN ZUE - EfbfEUEK
included in “Prepayments, other receivables and HMEMEE | ARES3,177,000THITE
other assets” were adjusted to the right-of-use assets Nt HERIEE AERN2019F1 A
recognised at 1 January 2019 (refer to note 2.2 to the 1B ERNEAEEE (FFI5R28U %
financial statements for further details). HERMEE2.2)
26. Balances With Related Parties 26. BARAE H WAEER
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’"000
AR®BTT AREFT
Amounts due from other FE W EL fth B 75 SRR
related parties
Beijing Beilun dErdt® 32,223 30,243
Energette Capital Corporation Energette Capital
Corporation 348 =
Kunlun Suchuang Gas EmaraliiR - 94
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#Ralr A - 1,241
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BN ER 2 R RS - 1,166
32,571 32,744
Amounts due to other related parties ENHEMEES RIE
Dunhua Petroleum HELM 500 -
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service RN Bk 2 7 B AR TS 150 -
Taicang Suchuang Property KB #hENE HhE
Development Co., Ltd. FEAR AR - 445
Beijing Beilun it m - 12,500
650 12,945
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28.

Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

27. BAFEFAEENERMEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Other unlisted investments, HihR ETHIEE
at fair value BAFER 204,000 100,000

The above unlisted investments were wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.

Cash And Cash Equivalents And Pledged
Deposits

EHiR ERERTEAMBITEITZ
B EM HRNESNRSREILIFHE
RAE R BN - BE RS D E R
BAHEFABRENEREE -

28. BERACEEYREEAERK

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH R 432,121 413,374
Less: Pledged time deposits: o BHEREREK
Pledged for short-term REBRRITER
bank loans ifn # #7 33 (3,450) =
Pledged for other REMER
borrowings i 5 3 33 (61,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents He MReEEY 367,671 413,374
Denominated in RMB A REEEHE 321,967 351,291
Denominated in US$ LAETTAEHAE 2,524 34,320
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 43,180 27,763
367,671 413,374

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
approximate to their fair values.

RITRSRE ARITFRF XRIEH
ME - RITEBREBRFRIIFRE
BERIFEBEOBMYBENOTHENR
TR RReFEYNDEBERFRE

FREEEEQFEREE
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28. Cash And Cash Equivalents And Pledged

Deposits (Continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

(%)

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

29. Trade And Bills Payables

29. ENESRARERE

2. HERREEEYREEBER

BEARETEARABRSEMER -
SNT + ARIR A B A KON B IR AR P1) K2
(HIE -  SERNEEERE)  ~5E
BB BRERELEINERBEORITH
ARBHBOHMER -

2019 2018
20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBFT

Trade payables JERTE SRR 31,688 64,008
Bills payables AN 29,000 -~
60,688 64,008

An ageing analysis of the outstanding trade and bills

payables as at the end of the year, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

BEZHAHY  REROKREERNES
BRRERBEORESTAT

2019 2018
20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Within 90 days 90HA 25,087 54,272
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 33,302 1,128
181 to 365 days 181 HE365H 571 788
1 to 2 years 1FE25F 412 7,188
Over 2 years 2FAE 1,316 632
60,688 64,008

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled within 180 days.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

30. Other Payables And Accruals 30. Hitt BN RIEREER

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12831H 12A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR¥T ARET T
Payroll and welfare payables et & K AE T 6,006 5,813
Accruals EEtER 2,196 1,738
Other tax payables H A e T IE 13,400 13,610
Other payables H At FE T FRIE 21,119 20,603
42,721 41,764
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HiENRIBERTFE - FHRH3E
average term of three months. Al e
31. Contract Liabilities 31. R &E
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: ERBEZFRBLOT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
20194 20184F 20184
12H31H 12A31H 1HA1H
RMB’ 000 RMB"000 RMB’" 000
AREFIT AREEFIT ARETFIT
Short-term advances Vbl &Y= e
received from customers
Construction services BERE 82,851 48,475 38,924
Sale of natural gas HERAR 34,233 82,334 85,093
Connection fees BEAE 19,886 19,631 19,322
136,970 150,440 143,339
Long-term advances REFENE FAE
received from customers
Connection fees BEAE 91,638 89,970 87,396
228,608 240,410 230,735
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31. Contract Liabilities (Continued)

Contract liabilities include advances received from
customers to deliver construction services, sales of
natural gas and connections fees. The decrease in
contract liabilities in 2019 and 2018 was mainly due
to the decrease in short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the provision of construction
services at the end of the year.

32. Deferred Revenue

Details of deferred revenue are as follows:

31. eEE%E (&)
ERABRREARFIREEERGE CTE
WK~ RARBEEREAEZR 22019
FR2018FERABBRIZEERRE
EERABTFPRHEERY 28 BAER

TN
TR o

32. IEE WA
RIEWA 2 F BT -

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184

12831H 12H318

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR%T T ARETTT

Government grants B 4 BA 14,967 14,976
Analysed into: BRUTRIESN

Current VL) 1,043 882

Non-current JERED 13,924 14,094

14,967 14,976

Asset related government grants are recognised over
the expected useful lives of those gas pipeline assets of

twenty years.
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33. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Borrowings

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

33. 5T BB T R EMMERK

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
2019%
20195128318 1810 20185124318
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000  RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB'000
ERp® ERfi%
(%) % ARETR ARETR (%) HE ARETR
Current Ik
Lease liabilities (notes 15(c) ®  BEBE (H3E15(c)" 4,64-6,08 2020 1967 584 = = =
Bank loans - unsecured /B - BEH 4.785 2020 23,000 30000 522822 2019 30,000
3.62% US$7,687,000 7,687,000 TC(3.62°%)
secured bank loan EERRTER 3.62 2020 53,626 - - - -
4.10% HK$32,980,000 32,980,00077L(4.10%)
unsecured bank loan BERBOER 410 2020 29,543 = = = =
Current portion of long term REBHERZ NS
bank loans - unsecured B - A 5.39 2020 5,000 - - - -
Current portion of long term REEFRZ NS
4.29% HK$60,500,000 60,500,00077L(4.29%)
unsecured bank loan BERRIER HIBOR*+2.00 2020 27,097 = = = =
Other bank borrowings - secured " Efo k113 — H 12 2537 2020 102,000 - - - -
Current portion of long term bank ~ REHHTEF 2
loans - secured ® s - AR - - - 50,000 539 2019 50,000
142233 80,584 80,000
Non-current P31
Lease liabilities (notes 15(c)) HEBE(M3E15(0) 4,64-6,08 2021 1,557 148 = = =
Bank loans - unsecured ROEH - EE A 5.39-6.08  2021-2025 77,191 25,000 6.08  2021-2023 25,000
4.29% HKS$60,500,000 60,500,000/7T(4.29%)
unsecured bank loan BERBIER HIBOR*+2.00 2021 27,097 53,010 HIBOR*+2.00  2020-2021 53,010
105845 78158 78,010
348,078 158,742 158,010

*  The interest rate refers to Hongkong InterBank Offered

Rate.

MEFEBRRRITHEME
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33. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Borrowings 33. 5t B R{ITR E A& (&)

(Continued)
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR ARETT
Analysed into: RATZIEDHT -
Bank loans and JEERBRITERR
borrowings repayable: fE K
Within one year or on demand —F R AN ER 240,266 80,000
In the second year F_F 37,098 26,505
In the third to fifth years, F=FFRF
inclusive (BIEEERT) 60,000 51,505
Beyond five years HiB T F 7,190 =
344,554 158,010
Other borrowings repayable: Hi EEERK :
Within one year —FR 1,967 =
In the second year EF 1,557 =
3,524 -
348,078 158,010
Notes: PsE
The Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are &R E & ET B ERIT R E AL R T AR R AR
secured by the pledges of the following assets with carrying BB TAREV AT BE R
values at the end of the year as follows:
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’”000
M ARBTT ARET T
Pledge of assets: EREE :
Pledged deposits EERTFR (1) 64,450 -
Prepaid land lease payments FafR L3 E5KIA 3) - 4,126
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RERE 3) - 117,784
64,450 121,910
(1) The interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (1) 2019t ERITREMERARE
amounting to RMB155,626,000 in 2019 was secured by 155,626,0007T T3 B3 2 5% [E 09 B 17
Group's pledged deposits (2018: Nil). IR (20184 - £&) o
(2)  The other bank borrowing shall be borrowings pledged (2) EMIRITERBRITEAN RIREER -
by bank acceptance notes and the interest rate of the BRMER2.5%E3.7%2H °

borrowing was between 2.5% and 3.7%.
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33. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Borrowings
(Continued)
The Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
secured by the pledges of the following assets with carrying
values at the end of the year as follows: (continued)

(3)

The Group borrowed a long-term loan from Bank of
China in 2014, as at 31 December 2018, the balance of
the loan was RMB50,000,000, which was repaid in 2019.
The loan was jointly secured by the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments and property, plant and equipment.

Except for the 4.29% and 4.10% unsecured bank loans
which are denominated in HK$, and the 3.62% secured
bank loan which is denominated in US$, all borrowings
are in RMB.

The Group entered into the lease in respect of certain
motor vehicles from the other related party. The amount
of rent payable were based on prices available to third
party suppliers. Included in the Group’s lease liabilities
are amounts due to the Group’s other related party of
RMB58,000 (2018:Nil).

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

33. ST ERITREMERK (F)

AEEOFBRTREMERTIARFERER

E{EN T AR AT & EEEIR

3)

5)

(&)

AEER2014FRFERITE AR
B R2018F12 8318 R4

BAR50,000,0007T 1502019¢ff?
i%; EEEFHRASENENIHEE
KB RWE - BEMEEEXRER -

8 4.29% K 4. 100/03?3%#%?5}3%&?7%?%»;‘%
ToaHEA K 3.62% B R IHIEITERUASE
TLEHESD - Fﬁﬁfﬁmtﬁu/\ﬁmzﬂﬁ o

AEBERE T /AEHEEMBESIA
EE o  BNHESSEERE=1HE
2 Al B o sF AR E TS ;%152
FENAEBEMER T REASARE
58,0007T (20184F : &) o

20195 F3H | HARBRDERAT

253



254

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

34. Issued Capital

34. BERITRA

Shares vl
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value of value
HK$0.01 each RMB
EikEE [
S d= 0.01%87T AR
Authorised: ZEE -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H K
and 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 39,378,500
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHE -
At 1 January 2018, 201851 H1H
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12 A31HK
and 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 902,924,000 9,029,240 7,213,766

35. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents those reserve arose from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing. Details of
the movements in the merger reserve are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve pertains to the benefit derived by the
Group from receiving related party loans with interest

rates below the market rate.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019

35. f#1E

AEERFANFREBELEZFH IR
RAEDREHRANES -

BOHEE
BHEBEA LM ENMETEMRME

SIS R EBE -

=N
BT RAEBIRER TS XRE
MEBB—FE@ETERMELHF

S o

B



35. Reserves (Continued)

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain
entities within the Group are required to allocate a
certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined
by their boards of directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the

registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles
of association, a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a
domestic company is required to appropriate 10% of
its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) to the statutory surplus reserve. After the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The statutory surplus reserve can be
utilised to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital

after such usages.

Special reserve — safety fund

Provisions for the Group’s obligations for safety
operation are based on the Group’s revenue arisen
from sales of natural gas per year in accordance with
related PRC rules and regulations. The Group records
a corresponding cost when such expenditure for
safety operation incurs. The remaining provisions for
the Group’s obligations for safety operation would
be recorded as special reserve - safety fund. The
remaining provisions would not be recorded in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss while the
Group decreases its retained profits when it recognises
the special reserve — safety fund.

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

35. f##E (&)

EERES
RIEREEARINEEE QR AR E
B AREETHE TEREARESS
AERPREARSRADEE TEH
MR ERMN (TLR10%) X ERH
He (DEERHEES])  BEE%HEEED
AR A 50% A LE ©

EERBER/TADIK - HEHRBRIT
SR ARIEARRE R BUA R P EE TR &1 8]
RERHE R ERXBEREARD ET
BRARER AN o

REBERBEERMARMERAR - £HE
AMARARERRNK B AR AR L EL
ME10% (BREHBEFENRFTEE
&) BREBBRMER - N&HENER
EEREBRELRNS0%%E - REIRIATE
TBIE T — PR - AT BRI
AAEEERFEEREER - A - 1
fEH E AR - R ERRREENE
BRARF NN DREARI25% °

HiEf#E - R2EEE
REMETBRZERARRT  ARELEE
BEGBRBDERARESFRARHEE
EEHRA - ERFREEEHEL
B AEREFTHEERAS - AEEZE
LEEGHERKRERSBARSTRME —
RELER BT EFETERFAES
KPR MEAKRERRAZRRHE —
EHEER  SRLHERERM -

A Bl
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35.

36.

Reserves (Continued)

Distributable reserve

For dividend purposes, the amounts which the PRC
companies can legally distribute by way of a dividend
are determined by reference to the distributable profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements
which are prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP.
These profits differ from those that are reflected in this
report which is prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
profits after tax of the PRC companies can be
distributed as dividends after the appropriation to the
SRF as set out above.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the directors, other employees
of the Group, consultants and advisers of the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 11 March 2015
and the scheme mandate limited was refreshed on 12
September 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that 11
March 2015 date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a

general meeting.
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FBETT0F AR

B AIRIBEZE Bl A iR 2 M RITE R
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36. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders” approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, which should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the

relevant share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of such option; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option; and (iii) the

nominal value of the share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

36. B AERTE (&)

RTIARAES  BRITHAER X2
BRERIRFEMBEA LT ZBREAS
SREBMIERITESHIET AIEE © It
Sh - BT AR BER E ERRIOB LI
HTEFARSEMBEA L ZEME
B - P MEM12 8 A MR ABEAR A
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(MR L A BERRAR AR ERE
B)BE@sa8EET  MASEERRAK
SRR ALE - TAEE ©

REEREZZH R EL B ERET21
AABERAZINEEZREB1IBTLET
AR - TR BREZITEIBRE
EEF - TMEHEAEREREREZA
FBET104E o

BREZITEERESETE - HTEE
R Tz E&RE (RO ZIEBRER
iz BREE R FTE A REXRATH 2 W
& (RO RBEEZEBRERL BE
A AR S BEB AT ARERA
ZFHWTHE - Rii)RD 2 HEE -
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36. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 36. BIR#ETE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the FABRIEZAT 2 M AR TTE 2 B8 AR #E
Scheme during the year: T
2019 2018
20195 20185
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
ik B B AR5 R
TEE £ 1TfE(E #H
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share "000
FRET i) BB 0
At 1 January R1A1AR 2.422 95,000 2.422 95,000
Forfeited during  FRHEZHK
the year 2.319 (2,100) - -
At 31 December  R12A31H 2.425 92,900 2.422 95,000

R E IR ARITERBRENTTERER

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting ITEEREOT -
period are as follows:
2019 20194

258

Number of options

Granted date

Exercise price

Exercise period

BREZE g =R TEE TR
"000 HK$ per share
T4 BRAET
18,900 1-29-16 2.000 2-28-17 to 1-28-24
1651H29H 1752828 F24%1H28H
19,500 1-24-17 2.280 2-28-18 to 1-23-25
1718248 1852 A28 E25%1H23H
40,000 5-25-17 2.466 5-24-18 to 5-24-21
1758258 185524 AE21F5H24H
14,500 10-25-17 3.060 10-24-18 to 10-24-25
175108251 18510824 HZE25%10824H
92,900
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36. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (Continued)

2018

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

36. B AERTE (&)

20184

REE R ARITEBBRENITEE R
TTEMENT - (&)

Number of options

Granted date

Exercise price

Exercise period

BREHE R B TEE TEEHAR
"000 HK$ per share
T4 BRAET
20,000 1-29-16 2.000 2-28-17 to 1-28-24
16F1 A29H 1762 HA28H%E24F1H28H
20,000 1-24-17 2.280 2-28-18 to 1-23-25
1791 H248 182 H28HE25%1H23H
40,000 5-25-17 2.466 5-24-18 to 5-24-21
17958258 1845 H24H=2145H24HR
15,000 10-25-17 3.060 10-24-18 to 10-24-25
17%10H25H 18F10H24H=25F10H24H
95,000

The fair value of the share options granted during
previous year was HK$80,201,000 (HK$0.55-HK$1.18
each) in total, of which the Group recognised a
share option expense of HK$13,793,956 (equivalent
to approximately RMB12, (2018:

RMB22,590,000) during the year ended 31 December

2019.

076,000)

REBEAFERIBREZAFLES
#%580,201,000%F L (F0.557%
TTE1.1887T)
201912 A31 B It FEERERE
13,793,956 8L (HERHAR
¥12,076,0007T) (20184 : AR

CHRAEEREE

22,590,0007T) °
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36. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 36. BIR#ETE (&)

260

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during previous years was estimated as at the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

142 DABERS 45 K0 R AR KD A T AR
i R AR )58 — AT B AR
HEHE - BPE R R
etk o TRFU L HE AR A
B

Share price (HK$ per share) 2.00-3.06

IRAE (BRETT)

Exercise price (HK$ per share) 2.00-3.06

1IfE(E (BB TT)

Dividend yield (%) 1.07-1.46

IRER (%)

Volatility (%) 33.28-39.49

REDER (%)

Risk free interest rate (%) 1.47-2.27
B (%)

Exercnse multiple 2.8 -3.342 for directors,

T fEE 1.5-2.86 for employees and

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of reporting period, the Company had
92,900,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 92,900,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional issued
capital of HK$929,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB844,000) and share premium of HK$224,341,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB201,906,900) (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 92,900,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
10.3% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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37. Business Combination

On 16 September 2019, Taicang Natural Gas, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
100% of the equity interests in Tengxu Energy, at a
total consideration of RMB18,000,000 in cash. Tengxu
Energy is engaged in the contract energy management
and distributed energy system projects. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
its market share of contract energy management in
the Jiangsu Province. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with
RMB14,400,000 paid at the acquisition date and the
remaining RMB3,600,000 paid after Tengxu Energy
starts its operation.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Tengxu Energy as at the date of acquisition were as
follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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7. %A 0

R2019F9A168 » KRaI2EH B
RAIRKBARARRANECRREBARE
18,000,000 7T Y B B B BE IR 100% 2 %
7 o BRIt E A REREREMD M
NEERUIER - ZWEBERAEEEKX
IHAAREREEMBNEEEN
— o ZBERENBEREARK
14,400,000 7T 2 AU B EAAIR € 5 =
T Fgr AREE 3,600,000 7T #5 A B
JEBERFREZ RN o

REEBE - BEREIRAIBREENE
Bz RFHENT :

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
RBEBRER
NEE
Notes RMB’ 000
B = ARBTFT
Property, plant and equipment M - HE KR K 14 3,791
Other intangible assets Hib B EE 17 10,185
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 61
Prepayments, deposits FARRIE - Be
and other receivables N E At R FRIE 913
Other payables and accruals H At T 5IE KR EET B A (26)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEEE 21 (2,546)
Total identifiable net assets at fair values* BRATEREZ FI#EA
BEFERE" 12,378
Non-controlling interests SRR = -
Total net assets acquired FTidE E EFERTE 12,378
Goodwill on acquisition R W B T 72 A RO P R 16 5,622
Satisfied by cash IR & X A 18,000
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HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

37. ¥ &6t (&)

AR -~ Re REMEWHIERIKE
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to HHENAFEAARYI3,0005T @ &
RMB913,000, which was approximated to the gross HBEARSEMRS - BH SRR
g mmARE -

37. Business Combination (Continued)

The fair value of the prepayments, deposits and other

contractual amount. None of these receivables are

expected to be uncollectible.

Included in the goodwill of RMB5,622,000 recognised
above is due to the new market in Jiangsu Province
entered by the Group to develop its contract energy

T FEROARES 622,0007T 2 &
ThEAAREBE ASTHE M TR A%
REARKBEERELAME - A EEE

AR 2B IR IEAG R AFE - Bk
PIEBR S ERF I8 RELEER
TMHERELEENRST - IECHERE
BIRHAR BT SBADRL ©

management business. The above factor is neither
separable nor contractual and therefore it does not
meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset
under IAS 38 Intangible Assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

ERBRENBAR RS RE DT

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

acquisition of the subsidiary is as follows: T
RMB’ 000
AR®T
Cash consideration HeRE (18,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEEIR & MIRTTHEH 61
Cash consideration to be paid after e TR A IR BA 20 1B 12 1 S S Y
Tengxu Energy starts operation BERE 3,600
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AAREESISHRSRENRES R
included in cash flows from investing activities B EEYR L FE (14,339)
Transaction costs of the acquisitions included SFARLESISHEREN
in cash flows from operating activities WEE X HR A =
(14,339)

MR2019F12 A31H » WHEZKE QR
mARFIREE o

As at 31 December 2019, the acquired subsidiary has
not started operation.
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38. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of

Cash Flows

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB5,149,000 and RMB5,149,000,
in respect of lease arrangements for plant and

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

38. ZEBEERERM:E

(a) EXRFRERS

respectively,

REA » NEBERME K&
ZHHGERAEEEREERENIE
RERENANABARYS5,149,000
TR ARES5,149,0007T (2018

equipment (2018: Nil). FoE) e

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REEHEENEENEE
activities

2019 20195

REHE

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

BITER HEEE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARETR AR®BTR

At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 158,010 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 PRAm PR B T HR 52 R

F16MMTE - 732

At 1 January 2019(restated) 201951 A1 8 (&) 158,010 732

Changes from financing cash flows RERSRENE 183,207 (2,365)

Leases HE - 5,149

Foreign exchange movement HNEE B 3,337 8

Interest expense | B F% - 193

Interest paid classified as JIERERERELZ
operating cash flows ENFE - (193)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 344,554 3,524

2018

20184

Bank borrowings

RITER

RMB’ 000

AR¥ETTT

At 1 January 2018 72018451 H1H 90,000
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRENE 68,010
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 158,010
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38. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of

Cash Flows (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

38. IRERTMEBRME (B)

(c HERSRHAZE
AFARERERZEERS R A

statement of cash flows is as follows: RENT -
2019
20195
RMB’ 000
AR®T
With operating activities RETRBN 1,389
With financing activities AMEEBA 2,365
3,754
39. Capital Commitments 39. EAEE
(@) The Group had the following capital (@ RFER  AEEMNEAREEN
commitments at the end of the year: T
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: EETAMEAREE -
Property, plant and equipment ME - B KRR 22,367 24,916

(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31

December 2018

The Group leased certain of its property and motor
vehicles under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for motor vehicles were with terms of 12
months or less. Leases for property were for terms

ranging between one and three years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

(b) R2018F12A31HMWEKEHEE
HRIE
AREEREBELEHELHHAERESR
TR AHE - AE AR A12(E
AT mMYEZHEBENT—=
=% o

AEBEREBETARHECEHER
2018412 A31 BEIHA R K HKIE
HEMFREENT :

2018
20184
RMB’ 000
ARET T

Within one year
In the second to third years, inclusive

;ﬁlﬁ

FEETFE=F
(BREERMF) 213

1,968

2,181
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40. Related Party Transactions
(a) Name and relationship

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

40. BEFRS
(a) BEREE

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

BELER SEAKERE
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Associate
Em#raim [N
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Associate
EmE Al A SN
Beijing Beilun Associate
slSla SUNC]

Suchuang Group
- =IESE]

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Transportation Co., Ltd.
(“Dangerous Goods Transportation”)
AegalekmERARAR ([BhmE%H])

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service

FRNERZ T BRTS

Energette Capital Corporation

Energette Capital Corporation

Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders
PERR AR R 1 | 0 X )

Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders

PR BCRIE S B A A

Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders
PR IR R 1l 60 2 A

Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders
22 B SRAZE il B9 2 )
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HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

40. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

40. BEL X Z (&)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances b) RER > RTBHFRREMMIBH
disclosed elsewhere in the financial FRI BN RERI » BE
statements, the Group had the following BHEHEAEFNEARZFUT !
material transactions with related parties
during the year:

2019 2018
20195 20185
Notes RMB’000 RMB’ 000
(i3 ARBT R ARETT
Associates: 3|
Transmission and sale of natural gas to BXRHEXART
Kunlun Suchuang Gas EmBefR (i) 982 12,064
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#aM A (i) 6,363 31,056
7,345 43,120
Purchase of natural gas from B TR aFRBEARR
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#AIRR (i) 1,096 6,016
Kunlun Suchuang Usage EmaINA (i) 7,132 -
8,228 6,016
Consulting service income from FEU TR a2 Hm %
KA
Beijing Beilun EritH (i) 178 -
Rental income from KEU T A bt E WA
Kunlun Suchuang Gas ERBeRR (i), (vii) 521 568
Kunlun Suchuang Usage B mar el A (ii), (vii) 448 448
969 1,016
Loans to E#T
Beijing Beilun IRilE (v) - 30,000
Loan interest from KEU TR A EFTLE
Beijing Beilun ERitH (v) 1,980 243
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40. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

40. BEL X Z (&)
(b) REFER - KRB BHRRA MM
BN S RERRI » RNE
EEEETNEARRZOT :

material transactions with related parties (&)
during the year: (Continued)
2019 2018
2019% 20185
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
i AR¥TR AREFT
Others: Hitr:
Loan to E#T
Energette Capital
Energette Capital Corporation Corporation (vi) 348 -
Rental income from KEU T2 a]gyid s WA
Suchuang Group el B (ii), (vii) 330 330
Purchase of goods from B T4 a5 B
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service FMEE TE R (ifi), (vii) 870 680
Purchase of natural gas from B TR aJFRBEARR
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BINBE RERK (i), (vii) 5,929 -
Sale of natural gas to L TR Al EX AR
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BINBE RERG (i) 2,371 2,057
Motor vehicle rental service provided by :: N34
HERH
Dangerous Goods Transportation ElRmEs (iv), (vii) - 560
Purchase of right-of-use assets from BUTRAEE
RFAEEE
Dangerous Goods Transportation ERnEH (iv), (vii) 1,635 -
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

40. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties
during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually
agreed by both parties.

(i) Rental income represents considerations received
for the rental of property premises to the Group’s
associates and fellow subsidiary. The directors
confirmed that the annual rentals payable under the
relevant rent agreements had been agreed by all
parties.

(iii) The directors considered that motor vehicle fuels
are provided by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
on normal commercial terms.

(iv) The Group entered into agreements with Dangerous
Goods Transportation to rent certain motor
vehicles. The directors confirmed that the annual
rentals payable under the relevant agreements had
been agreed by both parties. Upon the adoption of
IFRS16 at the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognised a right-of-use asset.

(v)  The Group entered into a loan contract with Beijing
Beilun amounting to RMB30,000,000 with an
interest rate of 6.5% per year since 2018 and the
maturity date is 31 December 2020.

(vi) The Group entered into a loan contract with
Energette Capital Corporation amounting to
USD50,000 with an interest rate of 8% per year
and the maturity date is 15 March 2021.

(vii) The related party transactions in respect of (ii), (iii),
(iv) and purchase of natural gas from Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service above also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019

40. BEL X Z (&)
(b) RER - R BHRER A MM
BN S RERRI » RNE
EEEETNEARRZOT :

(&)

GEE

() ERAXZDHERBIZELTT LR
FE HO 6K S AR I HETT

(iy HEWAERAREBE S QG
EREZHMEARLEDEND K
RE EFHREEEERZR
TENFEESEETHE °

(i) EERREFMBHETERB VIR
ERBEEERETERE -

(ivy AEEEERMmER] LHES
THRENGZ - EFEREHEID
BETENFERS HEETT
E o NI ERIE B HIER AN = B Bt
BREELE16571% - AEER
RERREE -

(v) ANEBEIFIEGIVLEENE
AER#30,000,00THERAR
B2018FRRFFEAE6.5%B G
ZIHAE A2020F12A318 -

(vi) A&EEHEEnergette Capital
Corporations] 3 % %8 /50,0003
THERAR - FHER/8%NES
RZIEAR &2021F3 8158 -

(vii) E32(ii) ~ (i) R (iv) B BER R
2 A K B B M B 2 T RIS IB
RAR - B ETRAE14A
BERENFERERS -



40. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties:
Details of the Group’s balances with other related
parties at the end of the year are disclosed in note

26 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

40. BEL X Z (&)

() HEERNAREZELR
A ER [ B H 1 B8 T 0 R AE BR A
FHERBERMIEEWKRMT 26 o

(d) AEENEEEERE A SRR

2019 2018

2019 2018%F

RMB’ 000 RMB’"000

AR®BTT AREFT

Basic salaries and other benefits AR REAMEF 10,403 11,086

Pension scheme contributions RNEFHEIHR - 64

Equity-settled share option expenses  LA%Ez 45 & A BB ARE R X 1,249 1,801
Total compensation paid to key ENFEZEEEAEN

management personnel el EaE 11,652 12,951

Further details of directors’” emoluments are

included in note 9 to the financial statements.

BERESFMN B EHIIR T

FRARMIFE
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

41. Financial Instruments By Category

41. RERETHNERMIT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of ZemTEERNREHR ZBEEED
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T

period are as follows:

2019 20194
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or loss
RATEAARENEREE
Designated Financial
as such Mandatorily assets at
upon initial designated amortised
recognition as such cost Total
RARRRE BEEE ZEHRPIE
RERLER AlER HemEE @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARET T ARET T ARET R
Equity investments designated RERNTEG AR
at fair value through profit or loss RARE 54,147 - - 54,147
Debt instrument at amortised cost RERRATIRNERIA
(including current and (BRI RIFNHE)
non-current portions) - - 138,339 138,339
Trade receivables B SR - - 103,625 103,625
Financial assets included in AR -
prepayments, other receivables HRUTER A EE
and other assets MERAE - - 11,073 11,073
Amounts due from FE W EL A BB 5 50R
other related parties - - 32,571 32,571
Financial assets at fair value RATE AR
through profit or loss TRAE - 204,000 - 204,000
Pledged deposits BERER - - 64,450 64,450
Cash and cash equivalents Re AL ZEY - - 367,671 367,671
54,147 204,000 717,729 975,876
Financial liabilities TREE

Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

REBEHATE

HEmaE

RMB’ 000

ARBTF T

Trade and bills payables JEN B IR A R EE 60,688
Financial liabilities included in AR A R RIA &

other payables and accruals EtERNERIAE 21,119

Amounts due to other related parties JRE 1Y L 4th [ 38 05 5K IE 650
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERIT R EAE K

(including current and non-current portions) (B IEBNHA K JERNEREL 53 ) 348,078

430,535
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(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

41. Financial Instruments By Category

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31HILEE

41. RERETWEMTA ()

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting ™ (88&)

period are as follows: (Continued)

2018

Financial assets

20185

TREE

BT ABERINRE R BREED

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or loss

BATESABENEREE

Designated Financial
as such Mandatorily assets at
upon initial designated amortised
recognition as such cost Total
BB
RAHER BT D8
RERLER RIEAER SREE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS NS ARETT AREFT
Equity investments at fair value RATE AR
through profit or loss RERE 165,190 - - 165,190
Debt instrument at amortised cost REERASRHES LA - - 13,726 13,726
Trade receivables e E 78R3 - - 77,061 77,061
Financial assets included in T AR -
prepayments, other receivables Hib R
and other assets REMEERSREE = = 11,168 11,168
Amounts due from RWEmREE R B
other related parties = = 32,744 32,744
Financial assets at fair value BRATER ARRA
through profit or loss eREE = 100,000 = 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAEEEY - = 413,374 413,374
165,190 100,000 548,073 813,263
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
REHK AT E
NemBE
RMB’"000
ARETTT
Trade payables N B 5 8RR 64,008
Financial liabilities included in ST AE At JE A RRIE K BT B A R
other payables and accruals TRBE 20,603
Amounts due to other related parties JE < Ho At B8 28 75 kIR 12,945
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEEIRITER
(including current and non-current portions) (B IEENHA R JERNEREL 53 ) 158,010
255,566

20195 FH | HARRBRDERAIF 271



Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

42. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 42. EMTIAENFERAFEER

Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s AEBeMTECEEERAFE (K
financial instruments, other than those with carrying HAEEENFESERAEZEM T AR
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are HN) EFIT
as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values

AR E NEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 20184 2019 20184

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTRE ARETRIT AR®BTR ARETR

Financial assets ERMEE
Equity investments at fair BATEFARR
value through profit or loss ~ KIRARIEE 54,147 165,190 54,147 165,190
Debt instrument at RS AN BR Y
amortised cost BB TA 138,339 13,726 128,209 13,710
Financial assets at fair value & AFEF AEZ
through profit or loss WERmEE 204,000 100,000 204,000 100,000
396,486 278,916 386,356 278,900
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ATE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’"000 RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
ARBTR ARETT AR®BTRT ARETT
Financial liabilities Y=
Interest-bearing bank TRRITER
borrowings (non-current (SEENEAED 5 )
portion)(other than (TBfEEE
lease liabilities) 81E) 104,288 78,010 100,983 77,481
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42. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
receivables, amounts due from other related parties,
trade and bills payables, amounts due to other related
parties, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments as at 31 December
2019.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief

financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of debt instruments at amortised cost
and the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2019 was assessed to be

insignificant.

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

R.EMITEANFEARDIFEEER

(&)
EEEFER2019F12A318 - Be
kRS EEY  BEBPEFER BRES
R - BUWHMAERRIE - ENES
BRAREE - B EMEAESFKIE - 5
ATERRIE - bW RIER EMEE
WEMEE ST AEMERNFKIBRER
ERMeRmaEN A TEEEREER
E TEANZREIARNEHAEIE -

AEBMBEAFIRPHLIEEE - BE
BEreMIAAFEFAENBEKLE
Fr o BB EBF ER MM SR EMESE
BeRE  NEREEH - MBI
eI ANBEEHIYEEHETE
ANE2HABE - HEAVBEESE
=ML -

TREERRENAFEAZIARE
BIXBTEMNXD THARZEEA
R MIEREFRIEE - EFHER
FERERA TIIAERRR :

LE KAV BR A ES T A KT EIRIT
BRI H A FEBBRAIE
o EERBEFAIHABAENTA
WIRA A AF REIRIBER KRS RE
BT RETE - B2019%F12A831H K
SEXRFHNE ERITERENRRTE
BIWTREK o
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HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

42. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 42. EMTIAENFERAFEER

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited

Financial Instruments (Continued)
The fair values of listed equity investments are based

(%)
FHRARE 2 AFEERTIHRE -

on quoted market prices. The fair value of unlisted FEETBRAEE 2 R AT ESHT

equity investments was determined by reference to the

latest market transaction price.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which
represent wealth management products issued by
banks in Mainland China. The Group has estimated
the fair value of these unlisted investments by using
a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms
and risks.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

RHMGERMETE

AEERERIFLHRE (EPEAM
RITBTNEFEM) - AEBEEHRA
MAEREREMHERIVIZGREERE
EHNTENMISHERMEFTZFIFLTER
BHRFE -

AV EER
TREFAZESBMIANATENE
B

BATESENEE -

HZ=2019%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RATHIEENAYENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active ohservable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAY BXRY
ERTERE BRBAE BRBAE
(£-8) (E=4) (B=8) @zt
RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®BTR AR%®TR
Equity investments at fair value NS TR PN Tl
through profit or loss RERE 48,147 6,000 - 54,147
Financial assets at fair value BATEF AR
through profit or loss TREE - 204,000 - 204,000
48,147 210,000 - 258,147
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42. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

R.EMITEANFEARDIFEEER

(%)

NP EER (&)
BAFEAENEE (&)

HZE2018%12A31H

Fair value measurement using

RETAIRAN AT ETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXA EATT
ARTHRE BERGAE BEaAR
(F—H) (E=8) (=) st
RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT N S ARBTL
Equity investments at fair value BATE AREN
through profit or loss RAzE 67,904 97,286 = 165,190
Financial assets at fair value BN TFEE AR
through profit or loss TREE - 100,000 - 100,000
67,904 197,286 - 265,190
Liabilities measured at fair value: AT EAENEE

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value at the end of the year (2018:
Nil).

AEBERFRY BAEMBZRTEFEN
SRIEME (20185 - &) o
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HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

42. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments (Continued) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEER (E)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EHEAFENEE

As at 31 December 2019

HZE2019%12 A31H

R.EMITEANFEARDIFEEER

Fair value measurement using

RATSI&ENATETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BXT Ep|
ERMSHE BRBAE BEBAE
(£-%) (B=8) (E=8) #st
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Debt instrument at amortised cost RESERAT| R BB TR
(non-current portion) (3EENEE5) - 86,209 - 86,209
As at 31 December 2018 HZE2018%F12H31H
Fair value measurement using
RATIISENATERNE :
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT AR
ERTIRME BRBAE BRBAE
(£-#&) (B=8) (£=#) b
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
Debt instrument at amortised cost BB ERASRNER IR
(non-current portion) (FEREES) = 13,710 > 13,710
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42. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2019

Notes to Financial Statements

PR

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31HILEE

R.EMITEANFEARDIFEEER

(%)

NP EER (&)
EXRBEATENAE

HZE2019%12 A31H

Fair value measurement using

RATII&ENATENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active ohservable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXT EART
RRTERE BEBAE BEBAE
(£-8) (£=8) (£=8) @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET R ARBTR ARETT ARET T
Interest-bearing bank and other BRI REMER
borrowings (non-current portion) (FEEnEEs)
(other than lease liabilities) (TBERERE) - 100,983 - 100,983
As at 31 December 2018 BHZE2018F12A31H
Fair value measurement using
RATIIBBNATFEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAT AR
RETSR(E BRGAE BRGAE
(F—#R) (F=R) (8=#) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT N ARETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings iHERITER
(non-current portion) (€30
(other than lease liabilities) (TEEREER) = 77,481 = 77,481
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HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And B 75 L B B 2 Y B AR IR BUR

278

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
include cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits
and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments either for hedging or for trading purposes.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of the risks which are summarised below:

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term

debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using
a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
interest rate risk. At 31 December 2019, approximately
84% (2018: 35%) of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after
tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings)
and the Group’s equity.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019

AEENTIZERMIATFZBERER
ReFEY EBEMRER  FHERITHE
R HAZETMIANTIZENRR
AEENKEE8EES - ARENTBAR
EHREEREENREE SRZAR
ENESEREREESREAGERE
ENEE-

$‘§liﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁ/i&r§!’]£yﬂ 2 A

HNERRE - EERRE - RBE

iﬂ[ﬂ &Hxﬁf R o $§%ﬂ£?ﬂi%

BRBITERYAXEERENITES

EEIE cEEERERRATEERA
FREEE - BEATHANT

BN
AEEEHNTISN RS E LT RE
AEEIZF AR ENRBEH AL
B -

REENBRAFEREE R EE
BRAEMARNEEEFBKAE - K&
By EFATES R T A REFX
Bk - BR2019F12 A31H » ZEEH
84% (20184 : 35%) Myt BERTTHE K
REEMEB -

TRINTEMERMBAIZERZER T2
MBRT » REBERB &R (FZE
EEEENTE) RASEREL X

BEREERBNERE -



43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 43.

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

With all other variables held constant, the Group'’s
profit after tax and equity are affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

BRREREENEERBUR (#)

FZ=E (&)
EMAEMAEREZEFTENER

T BEZREEELANTEMHAEE
FIBRAR 1R A S A E R V2 BN T

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax and equity*

BRBLRERIR R RO D) *

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’”000

AR¥T ARBTT

Increase by 25 basis points N2 5 A2 (216) (226)

Decrease by 25 basis points W25 B 216 226
*  Excluding retained profits * NEREREER

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and the majority of transactions are conducted in
RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the year to a reasonably possible change in the
US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax and equity.

SNES [ B

AREBEERBLIAF BEAM - #UE D
RHHANARBHET - KEBOAEKED
BEMBBETUNARKEIIE AEEY
S E N TE SRR o

TRINTEMEHEMAI SRR ERF &
FIBIL T - NS BIRR B 1808 I R B R
FREEZTRATIERS A GER B HY
BURE °

Increase/(decrease) in

profit after tax and equity
BB REFRREEM,ORD)

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETTT

RMB/US$ ARY %R
Strengthened 5% FHE5%
Weakened 5% B2 BE5%
RMB/HKS$ ARY BR
Strengthened 5% FHES %
Weakened 5% BZ(E5 %

2,138 2,024
(2,138) (2,024)
(2,079) (1,213)
2,079 1,213
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And  43. i EREENEEREE ()

280

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis;
therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2019. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019
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Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

43. B EMREENBERBER (&)

=ERE (&)
REERERFETH (B)

HZ2019%12H31H

12-month
ECLs
12{8A8 Lifetime ECLs
RARERA FROEMEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
&1 &2 &3 Bk A%
RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TRT  AR¥TR  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR
Debt instrument at amortised cost ~ HEBHATIFNEF LA
- Not yet past due - HARH 138,339 - - - 138,339
Trade receivables* WA SR - - - 109,071 109,071
Contract assets* AREEE: - - - 8,160 8,160
Amounts due from other W E M EE A TIE
related parties
- Not yet past due - WARH 32,571 - - - 32,571
Financial assets included in STATRRFE -
prepayments, other receivables Eth R
and other assets REMEENSREE
— Normal** = e 11,073 - - - 11,073
Pledged deposits BERER
~ Not yet past due - HARH 64,450 - - - 64,450
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN
- Not yet past due - WABH 367,671 - - - 367,671
614,104 . . 117,231 731,335

20195 FH | HARRBRDERAIE 281



282

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

43. B EMREENBERBER (&)

&Rk (&)
REERFERFESH (B)

HZE2018%12A31H

12-month
ECLs
12184 Lifetime ECLs
BREEER FEARSEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
BE1 &2 BE3 Bl h%
RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTr ARETRT ARt AREBTR
Debt instrument at amortised cost ~ HEBHATIFNEF LA
~ Not yet past due - HARH 13,726 - - - 13,726
Trade receivables* I E S = = = 80,273 80,273
Contract assets* ARBE* = S = 34,129 34,129
Amounts due from other W E M EE AT
related parties
- Not yet past due - WARH 32,744 - - - 32,744
Financial assets included in STARRFE -
prepayments, other receivables Eth R
and other assets REMEENSREE
- Normal** — L& 11,168 - - - 11,168
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN
- Not yet past due - WARH 413,374 - - - 413,374
471,012 - : 114,402 584,414
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the
Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 23 and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables

are disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected

cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings and other interest-bearing borrowings.
In addition, banking facilities have been put in place
for contingency purposes.

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

3. M EREEN B RRBEK (&)

EERMR (&)

REEEFER FAL S (&)

* BAEBEERB(H A ERERNER
BORARREREE  EREEBEREA
BRD BIRBFIRER M 5123 K245 -

»*  FTARNIER - At EUGRIAREME
ENEREEERBH BT EER KA
ximﬂﬁ?@%ﬂﬁ%?ﬁ WO SERE

EF E'Jf&wﬁﬁﬁ'fﬁ%%%ﬂﬂﬁﬁfﬁ

”’%*J c BRI eRMEBEEMEEERKR
AR ] ©
BERAEBRRKE ZRFAAR ZE

BRRZE-—FTESONTEE  REKE
HERMFF23WE -

RBEE MR
AEERAKFUERDESTE LA
REBECHERNEAR - WL TASEER
TR TANEREE (NERWE S EHX)
MEHB AR EEXBNARE

//\Li ©

AEENBEREREBERRITERRE
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And  43. i EREENEEREE ()
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBETER (&)

RER » NEBRIEET AR R

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the year, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

TRAGEIHABENT

On Within Within Over

demand Tyear  2to5 years 5 years Total

REX 15/ 2E55R BB F At

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT  ARBTRT AR%TR  AR%TR  ARET:R
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R

Trade and bills payables ERNEFEARRE - 60,688 - - 60,688
Financial liabilities included in T AR MERFIER

other payables and accruals EHERNERAR 21,119 - - - 21,119
Amounts due to EfTEBEL R

other related parties 650 - - - 650
Interest-bearing bank and other 5 BT REMIEH
borrowings (excluding (FRERERRE)

lease liabilities) - 242,920 110,385 9,143 362,448

21,769 303,608 110,385 9,143 444,905

On Within Within Over

demand Tyear  2tob years 5 years Total

BEX (k3 2E55ER HEiBsF 5

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTL  ARBTL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31R

Trade payables ERE SRR - 64,008 = = 64,008
Financial liabilities included i~ FARMERFTIER

other payables and accruals EHERNERAR 20,603 - - - 20,603
Amounts due to e Rt BE T 5008

other related parties 445 12,500 = = 12,945

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 38 R1TfEH - 81,312 88,604 - 169,916

21,048 157,820 88,604 - 267,472
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from individual equity investments included in equity
investments designated at fair value through profit or
loss (note 19) as at 31 December 2019. The Group's
listed investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and
their respective highest and lowest points during the

year were as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

3. M EREEN B RRBEK (&)

P& AN {E 4% L Bex

AR A (B 4% B b 2 F5 AR 2 45 BUK T K (& B
BHEEEZIMERNBRAESFLFE
T ERS - 2201912 A31H » &
SEMASENBRAERREBRIRE D ER
BERAFEFABSE ZBAKRE (M
F19) MERKRAKRE - AEEMN LT
BERBBBHFRZ LT - Rk H
KIZFTmMELHE °

ERERRIAFERORZH A EER
BERE TIIESF R 52 REREE R
HERNZHHMRERHNT

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

2019 2019 2018 2018

2019%F 20195 20185 201845

12A318 =& 12A3318 =K

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BE—EAEH 28,190 30,280/ 25,846 33,154/
24,900 24,586
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12 A31BILFEE

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)
Equity price risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to

a reasonably possible change in the fair values of

the equity investments, with all other variables held

constant and after any impact on tax, based on their

carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

43. AR EEN B BEREE (&)

RAE R R (&)
TNRIVREMBEMAZEREZHER I
FENBRT - RERA
BREQFERREHRROEEE  E

A& AR

BIEAIRER BB ©

Carrying
Change amount of Changes
in equity equity in profit
prices investments after tax
BB RARE BRBL%
28 ZREE AR E
% RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
% AR®TR ARBTR
2019 2019%
Investments listed in: WTAE Lz &E
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at &/8 — 8 E XA FEFTA
fair value through profit or loss RRORARE 10 48,147 4,815
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at &8 —EERAFEA
fair value through profit or loss BaiRARE (10) 48,147 (4,815)
2018 20185
Investments listed in: R A iz iRE
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at &/ — R AFEA
fair value through profit or loss RRNRARE 10 67,904 6,790
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at  F&—EERAFEA
fair value through profit or loss HalRARE (10) 67,904 (6,790)
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)
Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders” value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the

year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group’s
net debt consists of interest-bearing bank borrowings,
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total

equity.

Notes to Financial Statements
B IR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

3. M EREEN B RRBEK (&)

ExEHE
AEEESEENTIERERMRES
REEKERIBRNEARLR 28N
A FFE 5 MERREEZRAL

AEEEEEEARRE  WREBEZER
MEPHHELAE - REFIARE
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And  43. i EREENEEREE ()
Policies (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

At the end of the year, the Group’s strategy was to

E£EE (&)
RER - REB R B QA FE 55 L

maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not
limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group

@ REF RO EAKFE - AR
HEBKEE AKBMRANTIERR
B (ERRR) R RKREREFK
AR B B BB (KB @SR BE D - 7
ARBRTRERFRAEKY » WHE
REFEILBERE (MEFE) - WAk
RAKEEEAIEKFHNERIFHEE
SEE NERIFES SRS R

has a reasonable level of capital to support its business. o
The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the years are

as follows:

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
2019%12A318 2019F1A18  2018F12A318
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR ARETT ARBTT
(note)
(BtzE)

Interest-bearing bank ARRITRAMER
and other borrowings (note 33) (F#E33) 348,078 158,742 158,010

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RENBEEEY (367,671) (413,374) (413,374)
Net debt EEL (19,593) (254,632) (255,364)
Total equity Eniagm 1,518,054 1,458,802 1,458,802
Net debt to equity ratio FEBERSLE N/A* N/A* N/A*

FER* TER* TEA*
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

44

Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

Note:The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and the effect of the initial
adoption is adjusted against the opening balances as at
1 January 2019 with no adjustments to the comparative
amounts as at 31 December 2018. This resulted in an
increase in the Group’s net debt on 1 January 2019 when
compared with the position as at 31 December 2018.

*  The Group’s balance of cash and cash equivalents
exceeded the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
as such, no gearing ratio was presented.

Events After The Reporting Period
Since the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus
(COVID-19) disease among the world, ongoing
prevention and control measures have been carried out
throughout the whole world. The epidemic will impact
business operations of certain industries as well as the
overall economy. Therefore, the Group’s operations and
revenue may be affected to a certain extent depending
on the effects of the prevention and control measures,
duration of the outbreak and implementation of various

policies.

The Group will closely monitor the situation and assess
its impacts on our financial position and operating
results. As of the date of this report, such assessment is

still ongoing.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

3. M EREEN B RRBEK (&)

44

E4EIE (1)

fiet: AEEERAEIETHE P ERHNRH
BREAFSREERFE 165 - B E XY
VR ZThR 201941 A1 B 2 Hi9 4
BRETTHAE - MR2018F12 A31HK
AT ERAE - ZFHBEYR
201812 A31H » KEBEMK201941
A1 8 ZFEREM -

*  AEEMRENRBSEBMEHREET
BRITREMER > RAR2FEE
BALE-

REHZEE
FRTMRBEHERCOVID-19)E 2 tH
FURTELAK - B TER B AR TR
EENEIT - BIEREIDITENER
EERBRBCEETERTE  mA
BEE—ERRE LREAREEMEE NI
wWmKFE - EREEURRB IS MR K
B REBEFESEUARSEAEBRERN
B o
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

45. Statement Of Financial Position Of The 45. 2D ) Y B T AROR 3R
Company

Information about the statement of financial position

ARARBERRNABARKRBEE

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as By
follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T AREFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN NS 26 29
Investments in subsidiaries BB R RNIEE 175,239 2,008
Total non-current assets FEMENE EARTE 175,265 2,037
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIRELEEY 3,099 30,239
Prepayments, deposits FERRE  Be Kk
and other receivables E A fE W kI8 2,546 2,490
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B B A B FRIE 562,893 737,647
Total current assets MENE EARRE 568,538 770,376
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEME
Interest-bearing bank T RIRTT MHEAM AR 27,097 =
and other borrowings
Other payables H At FE A~ FRIE 420 1,956
Total current liabilities MBI B ERR 27,517 1,956
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREBEE 541,021 768,420
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERADEMR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 716,286 770,457
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE

Interest-bearing bank

At RRTT R EABE R

and other borrowings 27,097 53,010
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEETE 27,097 53,010
Net assets FEE 689,189 717,447
EQUITY s
Issued capital B BT 7,214 7,214
Reserves (note) e () 681,975 710,233
Total equity gt 689,189 717,447
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45.

46.

Statement Of Financial Position Of The
Company (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

45

Notes to Financial Statements

B IR R M
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HLEFE

AR BRI ()
e
AR TR RRELLT -

Retained
Share profits/
Share option Capital  (accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve losses) equity
REER
BROEE  BRERE X (RAER) EEER
RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
AR¥TT AR¥TT ARBT T AR¥T AR¥TT
At 1 January 2018 201851 A1H 804,019 26,103 932 (99,003) 732,051
Loss for the year FEER - - - (26,350) (26,350)
Dividends declared and paid EEIRRIKERE (18,058) - - - (18,058)
Equity-settled IR AR

share option arrangements BIEZ S = 22,590 = = 22,590
At 31 December 2018 and R2018%F12A318 %

1 January 2019 201951 A1H 785,961 48,693 932 (125,353) 710,233
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (15,052) (15,052)
Dividends declared and paid EERMRERS (25,282) - - - (25,282)
Equity-settled NiEREED

share option arrangements BRERH - 12,076 - - 12,076
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R 760,679 60,769 932 (140,405) 681,975

The Company’s share premium represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the Company over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange therefore.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the
share options granted which are yet to be exercised.
Please refer to note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements for details. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

Approval Of The Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2020.

46.

ARE R B AR R R A FEE
HARBREBRBERERRTEMEITH
RO EENEZE -

BREREERERLERKRITENE
BT EIN A TE - FEFLHEAY
BHmKRMEE36 - HHMBRERETE -
ZETRRERERMNEER : 564
BRED M ERE  IERERER
A e

B 35 3R 3R Yt
SRR ELESSN2020F3 A31H
ot R AR REEE A o
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Financial Summary

PR

RESULTS =
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 20184 2017% 20165 201545
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE AR®TT ARETr AREFTT AR®ETR
(Restated)
(&)
Revenue WA 1,329,875 1,102,805 967,267 740,895 795,625
Cost of sales HERAK (1,081,359) (888,039) (738,282) (531,554) (595,220)
Gross profit EF 248,516 214,766 228,985 209,341 200,405
Other income and gains HAA & Mg 10,399 27,171 16,671 22,419 33,222
Selling and distribution costs HE R HEHA (13,187) (11,990) (11,515) (10,459) (4,016)
Administrative expenses THRAX (82,208) (85,052) (68,672) (48,288) (40,077)
Impairment losses on financial ~ ¢£BEERAREE
and contract assets, net ZREEREE (2,234) 902 (682) = =
Other expenses Hipfy (24,641) (1,382) (12,210) (1,309) (3,055)
Finance costs AEKAK (12,310) (5,501) (6,290) (4,524) (5,817)
Share of profits of associates DEEE R R EEF 580 7,099 1,911 1,543 4,677
Profit before tax BRB AR 124,915 146,013 148,198 168,723 185,339
Income tax expense FTg R % (48,880) (42,510) (48,058) (44,906) (46,700)
Profit for the year FERA 76,035 103,503 100,140 123,817 138,639
Profit for the year W& Bl
attributable to: FERF
Owners of the parent SYNIE YN 70,150 98,621 93,902 120,681 138,639
Non-controlling interests R 5,885 4,882 6,238 3,136 -
76,035 103,503 100,140 123,817 138,639
ASSET, LIABILITIES AND BE  8BR
TOTAL EQUITY ERER
Total assets BELES 2,271,191 2,040,652 1,860,285 1,659,640 1,365,070
Total liabilities BE@mE 753,137 581,850 504,401 513,044 434,920
Total equity R 1,518,054 1,458,802 1,355,884 1,146,596 930,150
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